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Corporate Profile
NCINY

Our Company was established in the Cayman Islands on 25 September 2007. Our
Group's history dates back to 2001 when Hunan Yingde was established in the PRC. Our
Company's Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 8
October 2009. Our Company wholly owns Yingde BVI which is incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands and is an investment holding company of our Group.

Based on the research information in the SAI Report, we were the largest domestic
independent industrial gas supplier in China in terms of total revenue for the year ended

3| December 2016.

We produce, supply and distribute a variety of industrial gas products to our on-site and
merchant customers from a number of locations in the PRC, with oxygen, nitrogen and
argon being our main gas products. Our on-site customers are those whose premises our
gas production facilities are located on or in close proximity to and to whom we supply
industrial gases directly. Our merchant customers include liquid gas distributors and other
industrial companies who purchase industrial gases from us on a spot market basis from

time to time.

We differentiate our on-site operation and merchant operation as well as the revenue
generated from the respective operations in accordance with the type of customers to
which we sell our gas products. In relation to the on-site operation, we generate revenue
by selling our gas products to those customers with whom we have entered into long-
term gas supply contracts. In relation to the merchant operation, we generally generate
revenue by selling our gas products (which are produced from the remaining available
capacity of our on-site production facilities as well as our dedicated merchant production
facilities) to local distributors on the spot market. We also enter into gas supply contracts
with a selected number of merchant customers who have a stable and regular demand
for our gas products. Pursuant to such contracts, we supply gas products on a regular
basis during the term of the relevant gas supply contracts. The on-site production facilities
referred to in this report relate to those which we construct after having entered into
long-term gas supply contracts with industrial companies. The merchant production
facilities referred to in this report relate to those which we generally operate without

entering into long-term gas supply contracts with customers.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

Oh behalf of Yingde Gases Group Company Limited (our “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, referred to as our “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2016. | would like to express my gratitude to our shareholders

for your continuous support and concem.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2016, economic growth and recovery has been sluggish in China and most of the
world, and the industrial gas industry has recovered to some extent after a long period of
low demand. With the progression of supply-side structural reform and the improvement
of manufacturing in the downstream industries such as metallurgy, chemical engineering
and automobile, the demand for industrial gas started to pick up and retailing price rose
in the second half of 2016. In the meantime, there were many occasions during 2016
where production plants had to reduce or shut down their operation under administrative
directives related to special events, accidents, pollution and policy targets, resulting in

significant drop in gas demand.

Industrial gas is the primary material in modern industry, and it has an important position
and plays an important role in the national economy. It is an indispensable production
element for industries, such as petrochemicals, coal chemical, metallurgy, electronics,
medical, and food. With weak recovery of the global economy and the complicated
domestic market and regulatory environment, the operation of industrial gas projects still

faces challenges in the short run.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our Group has been the largest independent on-site gas supplier in China since 2009.
According to SAI report, our Group remained as the largest independent industrial gas
supplier in the PRC in terms of total revenue in 2016. Our Group, with its extensive
market experience and excellent professional teams, has evolved into a reliable gas
provider and has been granted with premium projects. As at the end of 2016, our Group
had 70 production facilities in operation with a total installed oxygen capacity of 2,007,300
Nm?/hr.
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Chairman’s Statement (continueq)

EERE®

Although the macroeconomic environment is filled with uncertainties, as a leader of the
industrial gas industry in China, our Group maintained stable development in 2016, thanks
to the professional management which has laid a solid foundation for our sustainable
development. Apart from iron and steel makers, in recent years, we further diversified
our customer base into enterprises in industries including chemical and nonferrous metal.
As at the end of 2016, our Group has 67 on-site gas supply facilities in operation with a
total installed oxygen capacity of 2,004,300 Nm?/hr. For the merchant market, the market
demand for nitrogen and oxygen remained relatively stable while the volume and price
of argon sold increased due to decline in supply and rising demand from downstream

industries.

KELAMAYI PROJECT

In relation to the Kelamayi project involving the construction of a Coal to Hydrogen plant,
having assessed its prospects and the Company's financial resources, the Company has
decided to indefinitely suspend the project and will not make any further investment into
it. The equipment purchased under the project will be transferred to other parts of the

businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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Chairman’s Statement continued)
FEHRE@

OUTLOOK
Looking ahead, our Group will continue to work with high quality customers in 2017
and maintain its leading position in the industry by providing the best gas service to our

customers.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to thank our business partners and customers
for their support and trust over the years. Meanwhile, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our staff for their efforts in the past year. We commit to capitalize our success

and we will strive to maximize the return to our shareholders.

Zhongguo Sun
Chairman and chief executive officer
20 April 2017
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis

THRBREREEEBARR DM

On behalf of our Company's management team, | am pleased to report our Group's 2016

results to our shareholders as follows:

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2016, the industrial gas industry has recovered to some extent after a long period of
low demand. With the progression of supply-side structural reform and the improvement
of manufacturing in downstream industries, such as metallurgy and chemical engineering,
the retailing price of industrial gas picked up in the second half of 2016. On the other
hand, economic growth and recovery has been sluggish in China and most of the world.
As China's domestic manufacturing sectors struggled to navigate their ways through
the persistently challenging and highly uncertain market and regulatory environment,
consumption of most industrial gas products, particularly consumption by large industrial
users shrank instead of expanding. Affected by this, the challenge of the project operation
of industrial gases still exists in the short run. According to the 2016 SAI report, it is
estimated that the CAGR of China industrial gas market from 2016 to 2021 would
amount to 7%, and China’s gross industrial gas would reach US$13.8 billion by 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, global economic recovery has been sluggish, while the market and regulatory
environment confronted by China’ s domestic industries has been complex. Although the
macroeconomic environment was filled with uncertainties, as a leader of the industrial
gas industry in China, our Group maintained steady development in 2016, thanks to
the professional management which has laid a solid foundation for our sustainable
development. Apart from iron and steel makers, in recent years, we further diversified
our customer base into enterprises in industries including chemical, nonferrous metal,
electronics and energy, as well as into new geographic regions. In the meantime, we
adopted a more constructive way of handling customer relationships, in order to keep

operation stable.

As at 31 December 2016, our Group had a total of 70 facilities in operation and |3 facilities
under development. The total installed capacity amounted to 2,007,300 Nm?hr in terms
of installed oxygen capacity, representing an increase of 3.3% as compared with last year.
During the year, our Group sold 27,048 million Nm? of industrial gases, representing a
growth of 12.5% as compared with last year. The total sales volume of oxygen products,
nitrogen products and argon products were | 1,876 million Nm?, I'l,114 million Nm? and
255 million Nm?, respectively. It is expected that the total installed capacity will exceed

2,300,000Nm?/hr in 2018 when construction of all facilities under development is completed.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued

THRRAHREREEENWRD M

REVIEW OF ON-SITE GAS SUPPLY OPERATION

Our Group is principally engaged in on-site gas supply. After years of continuing
development and with our professional management, we currently maintain a stable and
quality customer base and an established professional reputation in the industrial gas
industry. To ensure reliable and stable gas supply to our customers, we provide on-site
services including design, construction, operation and maintenance of production facilities

at our customers’ premises or in close proximity.

According to the SAl Report of 2016, our Group was the largest independent on-site
industrial gas supplier in the PRC with a market share of 34.5% in 2016. Our major gas
products include oxygen, nitrogen and argon. For the year ended 31 December 2016,
the revenue of our Group's on-site gas supply business amounted to RMB7,021 million,
representing an increase of 2.0% as compared with last year. On-site gas supply accounted
for approximately 83.5% of the revenue of our Group, mainly contributed by customers
from steel, chemical and non-ferrous metals industries. To secure stable stream of income,
our Group has been stringent in customer selection, and will normally enter into long
term take-or-pay on-site gas supply contracts with customers with a term from 10 to 30

years, which include terms of minimum gas supply commitment.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued

THRREZREREEENRR D e

For the year ended 31 December 2016, our Group has entered into 3 new long-term on-

site gas supply contracts.

REVIEW OF MERCHANT GAS OPERATION

As the manufacturing sector remained in the doldrums with shrinking demand from
downstream sectors, the revenue of our Group's merchant gas operation for the year
ended 31 December 2016 amounted to RMB955 million, representing an increase of
15.8% as compared with last year. The percentage of merchant sales accounting for
the revenue of our Group also increased to |1.4%. Due to the recovery of the metal
processing industry in the PRC, our sales volume of oxygen increased by 18.8% and
unit price of oxygen increased by 4.2% in 2016 as compared with last year. Due to the
strong recovery of stainless steel industry in the PRC, the volume and unit price of argon

increased by 23.8% and | 1.7% respectively in 2016 as compared with last year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Leveraging on our comprehensive market strategy, effective control over cost and
expenditure, development of business, and devotion from our management and staff,
our Group recorded an increase in both our production and sales in 2016, resulting in a

steady growth of revenue in 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, our revenue increased by RMB485 million to
RMB8,404 million from RMB7,919 million in 2015. The increase in revenue is mainly
attributable to the commencement of operation of 2 on-site facilities during the year
and the full ramp-up of facilities that commenced operation in 2015, increased in
merchant sales and proceeds from the provision of construction and operating services

for the downstream customers.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued

THRRAHREREEENWRD M

REVENUE

Our revenue consists of proceeds from the sale of industrial gas products and provision of
service. Our revenue is recognised when our gas products are delivered to and accepted
by a customer, to whom our Company has transferred the related risks and ownership or
other services are rendered. The revenue figures represent the aggregation of the invoiced
value of goods sold or services provided, net of value-added tax. Our revenue increased
by 6.1% from RMB7,919 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB8,404

million for the year ended 31 December 201 6.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued
THARHENREEETRE D M@

The table below sets out revenue generated from sales of industrial gases to our on-site, TREINFTENEHE LERE THRGM
merchant customers and other services rendered for the years indicated: R TEEFARRHEE M ERE RGP E R
A

Year ended 31 December

BENANBLEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR (%) AREFT (%)

Revenue A
Sales of industrial gases to HEIXRETRGHAKP

on-site customer 7,021,211 83.5 6,886,264 87.0
Sales of industrial gases to HETXRBTTERP

merchant customer 954,520 11.4 824,593 104
Revenue from other related services 1R {E E {48 B3 AR 7% 428,201 5.1 208,004 26
Total FoEy 8,403,932 100.0 7918861 100.0

The table below sets out the weighted average unit price of gases sold to our merchant TR RENRBANZEEREHERN
customers for the years indicated: IEFH BB

Year ended 31 December
BENANALEE
2016 2015
Unit price (RMB/Nm?)
BRERARE/BELHK)

Oxygen an 0.74 0.71
Nitrogen AR 0.63 0.63
Argon aR .43 1.28
Weighted Average Unit Price T BB 0.82 079

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016



CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis continued)

THAZSREREEBNRR D T@

COST OF SALES

Our cost of sales mainly comprises utility expenses, depreciation expenses for property,
plant and equipment related to production, staff costs for our production team and other
expenses. Utility expenses, mainly consisting of electricity expenses and steam expenses,
represented 78.8% and 80.2% of our total cost of sales for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015, respectively. Depreciation and amortisation expenses related primarily
to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets we own and are calculated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of these assets. Staff costs mainly include
salaries, bonuses, benefits and contributions that we pay to our employees or the benefit
we make to our employees in our production team. Other expenses primarily consist of

other consumables as well as repair and maintenance.

Cost of sales increased by 9.0% from RMB5,369 million for the year ended 3| December
2015 to RMB5,850 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, which was mainly
driven by the increase in the revenue. Cost of sales as a percentage of revenue increased
from 67.8% for the year ended 3| December 2015 to 69.6% for the year ended 3|
December 2016.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Our gross profit increased slightly by 0.2% from RMB2,550 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to RMB2,554 million for the year ended 31 December 2016. Our gross
profit margin decreased from 32.2% for the year ended 31 December 2015 to 30.4% for
the year ended 3| December 2016, representing a slight decrease compared with last

year.

OTHER INCOME

Other income mainly includes subsidies and grants from local government authorities and
income from certain one-off transactions. In 2016, our Group repurchased USD37 million
senior notes and the relevant gain of RMB37 million on repurchase was recognised in

other income.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued

THRREZREREEENRR D e

SELLING EXPENSES

Our selling expenses primarily consist of freight charges for distribution and logistics
expenses and staff costs in connection with hiring and maintaining our sales team across
different regions in the PRC. Selling expenses decreased by 22.7% from RMB207 million
for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMBI60 million for the year ended 31

December 2016, mainly due to the tightened control over cost.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our administrative expenses primarily consist of staff costs in connection with hiring and
retaining our management and administrative staff at our headquarters and production
plant level, travel and entertainment expenses, external consulting fees and impairment
losses of trade receivables. Administrative expenses decreased by RMB27 million from
RMB501 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB474 million for the year
ended 3| December 2016, which is mainly due to decrease in allowance made by our
Group for doubtful debts of trade receivables on the on-site customers and merchant

customers.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Impairment losses of RMB47 million, in respect of certain building, plant and machinery of
the Group which were obsolete, damaged or that could not generate future economic

benefits, were provided against for impairment for the year ended 31 December 201 6.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)

THRRAHREREEENWRD M

In relation to the Kelamayi project involving the construction of a Coal to Hydrogen plant,
having assessed its prospects and our financial resources, we have decided to indefinitely
suspend the project and will not make any further investment in it. The equipment
purchased under the project will be transferred to other parts of the businesses of the
Company and its subsidiaries. As a result, it indicates that construction in progress of the
project in Kelamayi is impaired. The Company re-assessed the recoverable amount of this
project with reference to the fair value less cost of disposal of these assets. For the assets
which cannot be moved or disposed, mainly plant under construction and the capitalised
interest cost, we decided to make full impairment provision as it is expected that the
recoverable amount is minimal. While, the equipment and machinery in Kelamayi project
site are nearly brand new, mainly includes a set of air separator and a set of hydrogen
manufacturing converter, can be moved from the construction site in Kelamayi to another
project. The Company assessed recoverable amount of these equipment and machinery
based on these equipment and machinery's fair value less costs of disposal, by reference
to recent market prices of air separator set and hydrogen manufacturing converter set of
similar capacity and condition. As a result of the above, a total impairment loss of RMB
482 million for this project mainly related to the plant under construction in Kelamayi was

recognised for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Besides, impairment losses of RMB83 million were recognised on other construction
projects, mainly plants under construction, during the year ended 31 December 2016 due
to projects suspension, primarily based on their assessment that the recoverable amount

is minimal.

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS AND OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, our profit from operations decreased by 27.5% from
RMBI,875 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMBI,360 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016, while our operating profit margin decreased from 23.7%
for the year ended 31 December 2015 to 16.2% for the year ended 3| December 2016,
which is mainly due to impairment loss on property plant and equipment and construction

in progress of RMB 612 million.
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FINANCE INCOME
Our finance income mainly consists of interest income from bank deposits, finance income
on receivables under finance lease and the gain on remeasurement of derivative financial

instruments.

Finance income increased by [58.1% from RMB3I million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to RMB80 million for the year ended 31 December 201 6.

FINANCE COSTS
Our finance costs primarily consist of interest payments for our borrowings granted
by banks and other financial institutions as well as finance charges on obligations under

finance lease and exchange loss.

Finance costs increased by 5.1% from RMB968 million for the year ended 31 December
2015 to RMBI,017 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, mainly due to the
depreciation of Renminbi in 2016 resulting in foreign exchange loss of RMB406 million
incurred in connection with our outstanding foreign currency debts and increase in bank

borrowings.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expenses increased by 24.6% from RMB4 18 million for the year ended 3|
December 2015 to RMB521 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, primarily due
to the tax effect of non-deductible expenses arising from impairment losses on property,

plant and equipment, construction in progress, and trade receivables in China.

PROFIT/LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR
COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to the equity shareholders of our Company
decreased by 126.7% from RMB536 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to a
loss of RMB143 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests increased from RMB3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to a loss of RMB6 million for the year ended 31 December
2016.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

FEWUR R
As at 31 December
RI12A31H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

Trade receivables FEUER X 1,769,614 1,919,665
Bills receivable fEWEE 374,920 685,139
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERER (444,530) (376,809)

1,700,004 2,227,995

Our trade receivables decreased from approximately RMB2,228 million as at 31
December 2015 to approximately RMBI,700 million as at 31 December 2016. Our Group

has made sufficient amount of allowance for doubtful debts in this financial year.

Turover of trade receivables decreased from 82 days for the year ended 31 December

2015 to 79 days for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The following table sets out the tumover of our trade receivables for the years indicated:

BRIAMEKIRFA20I15F 12 A3 BHHARE
LBEETHEWICENAIBHNAARE
| 700 BB AEEEAFEEE T REHN
RERES o

FEN R A E A ZE2015F 12831 BIEF
B XREEZ2016F 12A3IBIEED
TI9K ©

TREIIN AR EE N RYERR A BE R -

Year ended 3| December

BENANALEE
2016 2015
Tumover of trade receivables (days)* FENR AR TR (R &)+ 79 82
Note: B
2 Calculated on the average of the beginning and ending trade receivables balances for the * BERERTS @ IR E S E ) RE R E

year, divided by revenue for the year, and multiplied by 360 days for a year in respect of the

years indicated.
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BORROWINGS RN
As at 31 December
RI12A31R
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Short-term borrowings AR 1,511,456 709,676
Current portion of long-term borrowings REE KAV BNER D 1n 2,367,313 893,662
3,878,769 1,603,338
Non-current portion of long-term borrowings REME e 3EENEAER 1 6,505,224 8,060,162
10,383,993 9,663,500
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES FEESRENER

We have historically met our working capital and other capital requirements principally
from equity provided by our shareholders, cash generated from operations, cash at
bank and on hand, short-term and long-term borrowings from banks and other financial

institutions and debt securities.

As at 31 December 2016, the total assets of our Group were approximately RMB19,223
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB351 million from 31 December
2015. The cash at bank and on hand was RMB737 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB59 million from 31 December 2015. The current ratio of our Group
was 67.8%. The gearing ratio of our Group that is calculated by dividing total liabilities by

total assets was 67.5%.

One subsidiary of our Group issued corporate bonds of aggregate amount of RMB980
million in October 2015 at an interest rate of 5.48% per annum, which will be due in
2020. Details of the corporate bonds are set out in note 24(h) to the consolidated

financial statements.

One subsidiary of our Group issued senior notes of an aggregate amount of US$250
million in August 2014 (“Senior Notes II") at an interest rate of 7.25% per annum,
which will be due in 2020. Details of the senior notes are set out in note 24(f) to the

consolidated financial statements.
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One subsidiary of our Group issued senior notes of an aggregate amount of USD425
million in April 2013 (“Senior Notes I'") at an interest rate of 8.125% per annum, which will
be due in 2018. Details of the senior notes are set out in note 24(f) to the consolidated

financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying value of assets pledged to secure for bank
borrowings and other loans was RMB3,545 million (31 December 2015: RMB2,580

million).

As at 31 December 2016, the total borrowings included a syndicated loan of
USD90,000,000 and HKD77,500,000 equivalent to RMB680,794,000. The Group has
failed to fulfil a financial covenant requirement in relation to the amount of the net
tangible assets of the Group (“Event of Default”) under the syndicated loan and the
Group has not remedied this requirement at the reporting date. Therefore, the syndicated
loan lenders have (via the syndicated loan agent) the right to require the syndicated
loan to be immediately repaid prior to its original repayment dates as defined in the
original syndicated loan agreement. As at 31 December 2016, the entire outstanding
amount of the syndicated loan was reclassified as current liabilities. The Directors are
in communication with the syndicated loan lenders about the syndicated loan and the
Event of Default. If the Directors are unable to come to an acceptable agreement with
the syndicated loan lenders with regards to the Event of Default and the Company is
unable to secure alternative funding to replace the syndicated loan, then an acceleration
of repayment of the syndicated loan may trigger a cross default of other financial
indebtedness and result in the Group being under an immediate repayment obligation for
such financial indebtedness. As of the date hereof, the Company has not received notice

from the syndicated loan agent to accelerate the repayment of the syndicated loan.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND WARRANTS

On 24 November 2013, our Company and China Development Bank International
Investment Limited (“CDB International”) entered into an investment agreement whereby
our Company agreed to issue and CDB International agreed to subscribe for (i) the
principal amount of US$25 million 8% coupon convertible bonds due 2015; and (ii) at
nil consideration, 18,953,853 warrants exercisable to purchase ordinary Shares of the

Company (the “CDB Intemational Warrants”).

The convertible bonds are convertible into Shares at the initial conversion price of
HK$8.80 per Share. If all the convertible bonds are converted at the initial conversion
price, a total of 22,024,148 new Shares will be issued. The initial price at which a share
will be issued upon exercise of a warrant will be HK$10.23. The total price at which
CDB International is entitled to acquire the warrant shares from our Company shall be
not more than US$25 million. The net proceeds from the issue of our convertible bonds
received by our Company is approximately US$25 million and were used as general
working capital of our Company. Upon full exercise of the subscription rights attaching
to the warrants, net proceeds of approximately US$25 million will be raised by our

Company, which will be used as general working capital of the Company.

As at 31 December 2016, the convertible bonds and warrants were mature and no Share

was converted.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditures principally comprise expenditures for the construction of new
production facilities, purchase of property, plant and equipment and other investments.
The annual total capital expenditure for 2016 was RMB928 million (2015: RMBI,123
million), principally comprised expenditures for the construction of new production
facilities, purchase of property, plant and equipment and other investments, which were

financed by a combination of our internal cash flows and bank borrowings.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of the pledged assets of our Group are set out in note 24(d) to the consolidated

financial statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

As at 3| December 2016, our Group entered into the capped forward contract
with the Bank to hedge against RMB/USD currency risk, in the principal amount of
USD 400 million. In view of the potential Renminbi exchange rate fluctuations, our Group
will consider arranging for proper financial instruments at appropriate time to avoid the

corresponding risks.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of the contingent liabilities of our Group are set out in notes 32(c) to the

consolidated financial statements.

STRATEGIES AND PROSPECTS
Our Company aims to consolidate and further strengthen our position as the leading

domestic independent on-site industrial gas supplier in the PRC.
In order to achieve this, we intend to pursue the following strategies:

0 capitalize on the outsourcing trend and consolidate and further strengthen our

leading position in the on-site industrial gas outsourcing market in Ching;

. “Go Deep” and “Go Wide" to develop our business and expand our business
network;

J further enhance and expand our Company's target markets through industry
diversification;

0 enhance our competitive strength in providing customized, unique and efficient

solutions to our customers through continuous innovation and research and

development; and

0 continue to attract and retain highly skilled professionals.
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EMPLOYEE, REMUNERATION POLICY AND INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY

Human resources and information technology have been essential to our Group's
success. Our staff is crucial assets of our Company. As such, we review our remuneration
policy and welfare from time to time to ensure it remains competitive. Our Company
has a balanced appraisal system to evaluate the staff's performance. For the long-term
development of all concerned, we provide relevant training to our staff, such as providing
financial supports to our staff for their further education and carrying out relevant
trainings for our management. Our Group has operated a training and research centre
in Hangzhou, where our staff could acquire more knowledge on industry safety and

technology.

As at 31 December 2016, our Group had 2,261 (31 December 2015: 2,707) employees.
The decrease in headcount was mainly a result of cancelation of certain projects under
construction, improvement of efficiency of plant management and streamlining our

Company's structure in 2016.

We believe that our Company's strong growth and maturity is credited to the expertise
of our high-calibre staff and their full support to our Company’s development strategy.
Our Company values every staff member, and therefore put forward a people-oriented
governance philosophy, endeavouring to provide our staff with an excellent working
environment and a sound promotion system, and to offer newly promoted staff
comprehensive on-the-job training, with a view to fostering a sense of belonging among
staff members and propping up their passion at work so that they may provide clients

with higher quality services.
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EXCELLENT MANAGEMENT

Our senior management and senior technicians have extensive experience in the
operation of industrial gas enterprises, as well as industry knowledge and know-how. Our
board of directors and management represent an excellent combination of expertise in
business operation, corporate finance, investment management and strategy, and business
development within the industrial gas industry. We also continue recruiting high-calibre
technicians and improving our operation systems and production technologies, in order to
provide customers with the best gas supply management solutions and other professional

services.

DIVIDENDS
The Directors do not recommend any final dividend for the year ended 31 December

2016 (2015: RMBO. 14 per Share).

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Stakeholders

Our Group's investor relations team is devoted to enabling the most effective
communication between our Company with shareholders, the financial community and
other stakeholders. Our Company adheres to the best practices of high transparency and
consistency in information disclosure no matter the market is favourable to the industrial
gas sector or otherwise. Our investor relations team has earned the recognition from
shareholders, investors and analysts on our Group's integrity in continuing to disclose
our Company's strategies and performance at the earliest date in 2016. Our Company's
investor relations team frequently reports to management and relevant departments on
stakeholders' comments and opinions so that we could keep improving our efficiency and
performance, with the ultimate goal of generating higher returns for our shareholders.
Communication between the stakeholders and our Company is a two-way process. Our

Company had made the following efforts in 201 6:
Providing updates to stakeholders through the following channels:
= announcements and notices published on the website of the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange, our Company's website, and/or dispatched to our shareholders pursuant

to the requirements of the Listing Rules;
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- our Company's financial reports;

- our annual and extraordinary general meetings, attended by top management

representatives and Directors; and

- investors conferences and meetings.

Encouraging feedback from stakeholders through the following channels:

- face-to-face dialogue at our annual and extraordinary general meetings;

= communication with stakeholders via email or telephone. Our Company also
replied email and telephone enquiries from stakeholders directly. If it was a matter

of general interest to stakeholders, we would seek to address it in subsequent

corporate communication to all stakeholders; and

- site visits. Our Company has organized a few site visits for the stakeholders to

inspect our production facilities across China in 2016.

Our Company collected and reported to the management team regularly about

stakeholders' comments and suggestions on our operations.

We are grateful to all stakeholders who offered us support and provided us with feedback
during 2016. If any stakeholder has questions or comments on our Company's work,

please contact us at ir@yingdegas.com.
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PROSPECTS

Despite that the industrial gas market was affected by weak global economy and the
uncertainties of China's economic and regulatory environment in 2016, our Group will
continue to consolidate our business and will endeavour to explore new industries,

geographic regions, customers and business models.

Pursuing the above goals, our Group will strive for outstanding performance in 2017 and

reciprocate our shareholders with admirable retumn.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
SENEGREEEGRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN

Mr. Zhongguo Sun, aged 53, was initially appointed as the chairman, chief executive
officer of our Company and an executive Director on 12 November 2007 and was
subsequently re-elected as a Director on 19 May 2010, 21 June 2013 and 8 March 2017.
Mr. Sun resigned as an executive Director, the chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, with effect from the conclusion of a Board meeting
on 20 April 2017. Mr. Sun was one of the founders of our Group and has been a director
and the general manager of our Group since 2001. Mr. Sun is responsible for the overall
management and strategy of our Group. Mr. Sun has more than ten years experience
in the industrial gas industry. Prior to establishing our Group, Mr. Sun was the business
manager of applied gas solution at BOC Group Plc,. Mr. Sun received a Master's degree in

Science in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Pittsburgh in 1989.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt, aged 65, was appointed as an executive Director on 20 May
2010 and was subsequently re-elected as a Director on 26 May 201, 9 May 2014 and 8
March 2017. He is also the chief operating officer of our Company. Mr. Strutt resigned as
an executive Director and the Chief Operating Officer of the Company, with effect from
the conclusion of a Board meeting on 20 April 2017. Mr. Strutt was one of the founders
of our Group and has been the deputy general manager responsible for the overall
operational aspects of our Group since establishment. Mr. Strutt has more than 20 years
experience in the industrial gas industry. Prior to establishing our Group, he held various
positions at BOC Group Plc,. Mr. Strutt received a Bachelor’ s degree in Science with
Honors in Materials Science from the University of Sussex in 1975 and a Master's degree
in Business Administration from the University of Leeds in 2001. Mr. Strutt is a member of
the Institute of Materials, Minerals and Mining, and is a registered member of the United

Kingdom Engineering Council — Chartered Engineer.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Tak-Wai, aged 40, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 6 April
2017. He is a Managing Director with PAG Asia Capital. He previously worked with TPG
Capital from 2005 to 2010. He has also worked in Morgan Stanley's investment banking
division in Hong Kong, San Francisco and Beijing. Mr. Wong received a Bachelor of Science

degree and a Bachelor of Arts degree from University of California, Berkeley.

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei, aged 48, was initially appointed as a non-executive Director on 6
April 2017 and was subsequently re-designated as an executive Director and appointed as
the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of our Company, with effect from
the conclusion of a Board meeting on 20 April 2017. Mr. Qiu is a Managing Director with
PAG Asia Capital. He previously worked with Hony Capital for |0 years, responsible for
overall PE business management and investment execution. Mr. Qiu also worked with
China Yintai Investments as its head of equity direct investments, where he built and led
the Yintai's SOE buyout team. He also worked with Hua Neng Group and Goldpark
China, responsible for mergers and acquisitions, business development, project planning
and development. Mr. Qiu has a MBA from Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern
University and Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, and a BS in Engineering
from Xi'an Jiaotong University. Mr Qiu served as an executive director of Century Ginwa
Retail Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code: 00162) from 15 November 2010 to 31 March 2015.

Mr. Xiao Suining, aged 69, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 3 April 2017.
He is a Managing Director with PAG Asia Capital. He was previously the Chairman of
Ping An Bank (formerly known as Shenzhen Development Bank) from 2009 to 2013 and
President of Shenzhen Development Bank from 2007 to 2009. Prior to joining Shenzhen
Development Bank, Mr. Xiao spent |7 years at Bank of Communications, including as
President of its Shenzhen branch. Mr. Xiao is currently an independent non-executive
director of Nan Hai Corporation Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 680) and Sino-i Technology Limited (a company
listed on Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 250). Mr. Xiao is also
currently an independent non-executive director of Haitong Securities Company Limited (a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600837) and an independent
director of Zhongrun Resources Investment Corporation* (B & JR#&% & & {0 A R A 7]
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000506) and Beijing SPC
Environment Protection Tech Co, Ltd* (L RIBFTIRFRMRNDBIR 2, a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002573).
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Mr. He Hui David, aged 56, was appointed as a non-executive Director on |3 April
2017. He is a Managing Director and Head of Operations with PAG Asia Capital. He was
previously Head of Portfolio Management Group at Bain Capital Asia for 8 years until
2015. Prior to joining Bain Capital Asia, Mr. He spent |3 years at General Electric in its
healthcare, advanced materials and corporate groups. Mr. He is currently a non-executive
director of SinoMedia Holding Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 623).

Mr. He received his MBA degree from Kellogg School of Business at Northwestern
University, Ph.D. in Applied Physics from The University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, MS in
Physics from Chinese Academy of Science and BS in Physics from the Peking University in

China.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Fuya, aged 50, was initially appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 12 September 2009 and was subsequently re-elected as a Director on 26
May 2011 and 9 May 2014. Mr. Zheng was a director of Cogo Group, Inc, a company
listed on the NASDAQ and has since | January 2008 served as the chief financial officer
of the same company. Mr. Zheng was previously a vice president of travel service at
elong, Inc, one of the leading online travel service companies in China and listed on the
NASDAQ, where Mr. Zheng was responsible for the overall operation of eLong Inc.'s
travel services. Mr. Zheng has more than ten years experience in the service industry. Mr.
Zheng received a Bachelor's degree of Business Administration majoring in accounting

from City University of New York in 1994.
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Dr. Wang Ching, aged 62, was initially appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 4 December 2009 and was subsequently re-elected as a Director on |5
June 2012 and 29 April 2015. Dr. Wang has more than 20 years of working experience
in global financial industry specialising in asset management, direct investment, corporate
finance, equity and fixed income trading/sales with particular focus in the U.S. and
the Greater China region. Dr. Wang is currently the managing director of Shanghai
International Asset Management (HK) Co. Ltd., a licensed corporation registered with
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission, and the executive director of Shanghai
International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited, an investment fund company listed
on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 770). He also serves
as an independent non-executive director of Minth Group Limited (stock code: 425), a
leading supplier of exterior automobile body parts in China as well as China Singyes Solar
Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 750), a fast growing professional thin-film
BIPV building engineering company, in which he advises senior management on business
strategies and financial development in the fast changing China market. Dr. Wang had
served as the CEO of the Investment & Proprietary Trading Group for Jih Sun Financial
Holding Co,, Ltd. in Taiwan, Chairman of FENB Securities, Inc. in U.S, Managing Director
of SinoPac Securities (Asia) Hong Kong, Managing Director of S Cresvale International
Securities, Director of Investment Banking of Standard Chartered Bank in Hong Kong, and
Associate Director of Bear Stearns & Co,, Inc. in New York. Dr. Wang received his Ph.D.

in Finance from Columbia University in New York.

Mr. Jhi-Ho Mah, aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
3 March 2017. Mr. Mah resigned as an independent non-executive Director, with effect
from the conclusion of a Board meeting on 20 April 2017. Mr. Mah worked in Yingde
Gases from 2008-2013. Prior to the Company, Mr. Mah was the General Manager of
Shipley Union DFR (Cayman) Co,, Ltd in 2001-2006 and the Assistant Vice President of
Lien Hwa Industrial Gases in 1970-1999. Mr. Mah also was the supervisor of Taiwan H.P.
Gases Association in 1985-1988, Director of H.P. Vessel Industry Association in 1998-
2001, and Director of Welding Industry Association in 1998-2001. Mr. Mah completed
study in English for Business in Tamkang University of Art and Science, Taiwan in 1973 and
in Management and Marketing in University of Hawaii, USA in 1985.
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Mr. Rawen Zhi Hong Huang, aged 32, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 12 March 2017. Mr. Huang is the founder and portfolio manager of Petrel
Capital Management Limited which is the manager to Petrel Capital Greater China Fund,
a private investment fund focusing on Greater China equities. Prior to founding Petrel
Capital in 2015, Mr. Huang worked as an investment analyst at Oasis, focusing on listed
Chinese companies. Earlier in his career, Mr. Huang worked as an investment banking
analyst at Morgan Stanley in New York, where he advised on a wide range of transactions
including mergers, acquisitions, capital raising, and restructuring. Mr. Huang graduated
from Yale University with a Bachelor of Arts in Economics and Intemational Studies, and

received his Masters of Business Administration from Harvard Business School.

Mr. David Chan, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 27 March 2017. He is an independent business management consultant. Mr. Chan
worked as the Head of Strategic Marketing at Linde Gas Greater China region from 2012
to May 2015, and as a Business Development Director at Linde Electronics Asia from
2010 to 2012. Mr. Chan worked in BOC Lien Hwa Industrial Gases Co,, Ltd. (a joint
venture company of the Linde Group) as the Head of Marketing from 2008 to 2010.
He worked as a General Manager in BOC S&SE Asia from 2003 to 2007. Mr. Chan held
various positions in BOC Process Plants from 1995 to 2002. Mr. Chan graduated from the
University of Bradford with a Bachelor of Engineering degree in Chemical Engineering in

1989.

Mr. Deng Xipeng, aged 38, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
27 March 2017. He is an investment director and a member of the investment committee
at Shengshi Jinquan (Tianjin) Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd., where he
advised on fund promotion, raising and issuance. From 2007 to 2010 Mr. Deng was a
general manager assistant of the investment banking department of the Capital Securities
Limited Liability Company. From 2005 to 2007, Mr. Deng was a manager at the Enterprise
Risk Department of Ernst & Young Hua Ming Certified Public Accountants. From 2003
to 2005, Mr. Deng worked as a consultant at BiBo Management Consulting Co., Ltd.
Mr. Deng graduated from Capital University of Business and Economics in Beijing with a
Bachelor's degree of Economics in Foreign Accounting in 2000 and received a Master's
degree in Business Administration from Renmin University of China in 2007. Mr. Deng is a

Certified Internal Auditor.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Zhongguo Sun - please refer to his biography under the sub-section headed -

“Executive Director and Chairman”.

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt - please refer to his biography under the sub-section headed -

"“Executive Director”.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Mok Ming Wai, was appointed as the company secretary of our Company on 24
June 2013. Ms. Mok is a director of KCS Hong Kong Limited, she has over 20 years
of professional and in-house experience in the company secretarial field. Ms. Mok is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. She currently acts as the

company secretary or joint company secretary of various publicly listed companies.

Ms. Wong Sze Wing has resigned as a joint company secretary of our Company on 9

March 2017,
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Directors’ Report
EEEWE

The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited consolidated financial

statements of our Group for the year ended 3| December 2016.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Our Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong is at Room 3212-13, 32/F,
Tower Two, Times Square, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong and has its registered office at

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KYI-1111, Cayman lslands.

PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS
Based on the research information in the SAI Report, we were the largest domestic
independent industrial gas supplier in China in terms of total revenue for the year ended

3| December 2016.

We produce, supply and distribute a variety of industrial gas products to our on-site and
merchant customers from a number of locations in the PRC, with oxygen, nitrogen and
argon being our main gas products. Our on-site customers are those whose premises our
gas production facilities are located on or in close proximity to and to whom we supply
industrial gases directly. Our merchant customers are liquid gas distributors who purchase

industrial gases from us on a spot market basis from time to time.

The analysis of our Group's revenue is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
Results of our Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 105.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
The business review of our Company for the year and the future development of our
Company are set out in the sections of “Chairman’s Statement” and “CEQO's Report and

Management Discussion & Analysis” of this annual report.
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
An analysis of our Group's performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the sections of “CEO's report and Management Discussion &

Analysis” and “Financial Summary" of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING BY THE COMPANY
We are exposed to the cyclical nature of our major customers’ industries and
economic conditions in China

We produce, supply and sell our gas products in China to on-site customers operating
in a limited number of industries, primarily the steel, chemical and non-ferrous metals
industries. These industries are cyclical in nature and are largely affected by the economic

growth and industrialization of China.

We rely on a limited number of customers and gas products to derive the substantial
portion of our revenue

We currently generate a substantial portion of our revenue from a limited number of
customers, all of which are located in China. In addition, we generate substantially all of
our revenue from a limited number of gas products, namely, oxygen, nitrogen and argon.
We anticipate that the revenue generated by these major customers and limited number
of gas products will continue to represent a substantial proportion of our revenue in
the near future. Any significant decline in the business or financial condition of our major
customers could adversely affect the demand for our products and our major customers'
ability to satisfy their obligations under the take-or-pay gas supply contracts they have

entered into with us.

We are exposed to risks that our on-site customers may default or prematurely
terminate under our gas supply contracts

We generally enter into long-term take-or-pay gas supply contracts with our major on-
site customers. However, if any of our major on-site customers terminates its gas supply
contract prior to the expiration of the contractual term, defaults on or delays payments
under such contracts, fails to take delivery of our gas products in accordance with our
long-term gas supply contracts or fails to comply with the price adjustment provisions
in the gas supply contracts with respect to utility costs, our revenue and profitability will
be adversely affected and our expenditures related to the construction, start-up and
operation of our production facilities may not be fully or partially recovered during that
period of operations. In the event that our customers delay or default on payments, we

may be required to commence legal proceedings to enforce the contract terms.
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The majority of our contracts with merchant customers are short-term and do not
have fixed prices and as a result, the merchant market demand for, and the prices of,
our gas products may fluctuate

Due to the commodity nature of our gas products, we have limited bargaining power
in relation to pricing. Any decrease in the demand and prices for our gas products will
generally result in a decrease in the turnover and margins of our merchant business, which

may adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Fluctuations in the value of the Renminbi may materially and adversely effect our
results of operations and financial condition

Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving Renminbi must take place through People's Bank of China (the "PBOC") or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange rate adopted
for the foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the PBOC that

would be subject to a managed float against an unspecified basket of currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance of earnings outside the PRC, are
subject to the availability of foreign currency (which depends on the foreign currency
denominated earnings of our Group) or must be arranged through the PBOC with

government approval.

All the revenue-generating operations of our Group are transacted in Renminbi. Our
Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on financial assets and financial liabilities that
are denominated in currencies other than Renminbi. Depreciation or appreciation of the
Renminbi against foreign currencies can affect the Group's results. Our Group did not

hedge its foreign currency exposure.

DIVIDENDS

Our Directors of the Company do not recommend any final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2016, the full year dividend of RMBO.139 per Share. (2015: RMBO0.20 per
Share).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A five-year financial summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of our Group is

set out on pages 246 to 247.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of our Group and our Company during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 30(a) to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Our Company's total distributable reserves as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
RMB425 million (2015: RMBI,061 million).

SHARE CAPITAL
Movements in the share capital of our Company during the year ended 3| December

2016 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in our Group's property, plant and equipment are set out in note || to the

consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND CAPITALISATION OF INTERESTS

Details of borrowings of our Group during the year are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements. Details of our Group's capitalised interests expenses
and other borrowing costs during the year are set out in note 6(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Details of the retirement benefit plans of our Group are set out in note 6(b) to the

consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF OUR COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES
During the year under review, neither our Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, sold or redeemed any of our Company's listed securities.

REPURCHASE OF SENIOR NOTES

In 2016, Yingde Gases Investment Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company)
repurchased a total of principal amount of USD30 million (approximately equivalent to
RMBI197 million) and USD7 million (approximately equivalent to RMB47 million) of the
senior notes issued by it in April 2013 and August 2014, respectively, at an aggregate
consideration of USD32 million (approximately equivalent to RMB207 million). The gain
of RMB37 million on the above-mentioned senior notes purchase was recognized in other

income of our Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved by a resolution of the shareholders
on |12 September 2009 and adopted by a resolution of the Board on |2 September 2009.
Unless it is terminated by the Board or our shareholders in general meeting in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the date on which it became unconditional. After
the period, no further options will be granted or offered but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to exercise any subsisting options
granted prior to the expiry of this ten year period or otherwise as handled in accordance
with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme. As at the date of this annual report, the

remaining life of the Share Option Scheme was approximately 2 years and 5 months.

The amount payable by a participant upon acceptance of a grant of option is RMBI.00.
The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer any employee, management member or
Director of our Company, or any of our subsidiaries and third party service providers
the options to subscribe for shares on the terms set out in the Share Option Scheme.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain skilled and experienced
personnel, to incentivize them to remain with us and to give effect to our customer-
focused corporate culture, and to motivate them to strive for our future development
and expansion, by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in our

Company.
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The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 0% of the issued Shares as at the

date of approval of the Share Options Scheme (ie. a total of 180,923,250 Shares).

No option shall be granted to any one person such that the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon the exercise of options granted and to be granted to that person
in any 12 month period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of our issued share

capital from time to time, unless the approval of our shareholders is obtained.

The amount payable for each Share to be subscribed for under an option upon exercise
shall be determined by the Board and notified to a proposed beneficiary at the time of
offer of the option and shall be not less than the higher of:

(@)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's daily

quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must be a Business Day;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet for the five Business Days immediately preceding the date of

grant; and
() the nominal value of the Shares.

The Share Option Scheme does not contain any minimum period(s) for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised. However, at the time of grant of the options, our

Company may specify any such minimum period(s).

Under the Share Option Scheme, a total of 3,832,500 share options were granted to
the Directors and no share options were exercised by the Directors as at 3| December
2016. If all the granted share options are exercised at the exercise prices, the Company
will receive HK$16,844,625. As at 3| December 2016, as no Shares were issued under
the Share Option Scheme, the total number of Share available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme remained to be 180,923,250, representing approximately 9.57% of the

issued share capital of the Company.
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The following table sets out the movements of the Company's share options during the

TREIARABBREFANESER :

year:
Closing
price of
the Shares
immedately Outstanding Outstanding
before the asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat
dateof  Exercise | January during during during during 31 December
Name of grantees Date of grant  Exercise period grant price 2016 the year the year the year the year 2016
RERY #0165 10165
ARG IAIA 12831 R
ARARS RAiRA frfEsE bl  ORE  HATE  FACRE  FASHE  FASAX  EAEE  HAOE
Directors
g%
Mr. Zhongguo Sun 161072014 161072014 - 656 6.62 700,000 = = = = 700,000
Zhongauo S 15/1012019
/1172015 /117015~ 338 33 1,490,000 = = = = 1,490,000
1971172020
Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt 16/1072014 16/1072014 - 656 6.62 350000 = = = = 350000
Trevor Raymond Strutt 24 157102019
/1172015 W/117015- 338 33 745000 = = = = 745000
1971172020
Mr. Zhao Xiangfi 16/1072014 161072014 - 656 662 175000 = = = = 175000
ks 1571072019
/1172015 /117015~ 338 33 372500 = = = = 372500
1971172020
Total 3832500 = = = = 3832500
a%
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SHARE ALLOTMENT SCHEME

On 8 July 2013, our Company adopted a share allotment scheme (“Share Allotment
Scheme”). The purpose of the Share Allotment Scheme s to recognise the contributions
of certain employees and to give incentives for them to work with commitment towards
enhancing the value of our Company and to attract high caliber personnel for further

development of our Group.

The Board has the power to administer the Share Allotment Scheme in accordance
with the rules of the Share Allotment Scheme. Our Company shall bear the costs of
establishing and administering the Share Allotment Scheme. The trustee will borrow the
loans, hold the Shares and the income derived therefrom, and perform its duties of trustee
in accordance with the terms of the trust deed and such other applicable agreements as
agreed between our Company and the trustee from time to time either in its own name
or in the name of a nominee or an investment/asset holding vehicle established solely
for the purposes of the Share Allotment Scheme. The allotted shares held by the trustee
shall be fully vested on the participating employee on the tenth anniversary date of the
reference date provided that the participating employee remains at all times after the

reference date an employee.

The participating employees of the Share Allotment Scheme are mid-and-senior-level
management team of our Company selected by the Board at its sole discretion on the
basis of the employee’s contribution to the development and growth of our Group and

such other matters that the Board considers relevant.

The maximum number of the Shares which may be allotted to a participating employee
under the Share Allotment Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of our

Company as at the date of the adoption of the Share Allotment Scheme.

In respect of each participating employee, the Board shall cause a loan to be lent to the
trustee, being the sum of (i) the closing price of the allotted shares in respect of the
participating employee as at the reference date and (i) the related purchase expenses
incurred by the trustee from our Company's resources as soon as practicable. Within 15
business days after borrowing the loan from our Company, the trustee shall apply the

same towards the acquisition of the allotted shares at the prevailing market price.
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Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board under the Share
Allotment Scheme, the Share Allotment Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
term of |13 years commencing on the date of the adoption of the Share Allotment
Scheme (provided that no further Shares will be allotted to any employee after the
third anniversary of the date of the adoption of the Share Allotment Scheme) but the
provisions of the Share Allotment Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and in
all other respects. As at the date of this annual report, the remaining life of the Share

Allotment Scheme was approximately 9 years and 3 months.

The maximum number of new Shares to be issued by the Company and allotted to the
trustee under the Share Allotment Scheme will be 180,683,000 Shares, representing
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the adoption of the
Share Allotment Scheme. As at 31 December 2016, a total of 97,600,000 Shares had
been issued and allotted under the Share Allotment Scheme. As at the date of this
annual report, 83,083,000 Shares were available for allotment under the Share Allotment
Scheme, representing approximately 4.4% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2016.

According to the Share Allotment Scheme, for subscription of the new Shares issued by
our Company, the Board has the discretion to decide the issue price up to 10% discount

to the 30-day average closing price of the Shares prior to the reference date.

2013 Allotment

On |5 October 2013, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Share
Allotment Scheme, the Company allotted 22,600,000 Shares to the trustee holding on
behalf of the participating employees at an issue price of HK$7.03 per Share (the “2013
Allotment”). The total proceeds used by the trustee to subscribe for the allotted Shares
was HK$158,878,000, which was borrowed from our Company by the trustee pursuant
to the Share Allotment Scheme. The trustee shall hold the Shares and the income derived
therefrom and perform its duties of trustee in accordance with the terms of the trust
deed and such other applicable agreements as agreed between our Company and the

trustee from time to time.

2015 April Allotment

In order to allot Shares at a lower price to the existing participating employees to
appreciate their long services to our Company as well as to offer an opportunity for some
of our Company's new employees to participate in the Share Allotment Scheme, our
Company further issued and allotted 36,000,000 new Shares at the issue price of HK$5.59
per allotted Share to the trustee holding on behalf of the participating employees on 28
April 2015 (2015 April Allotment”) pursuant to the Share Allotment Scheme to replace
the 2013 Allotment.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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The total proceeds used by the trustee to subscribe for the allotted Shares was
HK$201,240,000, which was borrowed from our Company by the trustee pursuant
the Share Allotment Scheme. The trustee shall hold the Shares and the income derived
therefrom and perform its duties of trustee in accordance with the terms of the trust
deed and such other applicable agreements as agreed between our Company and the

trustee from time to time.

2015 December Allotment

In order to allot Shares at a lower price to the existing participating employees to
appreciate their long services to our Company as well as to offer an opportunity for some
of our Company's new employees to participate in the Share Allotment Scheme, our
Company further issued and allotted 39,000,000 new Shares at the issue price of HK$3.32
per allotted Share to the trustee holding on behalf of the participating employees on 7
December 2015 (2015 December Allotment”) pursuant to the Share Allotment Scheme
to replace the 2015 April Allotment.

The total proceeds used by the trustee to subscribe for the allotted Shares was
HK$129,480,000, which was borrowed from our Company by the trustee pursuant to
the Share Allotment Scheme. The trustee shall hold the Shares and the income derived
therefrom and perform its duties of trustee in accordance with the terms of the trust
deed and such other applicable agreements as agreed between our Company and the

trustee from time to time.

The allotted Shares held by the trustee shall be fully vested on the participating employee
on |6 September 2023, being the tenth anniversary date of the reference date of
2013 Allotment, provided that the participating employee remains at all times after the

reference date till vesting date an employee of our Company.
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Changes in the number of allotted Shares during the year under review are set out below:

A TSI BB F AR R 8B H& 1L

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

HE2016F BE0I15%

RA3IBLEE  12A3IBHILEFE

Outstanding at the beginning of the year FBRE 39,000,000 22,400,000
Granted during the year AERE = 75,000,000
Forfeited during the year (notes |, 2) AFEIE(HEEL 2) (2,400,000) (58,300,000)
Vested during the year (note 3) AERE(HEE3) == (100,000)
Outstanding at the end of the year ERERE 36,600,000 39,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the year FRAITE — —

Notes:

. Since the completion of the 2015 December Allotment, three participating employees

resigned from the Group and one participating employee be re-designated as a non-

executive director of the Company, all the 2,400,000 Shares allotted to them were forfeited.

2. 22,400,000 Shares under 2013 Allotment, 35,900,000 Shares under 2015 April Allotment and
2,400,000 Shares mentioned in note | above under 2015 December Allotment had been

forfeited for the purpose of the Share Allotment Scheme, and are held by the trustee. The

trustee will cause such Shares to be sold at a time to be recommended by the committee

established under the Share Allotment Scheme.

3. During the year of 2015, one participating employee passed away. According to the Share

Allotment Scheme rules, in the event of the death of a participating employee, the trustee

shall hold the allotted Shares upon Trust and to transfer the same to the representative of

such participating employee. As at 31 December 2016, the trustee is holding all the 100,000

vested Shares allotted to the deceased participating employee upon trust, pending the claim

of the representative of such deceased participating employee.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save for the CDB International Warrants, the Share Option Scheme and Share Allotment
Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company or existed

during the year ended 31 December 201 6.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhongguo Sun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) '
Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt 2

Mr. Zhao Xiangti *

Mr. Zhang Yunfeng *

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei °

Mr. Wong Tak-Wai ©

Mr. Xiao Suining /

Mr. He Hui David®

Mr. He Yuanping *

Mr. Suo Yaotang '°

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Fuya (Alternate: Dr. Wang Ching) "
Dr. Wang Ching (Alternate: Mr. Zheng Fuya) 2
Mr. Mah Jhi-Ho

Mr. Huang Rawen Zhi Hong '*

Mr. David Chan '*

Mr. Deng Xipeng '°

Dr. Feng Ke 7
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Notes:

Mr. Zhongguo Sun was re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive
Director, ceased to be the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company on 5 November 2016. He was re-designated from a non-executive Director to
an executive Director and appointed as the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company on 12 March 2017. He resigned as the chairman of the Board, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and an executive Director, with effect from the
conclusion of a Board meeting on 20 April 2017.

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt was re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive
Director on 5 November 2016, He was re-designated from a non-executive Director to an
executive Director on |2 March 2017. He resigned as the Chief Operating Officer of the
Company and an executive Director, with effect from the conclusion of a Board meeting on
20 April 2017.

Mr. Zhao Xiangti was appointed as the chairman of the Board on 5 November 2016. He was
removed as an executive Director and ceased to serve as the chairman of the Board and on
8 March 2017.

Mr. Zhang Yunfeng was appointed as an executive Director on 5 November 2016. He was
removed as an executive Director on 8 March 2017.

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei was appointed as a non-executive Director on 6 April 2017. He was re-
designated as an executive Director and appointed as the chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, with effect from the conclusion of a Board meeting
on 20 April 2017.

Mr. Wong Tak-Wai was appointed as a non-executive Director on 6 April 2017.

Mr. Xiao Suining was appointed as a non-executive Director on |3 April 2017.

Mr. He Hui David was appointed as a non-executive Director on 13 April 2017.

Mr. He Yuanping was re-designated from an independent non-executive Director to an
executive Directors and appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company on 5
November 2016. He was resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company and re-
designated as a non-executive Director on 2 March 2017 and was removed as a non-
executive Director on 8 March 2017.

Mr. Suo Yao Tang was appointed as a non-executive Director on 5 November 2016 and was
removed as a non-executive Director on 8 March 2017.

Mr. Zheng Fuya was appointed as alterate Director to Dr. Wang Ching on 23 March 2017.

Dr. Wang Ching was appointed as alternate Director to Mr. Zheng Fuya on 23 March 2017.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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[3. Mr Mah Jhi-Ho was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 8 March 2017.
He resigned as an independent non-executive Director, with effect from the conclusion of a
Board meeting on 20 April 2017.

4. Mr. Huang Rawen Zhi Hong was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 12
March 2017.

[5. Mr. David Chan was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 27 March
2017.

6. Mr. Deng Xipeng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 27 March
2017.

I7. Dr. Feng Ke was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 5 November 2016
and was removed as an independent non-executive Director on 8 March 2017.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with our Company or any member of our
Company which is not determinable by our Company within one year without the

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to our Group's business
to which our Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its parent company
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year or

at any time during the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was our Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, our Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of our
Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any such right save as disclosed

in the report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF OUR
COMPANY AND OUR ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of our Company in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of our
Company and our associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required to be entered in the register kept by our Company under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to our Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code of the Listing Rules contained in Appendix 10

were as follows:

ESERERTHRAERARARARHEAH
TENRG HEROREFNERR
RE

R2N16F 128318 ARARIEZ REm TR
ABRARAR REBEER (R R(ESF R
BEBIEXVE) MG - BERHG REHT
BERTERARAIREES RAERINE
EBFEE B M - kiR £ WA IR 8%
THE EETAENERAR REBL AN
HERRARIT :

Approximate

percentage
Name Nature of interest Number of Shares of shareholding
1 BEME FREEROHE BRENEI L
(Note)
(FfEE)
Mr. Zhongguo Sun Beneficiary of a trust 373,000,000 (long position)
Zhongguo Sun3t 4 EREEA 373,000,000 (§F&)
Beneficial owner 2,190,000 (long position)
BERBEAA 2,190,000 (42
375,190,000 (long position) 19.85%
375,190,000 (4#2)
Mr. Zhao Xiangti Deemed interest, 233,129,585 (long position)
IR A interest of controlled company
BERA RS (EHA RS 233,129585 (47 8)
Beneficial owner 1,439,500 (long position)
BExEAA 11439500 (4F2)
234,569,085 (long position) 12.41%
234,569,085 (4 R)
Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt Founder of a discretionary trust 184,352,961 (long position)
Trevor Raymond Strutt/e4E  2R{SFEMMILA 184,352,961 ({5 &)
Beneficial owner 1,095,000 (long position)
BEBEAA 1095000 (4 2)
185,447,961 (long position) 9.81%

Note: There were 1,890,573,500 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2016.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of our Company or their associates (including their spouses and children under
I8 years of age) had any interest or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of our Company or our associated corporations, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to our

Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
OUR COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following persons
(other than the Directors and chief executive of our Company) had interests or short

positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of our Company as recorded in the register

BRESCFEEESN - R2016F 128318 &
AAES FROIBABIEZZHEA(RE
HEHEBRAM 8RN T2 BERKA A
AR EE 2R - MERNDRESFTHEER
DHRBEESRAERAZINNKEFELE
DMARBEEETAANERAR RE B
RFHERSAE °

FERRREMATRROREBR G
MEZRAR

R2016F12A318 RESHH THAL
(AREMEEREETHABRINERAR
B(EH RS SN )E 336 5B LR EFT1E

required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as follows: ZRMANERARDKIBERDERIAR
mr

Approximate

Number of percentage

Name Nature of interest Shares of shareholding

=L BEME FrEERGOEE BREAEDL

(Note)

(L)

Baslow Technology Limited Beneficial owner 184,352,961 (long position) 9.75%
BESBEBA 184,352,961 (§8)

Baslow Resources Limited Deemed interest, interest of controlled company 184,352,961 (long position) 9.75%
HIFHEARR (5 AFES) 184352961 (47 &)

Bubbly Brooke Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 373,000,000 (long position) 19.73%
BERSEBA 373,000,000 (48)

Li Hongmei Founder of a discretionary trust 373,000,000 (long position) 19.73%
R EREEFHRILA 373,000,000 (47 &)

Rongton Investments Limited ~ Beneficial owner 233,129,585 (long position) 12.33%

REREERARA] BB A
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Approximate

Number of percentage
Name Nature of interest Shares of shareholding
=L BEE FrEERGOEE BERBNEDL
(Note)
(F&E)
Equity Trustee Limited Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 557,352,961 (long position) 29.48%
RN (BHBZFEARIN) 557,352,961 (#78)
Rouser Investments Inc. Deemed interest, interest of controlled company 373,000,000 (long position) 19.73%
RIFHEAER (5 ARES) 373,000,000 (47 2&")
Aberdeen Asset Investment manager 169,888,000 (long position) 8.99%
Management Plc and RELE 169,888,000 (4 &)
its Associates (together
“The Aberdeen Group")
on behalf of Accounts
managed by the
Aberdeen Group
Aberdeen Global Beneficial Owner 113,065,000 (long position) 5.98%
EmBEAA 113,065,000 (4 &)
KCS Trust Limited Trustee (Other than a bare trustee) 97,400,000 (long position) 5.15%
RN (BHBRFEARIN) 97,400,000 (472
Ultra Growth Management Beneficial Owner 97,400,000 (long position) 5.15%
Limited BEREAA 97,400,000 (472
Originwater Hong Kong Beneficial owner 268,674,730 (long position) 14.21%
Environmental Protection BB A 268,674,730 (478 )
Co,, Limited
Beijing OriginWater Interest of controlled company 268,674,730 (long position) 14.21%
Technology Co., Ltd. NG 268,674,730 (17 2)
UBS Group AG Person having a security interest in shares 94,169,835 (long position)
HB B REEEHA 94,169,835 (472
Interest of controlled company 1,942,595 (long position)
2L NGl Fo 942,595 (§8)
96,112,430 (long position) 5.08%
96,112,430 (1 &)
Interest of controlled company 2,625,000 (short position) 0.14%

IR AR

Note: There were 1,890,573,500 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2016.

2,625,000 (% &)

BisE: M20I16F12A318 B % 171,890,573,500

B -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, our Company was not aware of
any person (other than the Directors and chief executive of our Company) who had
an interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of our Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by our Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association and there is
no restriction against such rights which would oblige our Company to offer new shares on

a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors have any ownership in other businesses which compete or are

likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of our Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of our Company were entered into or existed during the

year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Our Company has received an annual confirmation of independence during the year
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and our Company considers that all independent non-executive Directors are

being considerated to be independent.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, our Group had a total of 2,261 employees (2015:
2,707employees). Total staff costs (including Directors emoluments) incurred for the year
ended 31 December 2016 amounted to approximately RMB279 million (2015: RMB325
million). Remuneration packages of the Directors are recommended by the remuneration
committee and approved by the Board. Employee remuneration will be determined by
the management with reference to individual performance and experience and industry

practice.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year ended 3| December

2016.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

As our Group obtains our major raw material, air, at no cost, electricity, which comprises
over 60% of our total cost of sales, is therefore the largest item of our total purchases. As
our Group normally secures our electricity supply for our on-site gas operations through
contractual arrangements with our on-site customers, our current five largest suppliers
are all our on-site customers. Our Group generally obtains electricity from our on-site
customers at the market rate set by state-owned electricity grid companies. Electricity
is usually supplied to our on-site customers by local electricity companies which are
state-owned enterprises. As our Group generally collects our receivables from our on-
site customers and makes payment to on-site customers for our electricity usage at or
around the same time, their payments to us are generally netted off to take into account
our electricity expenses to our on-site customers. Our five largest suppliers together
accounted for approximately 38.8% (2015: approximately 38.1%) of the total purchases
for the year ended 3| December 2016. For the year ended 3| December 2016, our
largest supplier accounted for approximately | 1.4% (2015: approximately 12.3%) of our
total purchases.

Our five largest customers together accounted for approximately 33.3% (2015:
approximately 34.4%) of our total revenues for the year ended 3| December 2016. For
the year ended 31 December 2016, our largest customer accounted for approximately
10.3% (2015: approximately | 1.2%) of our total turover.

As far as our Company is aware, neither the Directors, their close associates, nor those
substantial shareholders who are interested in more than 5% of the number of issued
Shares or underlying Shares of our Company had any interest in the five largest customers

and suppliers of our Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Group had not entered into any connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules. The Board confirmed that none of the related party transactions set out in note 3|
to the financial statements constituted non-exempt connected transactions or continuing

connected transactions under Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year had our Company
or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance with the controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, nor had any contract
of significance been entered into for the services provided by the controlling shareholder

or any of its subsidiaries to our Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on the information that is publicly available to
our Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, our Company has maintained a
sufficient public float of more than 25% of our Company's issued Shares as required under

the Listing Rules during the year.

OTHER REQUIRED DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 AND RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

Yingde BVI issued senior notes with amount of USD 425,000,000 in 2013 (“Senior Notes
I") and USD 250,000,000 in 2014 (“Senior Notes II", together, the “Senior Notes")
respectively. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of both Senior Notes, it will be an
event triggering mandatory prepayment if (A) there is a decline in rating of Senior Notes |
or Senior Notes |l (as the case may be); and, inter alia, (B) the Permitted Holders are the
beneficial owners of less than 25% of the total voting rights in the Company. “Permitted
Holders" means any or all of the following: (1) Zhongguo Sun, Zhao Xiangti or Trevor
Raymond Strutt; (2) any affiliate (other than an affiliate being a director or officer of such
person or any subsidiary of such person or of any person directly or indirectly controlling,
controlled by, or under direct or indirect common control with, such person); and (3) any
person all share capital in the Company of which (or in the case of a trust, the beneficial
interests in which) are owned 80% or more by one or more of the persons specified in (1)
and (2) above.

Our Company entered into a facility agreement with a syndicate of banks on 2 October
2015 (the “2015 Facility Agreement”) for a 42-month term loan facility of up to US$90
million (for the US dollar tranche) and HK$77.5 million (for the Hong Kong dollar tranche)
in aggregate. Pursuant to the 2015 Facility Agreement, it will be an event triggering
mandatory prepayment, inter alia, if. (a) any one or more of Bubbly Brooke, Rongton
and Baslow jointly cease to control the Company or cease to own legally and beneficially
directly or indirectly through wholly-owned subsidiaries at least 30% of the issued share
capital of our Company; (b) either of Baslow or Bubbly Brooke sells or disposes of the
issued share capital of our Company directly or indirectly which in aggregate constitute
more than 5% of the issued share capital of our Company that beneficially owned by it
directly or indirectly as at 12 October 2015; or (c) other than, in each case, by reason of
death, mental incapacity or critical illness, Mr. Zhongguo Sun ceases to be the chairman of

our Company, or Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt ceases to be the Director.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Our Company's articles of association provide that each Director, secretary or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits
of our Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages or expenses which he
or she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, our Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance to indemnify our Director and senior officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate activities.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
Our Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code

of conduct regarding the securities transactions by the Directors.

The Board is pleased to confirm, after specific enquiries with all Directors, that all
Directors have fully complied with the standards required under the Model Code during

the year ended 31 December 201 6.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Our Company is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate governance practices.
Corporate governance practices adopted by our Company are set out in the Corporate

Govemance Report on page 70.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The environmental policies and performance of our Company are set out in the section

of “Environmental, Social and Governance” of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

All of our business operations are based in China. We are required to comply with
a range of laws, regulations and measures in China which regulate the production of
industrial gases. The laws, regulations and measures in China regulating the production of

industrial gases in China include but not limited to the following:
*  Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China;

®  Measures for the Implementation of the Permits for the work safety of Hazardous

Chemicals Production Enterprises;

o Regulations of People’s Republic of China on the Administration of Production

License for Industrial Products;

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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®  Measures for the Implementation of the Regulations of People’s Republic of China

on the Administration of Production License for Industrial Products; and
®  Regulations on the Safety Management of Hazardous Chemicals.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, our Group was in compliance with PRC laws
and regulations goveming the production of industrial gases in China.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The relationships with stakeholders of our Company are set out in the section of “Investor
relations” of the “CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis” of this annual
report.

PARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE FINANCIAL YEAR
END OF 2016
Save as disclosed below, there are no important events affecting our Company that have

occurred since the end of the financial year of 201 6:

(i) in the extraordinary general meetings of the Company on 8 March 2017, the
removal of each of Mr. Zhao Xiangti, Mr. He Yuanping, Mr. Zhang Yunfeng, Mr. Suo
Yaotang and Dr. Feng Ke as a Director was approved by the Shareholders and the
appointment of Mr. Jhi-Ho Mah as a Director was approved by the Shareholders;

(i) discontinuation of the court proceedings in the Cayman Islands as disclosed in the

Company's announcement dated 10 April 2017,

(i) the Company has renewed an existing contract with a collection agency in respect
of the collection of certain receivables on the same terms. No payments have been

made or are required to be made under such contract as of the date hereof;

(iv)  the Company is expected to incur between US$10 million to US$20 million of
expenses as a result of or arising from the engagement of advisers in respect of the
PAG Offers; and

(v)  as disclosed in the announcement from PAG dated 6 April 2017, the PAG Offers
have become unconditional in all respects as at 4:00 p.m. on 6 April 2017.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Our Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee™) comprising
all six existing independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zheng Fuya (Chairman of
the Audit Committee), Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Jhi-Ho Mah, Mr. Rawen Zhi Hong Huang, Mr.
David Chan and Mr. Deng Xipeng.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016, and is of the view that our Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 are prepared in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards, laws and regulations, and appropriate disclosures have

already been made.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of our Group for the year ended 3| December
2016 have been audited by KPMG, Certified Public Accountants. A resolution for its re-
appointment as auditor of our Company for the ensuing year will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Zhongguo Sun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 April 2017
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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ABOUT THE REPORT

As a responsible listed company which pays attention to sustainable development,
Yingde Gases Group Company Limited (“‘the Company” or “Yingde" and its subsidiaries
collectively referred to as “the Group”) has voluntarily issued the Health & Safety,
Environment & Efficiency Report since 2013. In preparation of this Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (“this Report”), we appointed heads from different business
departments of the Group to form an ESG Report team and provide independent
opinions and drafts of each operation sector based on the perspectives of stakeholders
including employees, customers and suppliers. Prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules, this Report elaborates on guidelines and policies, major measures and
achievements of the Company's various departments in compliance on the environmental,
social and governance aspects and describes broader social background with respect to

subjects concerning sustainable development.

This Report is divided into several chapters on the basis of different environmental,
social and governance factors, information in which, save as otherwise specified, covers
the performance of the Group's operation activities carried out in mainland China in
environmental, social and governance aspects during the period from | January 2016 to
31 December 2016 and emphasizes operating on-site pipeline gas supply and sales and

transportation of gas products.

ENVIRONMENT & EFFICIENCY

Our work is motivated by our commitment to sustainable development, newly-developing
laws and regulations on environmental protection and higher environmental performance
standards. Globalization has accelerated the formation of laws and regulations on
environmental protection in emerging markets and raised awareness of limitation on
natural resources, leading people to pay attention to resource productivity. Reduction
in energy consumption and improvement in energy utilization rate can effectively lower
business production costs and enhance business reputation while bringing potential

benefits to consumers.
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We believe:

Effects on the environment can be controlled through cutting emissions of wastes

and in pursuit of the ultimate goal of zero-pollution and zero-emission;

We must improve resource efficiency and reduce waste through continuous

technological innovation;

We are obliged to protect the health of residents and the environment in the

community where we operate; and

We are responsible for implementing sustainable development strategies to protect

the environment for future generations.

Company policies and principles
We diligently operate businesses and guarantee the health and safety of customers, the

public and the environment.

We strive to become an industry leader in the environmental, health and safety

performance.

We unswervingly comply with the following fundamental principles:

To abide by laws and regulations in relation to the environment, health and safety

and continue to improve performance in these regards;

To continue to improve the environmental, health and safety situations and
ultimately realize the goal of zero-injury and zero-emission of toxic and hazardous

articles;
To design and operate our plants and facilities in a way of protecting the

environment, the health and safety of our employees and the public;

To develop and manufacture products that can be produced, delivered, used,

recycled or disposed of in a safe and environment-friendly manner;

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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To strengthen transparency in disclosing the practice and performance of the

environment, health and safety;

To put the aforementioned relevant policies into force in contractor management;

and

To set goals, improve and implement measures on a regular basis, evaluate and

report the results.

Environmental management

3)

Environmental management system

Our environmental management system was established and certified in accordance
with ISO 14001 * Standard to enable operating plants, logistics companies and
project centers to identify effects on the environment and make continuous

improvements.

Note:

ta ISO - International Organization for Standardization is the world's largest organization
for developing voluntary International Standards and ISO 14001 provides a
framework for any company or organization looking to set up effective environmental

management systems.

Greenhouse gas emissions

Usually, our Group's air separation equipment almost has no direct emission into
the air. Given the fact that power consumption accounts for 80% of the Group's
operating costs, we convert energy consumption such as power consumption in
daily production and fuel consumption by vehicles for distributing gas productions
into greenhouse gas (CO,) emissions in line with the Conversion Coefficient
published by the National Development and Reform Commission, on the basis of
which we set the goal for energy conservation and emission reduction. This year,
we managed to cut approximately 200,000 tons of greenhouse gas emissions,
about 1% down from the total emissions of last year. To meet the goal stated

above, we have adopted the following measures:

J Transformed devices, technologies and process in each subsidiary to achieve

energy conservation and reduce consumption;
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. Proposed that all employees in the Group lead a low-carbon and
environment-friendly life, save power, water, oil and gas, cut down on travels
by company vehicles and take public transportation such as railways to the

largest extent; and

. Regularly conducted trainings among employees to raise awareness of
emission reduction and low-carbon and promote a green and environment-

friendly way of action.

Waste treatment
We have adopted relevant measures with respect to the generation and treatment

of hazardous and non-hazardous waste materials:

J Firstly, we arranged trainings to raise the awareness of environmental

protection featuring resources conservation;

J Through constant efforts, we reduced generation of wastes and employed

circulation procedures as much as possible;

J We treated all unavoidable wastes in an environment-friendly manner so as

to comply with local laws and regulations; and

. According to the PRC laws and regulations, waste materials are stored and
treated by category. Wastes from our production mainly include chemicals,
wastes containing metals and cylinders post service life, which are dealt
with appropriately by qualified third parties in accordance with applicable

regulations.

Thus, we realized the ultimate goal of “None Contamination Accidents, Zero-

leakage”.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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Use of resources

With regards to use of resources, water resource comes first on the list. Around
85% of the water used in our production is used for cooling purpose and can
be recycled. During the recycling process, the water needs to be cooled down,
during which process a small part of the water will be lost and evaporate into the
atmosphere. Therefore, additional water supply is needed during this process.
About 15% of the water is used in chemical reaction process and also as the source
of steam for local office buildings. The very small amount of waste water generated
will be purified or fed into local industrial treatment system for concentrated

disposition.

Second on the list is resources consumed in the office. We primarily promote the

E-office system to reduce the use of papers.

Power and energy (sustainable development)

As for energy consumption, our production processes consume electricity and
other forms of energies. Actually almost 80% of our operation cost is spent on
power supply. Therefore, the management pays close attention to the reduction of
energy consumption, in consideration of not only the cost but also environmental
protection. In recent years, we have set up a team specialized in reducing power
consumption, and reviewing aspects such as mechanical efficiency, technique
process, project engineering design and energy recycling system. We are currently
forming continuous improvement measures to improve energy efficiency and
reduce emission of greenhouse gases, heading toward the goal of increasing

efficiency by 19 per annum.
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CONVENTIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR

The human resources department is one of the core departments of Yingde Gases (Group)
Company Limited since its establishment. The department always follows the tenet of
people first, exploring talent potentials and focusing on talent management and keeps
promoting it to this day as our unchanging aim. The work of human resources is guided
by the group and implemented by its plants in accordance with the Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China (“Labor Law") and regional labor-related policies. The policies,

development, training, and labor standards of human resources are expounded below:

Recruitment

Our employees are our important assets. “Open Recruitment, Fair Competition, Strict
Selection, and Enrollment According to Merits” are our employment policy. The personnel
selected from open recruitment will be assigned to work according to actual demands.
We observe the tenet of people first, exploring talent potentials, and focusing on talent
management and formulate recruitment policies as per laws and regulations, covering
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, work hours, vacations and
holidays, equal opportunities, diversification, anti-discrimination, and other treatment and

benefits.

We use balanced evaluation system to assess our employees’ performances and are
committed to providing them with ideal working environment and sound promotion
mechanism. The human resources department is responsible for making promotion policy
and the human resources specialists of all the plants for declaration and appraisal of staff
promotion, with the results being reviewed by plant managers, business director, and
human resources director in the end. Staff promotion is based on as a rule the knowledge
and skills required for the post, job performance and conducts, applicability and potentials,

and other necessary conditions required by the Company.

Work time and vacations for employees are arranged properly in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations. We have set out detailed Attendance and Leave Management
Regulations in which paid leave, medical treatment periods, personal leave, marriage leave,
matemity leave, nursing leave, and funeral leave are strictly prescribed by the Labor Law

and other national stipulations.
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We attach great importance to employees’ benefits and our remuneration policy
meets the compulsory minimum wage standard and the market level. We apply the
principle of equal pay for equal work to pay our employees in full amount and adjust the

remuneration based on performance appraisal.

We always highlight anti-discrimination and are fair to our employees. We treat our

employees equally despite of their race, birth, wealth, sex, etc.

Training and Development

We focus on cultivating employees' professional knowledge and skills and provide them
with a variety of training to help them develop to their full potentials. The personnel
from the human resources department and administrative staffs from each branch,
subsidiary, representative office provide new comers with pre-job training, helping them
learn our corporate culture, policies, and rules and regulations, introducing to them job
environment, personnel environment, humanistic environment, as well as work contents,
responsibilities, and norms, and assisting them to be familiar with and master work flows
and skills. Moreover, we provide various kinds of on-the-job training for different posts

and businesses. Below are a couple of examples:

a)  Personnel training: operational training of human resources
Objects: human resources personnel of project and operation plants and

representative offices
Time: June 2016

Topics: including but not limited to the Employee Handbook, recruitment process
and specifications, entry and departure procedures, daily attendance specifications,
employee transfer procedures, labor dispatching procedures, usage rules of legal
documents for labor and personnel, avoidance of labor dispute risk, and reporting

and approving procedures of staff and business data.
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b)  Production procedure training of subordinate operation plants (about 60)
Object: staff of operation plants
Time: monthly training in 2016

Topics: training of procedure, equipment, instruments, quality inspection, electrical
engineering, safety, management rules, professional institute training for prefessional

certification.

Labor Standards
We have definitely banned child labor or forced labor in the Employee Handbook. We

have no operation departments that hire child labor or forced labor.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

We will always deem safety as the priority. For each specific work environment, we
follow the provisions of the Labor Law to offer appropriate safety protection facilities
and devices. We protect our employees from hidden dangers by various measures.
We identify potential hazards in the work place and set up risk control standards and
guidelines using the safety, health, environment and quality management system (SHEQ).
Also, social insurance and regularly arranged physical examinations are guarantee to the

health of our employees.

In 2016, the damage rate of the Company was 3.6 (per one million work hours) and
logistics transportation accident rate was 2.39 (per one million kilometers), without any

on-duty casualty or being accused of occupational health and safety-related issues.

We have always believed that no accident cannot be avoided and will continue to find
out the root causes of accidents and formulate management actions to safeguard our

employees, customers, contractors, and communities.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2016

b HKETEETIR(KOR)EEIER
El
AR ETIRAET

IR 2016 AEE

FIAA: T8 R &K G
BER - RERY BEABEEEHESR

Z
BRAEEER i/\/g\wuna/";% =

BI%A
ARKEIFMIARE L ERETAAHS
I ARGREEEMERETIRHST -

BENZZ
REREBLZ2ERE—EX - HRERERE
MIERE  HABRKEEEIRT  RE
BENTEMEREERE BERARESR
B REEIMRERGEREGS - SEBAR
2 BF  RENRE CHEQ) BE RS « il
TESAPEERRRIR - M R
BERAER o JEAN - HIREVBM - EERHER B
gth B TR RRRER TRE

W6EF FENGEXRRIC(BREIR)
MREBENERLY(BEELER)  REAE
EMEAIRCER  bABBERRRLZ2F
BEXEE-

BERKEEMAEREANELY - HAE
RZAENS N EHLHRH 5 BFHOR
HIERBANERER RERERMANE
T EF ABARHEMNZE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RiE #8REBRE @

Job Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment
We constantly update the standard operating procedure (SOP), effectively avoid
accidents, and implement hazard identification and risk assessment and control measures

to lower the hidden danger of accidents and existing risk.

Hazards are identified and risk evaluated by using hazard identification and risk assessment
and control system and the theories and analytical methods of safety system engineering;
objective and scientific decisions are made for existing risk to determine the best way to

deal with and reduce risk and raise our economic benefits and market competitiveness.

The main operation line of occupational safety and health management system is risk
control process and its foundation is planning of hazard identification, risk assessment and
control. To control risk, we have recognized the existing dangers in all jobs and activities,
evaluated the risk level of each hazardous incident, and determined and controlled the

intolerable risk according to regulations.

Accident Report, Analysis and Closing
All accidents happened at the Company (including all of its subsidiaries, operation
factories, projects and contractors) must be reported to the higher authorities, regardless

of the severity.

All employees must attend safety training and pass qualification tests before taking up their

posts and accident reporting process is critical in safety training management.

We have classified and categorized the accidents according to severity, investigated and
analyzed the direct, remote, and root causes of each accident, made corrections based
on the findings, compiled precautionary measures and schemes, and shared them among
all subsidiaries so that the accidents of the same nature are prevented from happening

repeatedly.

All accidents are displayed on reliable system platforms from bulletin to analysis report,

from occurrence to conclusion, with each step reviewed by our specialists.
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Occupational Health, Safety and Environment System Management

We have passed the environmental management system GB/T24001-2004
(1SO14001:2004) and occupational health and safety management system GB/T28001-
2011 (OHSASI18001:2007), and fully considered the two standards (the Standards of
ISO 14001: 2004 and GB/T28001: 201 1) when establishing the occupational health,
safety and environmental (HSE) management system, and set up a corresponding
management system based on construction process. The top management is responsible
for formulating and introducing HSE policy and conveying it by training, meeting and
bulletin to all employees and associated sides for implementation. Process standards and
control methods are determined in accordance with the national policy of “safety first and
prevention first” and the principle of “the person who takes charge holds responsibility”,
the “no accident cannot be avoided” in HSE management system, and “safety is the
duty of every employee and safety management is the duty of all department heads and
supervisors at all levels.” Necessary management documents are formed at the same time
to achieve the goal of prevention first and process control and continuous improvement.
We will supervise, test and analyze these management system processes to guarantee
their effectiveness. Change of management systems are planned and implemented and the
systems will be kept intact by adopting systematic methods. Furthermore, after the regular
internal review by our subsidiaries, we will assign professional management to conduct

management appraisal.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

We promote implementation of supply chain management as a key part of decision-
making, review, update and strictly perform the policies regarding supply chain
management, environmental and social risk within the year to support the public services

of supply chain management.
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We have selected qualified suppliers by public bidding and comparison to ensure benefit
sharing and appropriate benefit allocation among our partners on the supply chain and
avoid to have single supplier. Regarding the selection of subcontractors for supplies and
services, we have referred to the Purchase Management System and obeyed its strict
provisions on legitimacy, quality, environmental protection, and safety, and once non-
compliance is found, corresponding suppliers are requested and urged to take corrective
actions and the names of suppliers whose goods are still unqualified are removed from

the list of suppliers.

All subcontractors whose goods and materials are delivered to the project area must
sign a safety agreement with our group. We bear the social responsibilities for our
suppliers and partners and exchange opinions, feedback problems, and offer suggestions
for correction on a regular basis. We assign personnel to conduct annual audit on the

suppliers and conduct field visit and survey.

In Future, we will work to build a cooperative supply chain partnership with suppliers,
enter into supply contracts with different manufacturers for flexible goods supply, maintain
long-term relationship with old suppliers, set up information sharing mechanism, and
deepen the integrative management of supply chain companies’ social responsibilities,

eventually achieving a win-win situation.

PRODUCT LIABILITY

Safety and Health

Al air separation products (industrial gas O2, N2, Ar) and the production and service
products of industrial liquid such as high purity nitrogen, high purity argon, and industrial
oxygen must be designed and manufactured in consideration of final users" safety and
health. We carry out safety inspection and intemal review with the attempt to ensure
that our products meet the Product Quality Law of the People's Republic of China (the

Product Quality Law) and the requirements of users on safety, health and quality.
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Quality Assurance and Recall

We implement 1SO 9001:2008 quality management system, according to which quality
management system documents including Quality Manual, Procedure Document, and job
instruction are complied and implemented as the quality law of the Company to regulate
the activity processes and places involved in product quality management. The Company
has the capability to steadily provide products to customers as per their requirements
and applicable laws and regulations and enhance customer satisfaction through effective
use of the system including the process of continuous improvement and non-conformity

prevention.

We inspect the purity of products filled and transported from plants and immediately
recall the polluted products if any for correction to ensure customers’ requirements on
product purity. On the premise that it can be rationally determined that products need
to be recalled according to correlated laws and regulations and the internal Sales Work
Manual, we observe the policy that the products used on market or by customers shall be

recalled, no matter they lead to actual damage or not.

Advertisements, Trademarks and Customer Privacy Policies

Websites are the main means of publicizing our brands and products. We closely follow
the Advertisement Law of the People's Republic of China (the Advertisement Law)
and the prevailing statutes and regulations regarding Internet contents issued by the
international community and Chinese government. All contents are reviewed before
release. Meanwhile, we abide by the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China (the
Trademark Law) to protect our trademark rights and interests and escort the Company in
fierce market competition, thus bringing about considerable economic benefits and market

values.

At the time of protecting our own rights and interests, we also value customers' rights
and interests highly and respect customers' trademark rights and interests and intellectual
property rights, closely pursue the policy of safeguarding customers' information and
privacy, decide who can have access to such information and train them and put it on

record, and sign agreements to prevent customers’ information from leaking.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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In respect to the plan of product liability, our work will focus on the following aspects:

0 In production, continue to control the production process to eliminate unqualified
products.
. In products loading and transportation, optimize the SOP control of vehicle filling

and unloading and replacement, strengthen the training and implementation of
defensive driving of tank vehicles to avoid traffic accidents and contamination of

product purity.

0 Based on current on-site gas supply services and gas station customer service
system, improve 24-hour after-sales service mechanism and help customers to
solve problems immediately after receiving complaints so as to enhance customer

satisfaction.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

Institutions and Work

Yingde, a young listed company, although whose anti-corruption and governance just
started from 2014 as a departmental duty, has launched the work, as one aspect of
the company's internal control mechanism, ever since it was founded. The Company
has consciously resisted all temptations to go beyond the legal interests at the place
where it is located with all vulgar and illegal means. Such value has formed the objective
foundation and approaches of the company’s anti-corruption departments. The systems
and mechanisms formed gradually and the daily work are based on or originated from the
Company Law of the People's Republic of China (the Company Law), the Criminal Law
of the People's Republic of China (the Criminal Law), and the Opinions of the Supreme
People's Procuratorate and Supreme People’s Court on Some Issues Concerning
the Applicable Laws of Handling Bribery and Criminal Cases (8 July 2007), and other

correlated national laws and regulations and judicial interpretations.
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We have established so far several rules and systems referred to in the Employee
Handbook (Item 3 of Article 20: Management System Regarding Taking Gifts in the
Code of Ethics), Notice on Specifying the Regulations of Senior Management's Taking
Gifts, Notice on the Setting up of Yingde Group's Anti-Corruption Department, Notice
on the Violating of the Regulations of Clean and Honest Operation, Regulations on the
Strengthening of Anti-Corruption and Clean and Honest Operation, and Notice on the
Rules of Price Negotiation with Liquid Resellers.

Integration of Corporate Characteristics with Work Priorities

In view of the above, the gist of the Group's anti-corruption governance in 2016 was
inputting time and energy into the building of work system and mechanism so as to form
a complete work pattern. In the meantime, the essential of anti-corruption was building
the anti-embezzlement awareness of “everyone is on duty and everyone performs his
or her duty” in consideration of the Company's widespread businesses across mainland
China, high automation, high per capita investment density, and fund-intensive and
technology-intensive characteristics, turning each staff into the discoverer, whistleblower,
and opponent of fitthy and wicked deeds so as to realize a “condominium system”. To
achieve the goal, a collective discussion mechanism for clean and honest operation and
an individual or collective integrity reception system were gradually set up at decisive and
sensitive posts such as purchase and sales and among direct and indirect superiors to these
posts, especially during the construction of large-scale projects. Special email addresses
and telephones were provided as reporting and complaint approaches. In the prospect
and direction of anti-corruption governance, the Company is on the one side will apply
the system echoing production, purchase and marketing, and operation management and
on the other implement the system in the dozens of construction projects and production
companies in mainland China and combine precaution closely with investigation and

treatment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Investigation and Treatment

A joint investigation group shall be set up once there is clue of signed report or
anonymous report that can be verified and corruption clues acquired from other channels.
The members of the joint investigation group are determined according to the content
and nature of the report, generally working with personnel from the human resources,
finance and audit departments. Technical personnel shall be called together to deal with
the case regarding the problems of production technology in equipment and construction.
If the contents reported involve serious violation of law or even criminal offense, the
priority is to invite the internal legal personnel and even external lawyers to conduct

preliminary investigation.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The current community investment policy of the Company mainly includes the following

aspects:

J Promotion of social and economic development
0 Minimization of negative social impact

. Energetic support of programs for public good

In 2016, we made sustainable investment based on the existing community investment

policy:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Promotion of social and economic development

Community development and community investment are the focus of corporate
management. Our air separation plants are mostly distributed in the third-
and fourth-tier cities and regions of China supplying industrial gas products to
customers, which has increased local GDP, earnings and governmental revenues

and promoted economic development.

In the process of plant operation, we have hired local labors and by the end of
2016 the number of plant staffs registered was nearly 2,300. All factories provide
a week's occupational skills training and annual safety training for new employees
as per the requirements of the Group so as to elevate their skills and employment

abilities and help alleviate the pressure on local employment.

The plants affiliated to the Company provide local university and vocational
school students with internship posts so that they get the opportunity to put
the knowledge and skills learned into practice. We also have plant open days
for local university and college teachers and students to pay on-site visits, attend
occupational safety training, and understand the recruitment needs of an industrial
company. These measures have served as good guide and reference for local

educational institutions in curriculum designing.

Minimization of negative social impact

The Company tries to reduce possible negative social impact while promoting
opportunities and seeking well-being for the community where our project is

located. “Zero Harm" is the corporate value of the Company.

We attach great importance to the risk management of public health threatening.
The noise generated in our businesses and production process is one of the major
environmental issues. We adopt all noise attenuation standards to reduce noise.
But beyond that, our engineers constantly pursue technical progress and their work
is propelled by our sustainable development and newly implemented environmental

protection regulations as well as higher environmental performance standards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Energetic support of programs for public good

The Company and our subsidiaries and affiliated plants have been proactively supporting
and participating in the public service activities of the local community. In 2016 for
instance, we funded a fire brigade for the local government where our Anyang plant is
located to safeguard the property and personal safety of the community residents around

the clock.

While continuing to fulfill the current policies above, we will reinforce the following work

as well:
. Make a more detailed scheme to ensure sustainable community welfare;
. Continue to improve community development and investment plans by supervising

and managing our social and economic influence; and

J Establish and maintain a close relationship with the parties directly related to our
businesses or the stakeholders; listen to opinions and suggestions and improve

continuously.

CONCLUSION

In the report period, we did not find any major actual or potential negative impact
resulted from environmental protection, recruitment, occupational health and safety, labor
measures, product liability, and anti-corruption issues, or any violation or appeal confirmed

having significant impact on the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
TPEERERE

The Board is committed to achieving high standard of corporate governance to ensure
effective and responsible leadership for our Company and the protection of shareholders'

interests.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2016, our Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix |4 of the Listing Rules, save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report.
Code provision A2.| states that roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same individual. During the year of 2016,
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer of our Company were performed by
the same individual, Mr. Zhongguo Sun (for the period of | January 2016 to 5 November
2016) and Mr. Zhao Xiangti (for the period of 6 November 2016 to 31 December 2016).

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises two executive Directors, four
non-executive Directors and six independent non-executive Directors, with independent
non-executive Directors representing approximately 50% of the Board, which is higher
than the requirements under the Listing Rules. Such a high percentage of independent
non-executive Directors on the Board can ensure that their views carry significant weight

and reflect the independence of the Board.

Mr. Sun was one of the main founders of our Group. He has been responsible for
the operational management since the establishment of our Group. He has played an
important role in our business expansion. Mr. Sun possesses rich working experience in

the industrial gas industry business and excellent operational management ability.

With effect from the conclusion of a Board meeting on 20 April 2017, Mr. Qiu Zhongwei
has been appointed as the chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. At present, the Board believes that it is beneficial to the management and
development of our Group's businesses with Mr. Qiu being both the chairman and chief
executive officer as it helps to expedite the Board's decision-making. The Board would still
consider segregating the role of chairman and chief executive officer to comply with the

Code if appropriate.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2016

ESAHENRKTNEEER  BEREAX
BRI BARR RIRER R

TEERER
BEWI6FNAIBILFE BREAFHRDE
BELIN  RABEEST BRI 1478

BRI PAI) A2 SRR » FRIE
XALVGETH  ERETHER c AEEA
BH - WAEH— ARKRE - R20I6FE
N AREZERETBEARACHRA-AL
Zhongguo Sun(FA2016F 1 A1 H ZE2016F ||
ASHIEER) REEREEE(H20165F11 A6
AZ2016% 12 831 BIEHR)EE -

EZCHAAMANITES NEFENTES
RABEBFRTESMEN  BUFRITES
KNEEZEG50% AR ETRARTLE B
URTESZHESTE AL EIRRES L
ERAEAVENRRMESS VB -

SInEERLTEEEREMAZ - BAKHE
KIE-BEREAKENZEEE  NA%KE
BREGIAZREE - SnEERAEREH
IXRBTEERIRHNEEEEES - B
Al EZERAMBEEREARBINERM
TRAE  AINRESENRRES  HAK
BEBHEERERAN - EFSNEEREN
BEREIRATHARNABEDBUANET
AIES

B2017F4A20REESRERE  BHE
GREBZARADRESEEIRRITHREH -
BA - EEEHAE ABELSRIERTR
BEWE ERNMREFEARBE  AMA
MREEEBEERER -EZ2NBERRE
AERETRLR AR UEFTA(WNE
) e



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
Our Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding the

securities transactions by the Directors.

The Board is pleased to confirm, after specific enquiries with all Directors, that all
Directors have fully complied with the standards required under the Model Code during

the year ended 3| December 201 6.

Independent Non-executive Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all times met Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting

or related financial management expertise.

Our Company has received annual confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors in respect of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Our Company considers that all existing independent non-executive Directors are
independent parties in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules and are free of any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of

their independent judgements.
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Corporate Governance Report continued)
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for achieving the corporate goals, formulating the development
strategy, regularly reviewing the organizational structure, and monitoring the business
activities and the performance of management so as to protect and maximize the interests
of our Company and our shareholders. Matters relating to the daily operations of our
Group are delegated to the management. During the year, the Board considered and
approved the annual budget and its performance under management supervision together
with the business reports from the management. The Board also reviewed and approved
the final results for the year ended 31 December 2016 and other critical business
operations. The Board also assessed the intemnal control and the financial matters of our

Group.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of twelve members, including;

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhongguo Sun (chairman and chief executive officer)

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Tak-Wai

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei

Mr. Xiao Suining

Mr. He Hui David

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Fuya (alternate Director to Dr. Wang Cing)
Dr. Wang Ching (atternate Director to Mr. Zheng Fuya)
Mr. Jhi-Ho Mah

Mr. Rawen Zhi Hong Huang

Mr. David Chan

Mr. Deng Xipeng

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei, Mr. Wong Tak-Wai, Mr. Xiao Suining, Mr. He Hui David, Mr. Zheng
Fuya, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Rawen Zhi Hong Huang, Mr. David Chan and Mr. Deng
Xipeng being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The members of the Board represent a diverse and rich industry background with
appropriate professional qualifications. Please refer to the section headed “Biographies of

Directors and Senior Management” for the profiles of our Directors.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among members of the Board. Board members are free to

exercise their independent judgment.

Under code provision A4.| of the Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
non-executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Mr. Zheng Fuya, Dr. Wang Ching and Mr. Jhi-Ho Mah, our independent non-executive
Directors, are each appointed for a term of three years, subject to re-election when

appropriate by our Company in general meeting.

The terms of Mr. Qiu Zhongwei, Mr. Wong Tak-Wai, Mr. Xiao Suining, Mr. He Hui David,
our non-executive Directors; and Mr. Rawen Zhi Hong Huang, Mr. David Chan and Mr.
Deng Xipeng, our independent non-executive Directors will expire on the date of the

annual general meeting of our Company to be held on or before 30 June 2017.
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Corporate Governance Report continued)
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD COMMITTEE EENEEZESHENEELRE
MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board Committee meetings BUNEZENWI6FNA3IBLEENESE
REZZESERRARTREASEENT

EasEESIMT

and the general meeting of our Company held during the year ended 31 December 2016

is set out in the table below:

Board Committees

2016 Attendance EzZ88
annual Rate of Audit Remuneration Nomination ~Compliance
general Board Board Committee Committee Committee ~Committee
meeting  Meetings Meeting Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
2016 BE (%) £ 40| R% 8
Name of Directors EEpR BEAE EZEEE SUHFZE ZE663 ZE9Sd Z5993 ZEeed
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhao Xiangti' HERLE! I/l 5/5 100% = = /1 I/l
Mr. He Yuanping? I RRF S A2 I/] 5/5 100% 212 I/1 I/] =
Mr. Zhang Yunfeng’ REE KA - 3/5 60% - - - -
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhongguo Sun* Zhongguo SunFE 4! I/l 4/5 80% — = = =
Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt’ Trevor Raymond Strutt5E 4 I/l 4/5 80% = = = =
Mr. Suo Yaotang* FTIBE R4 - 35 60% z - - -
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors

Mr. Zheng Fuya’ BEDky I/l 5/5 100% yl} Il Il Il
Dr. Wang Ching? FREL I/l 5/5 100% ylo} Il _ I/l
Dr. Feng Ke® HEEL - 35 60% - - - -
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Corporate Governance Report continued
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Notes:

Mr. Zhao Xiangti was appointed as the chairman of the Board on 5 November 2016. He was
removed as an executive Director and ceased to serve as the chairman of the Board and on
8 March 2017.

Mr. He Yuanping was re-designated from an independent non-executive Director to an
executive Directors and appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company on 5
November 2016. He was resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company and re-
designated as a non-executive Director on 2 March 2017 and was removed as a non-

executive Director on 8 March 2017.

Mr. Zhang Yunfeng was appointed as an executive Director on 5 November 2016. He was

removed as an executive Director on 8 March 2017.

Mr. Zhongguo Sun was re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive
Director, ceased to be the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company on 5 November 2016. He was re-designated from a non-executive Director to
an executive Director and appointed as the chairman of the Board and the chief executive

officer of the Company on 12 March 2017.

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt was re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive
Director on 5 November 2016. He was re-designated from a non-executive Director to an
executive Director on 12 March 2017.

Mr. Suo Yao Tang was appointed as a non-executive Director on 5 November 2016 and was

removed as a non-executive Director on 8 March 2017.

Mr. Zheng Fuya was appointed as alterate Director to Dr. Wang Ching on 23 March 2017.

Dr. Wang Ching was appointed as alternate Director to Mr. Zheng Fuya on 23 March 2017.

Dr. Feng Ke was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 5 November 2016

and was removed as an independent non-executive Director on 8 March 2017.
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Notices of regular Board meetings are given to all Directors at least 14 days before the

meetings. For other Board committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

The agendas and accompanying Board papers were given to all Directors in a timely
manner. Issues arising at Board meetings were properly discussed by the Chairman and

the Directors.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information with the advice of
the company secretary, to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. Upon making request to the Board, all Directors may obtain
independent professional advice at our Company's expense for carrying out their

functions.

The company secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the chairman
and the chief executive officer on governance matters, facilitating induction training
and professional development of Director, and taking and keeping minutes of all Board
committee meetings. Draft and final versions of minutes are normally circulated to the
Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version

is open for Directors' inspection.

Director’s Training
Each newly appointed Director will be offered training by our Company upon the
appointment, so as to ensure that they have appropriate understanding of our Company's

business and they are fully aware of their duties as director under the laws and regulations.

In addition, the Company also issues latest information regarding corporate governance
and directors’ responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations to the Directors, to ensure their awareness of their responsibilities under
the laws and regulations. All Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contributions to the Board remain informed and relevant. Directors are requested to

provide their records of trainings they received in 2016 to our Company for record.
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Details of trainings that the Directors participated in 2016 are as follows: R2016FR  EF2EBIOBERNAT
Executive Directors Non-executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
yi7gs FUTES BUFUTES

Mr. Trevor

Raymond

Mr. Strutt’

Zhongguo
Mr. Zhao Mr.He  Mr. Zhang Sun* Trevor ~ Mr.Suo  Mr. Zheng

Xiangti'  Yuanping®  Yunfeng’  Zhongguo  Raymond  Yaotang’ Fur  Dr.Wang  Dr. Feng
BEE WEY REE Sun Srut  FBE  BED Ching? Ke’
i3 3 i3 i3 i3 i3 £t IRBE BNEL

Key Changes of the Listing Rules =& ( L#A/) 7] | V V | | \
Takeover and Mergers and (RAE - afF R { | | | | V
Share buy-backs RIARETA)

Update of Corporate Govemance & 7& LT3 B BIR | V V | | |
requirement PRERNER

Consultation Paper on Review ~ R3% * &R | / { | {
of the Environmental, EiaREHRsl

Social and Govemance (ESG)

Reporting Guide

Amendments to the ( ETIRRASR 14 y y | { | |
Appendix |4 of Listing Rules &~ Z{BR1 &2 FRT

Board meetings

Risk Management and B EE R A | u V { | |
Internal Control and R(EEERRE)
amendments to the relevant RARA2 B

provisions in the Code of

Corporate Govemance

Training requirement for diectors ~ EERAAIHE | / V { | |
and company secretary X
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Notes: Ht

Mr. Zhao Xiangti was appointed as the chairman of the Board on 5 November 2016. He was
removed as an executive Director and ceased to serve as the chairman of the Board and on
8 March 2017.

Mr. He Yuanping was re-designated from an independent non-executive Director to an
executive Directors and appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company on 5
November 2016. He was resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company and re-
designated as a non-executive Director on 2 March 2017 and was removed as a non-
executive Director on 8 March 2017.

Mr. Zhang Yunfeng was appointed as an executive Director on 5 November 2016. He was

removed as an executive Director on 8 March 2017.

Mr. Zhongguo Sun was re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive
Director, ceased to be the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company on 5 November 2016. He was re-designated from a non-executive Director to
an executive Director and appointed as the chairman of the Board and the chief executive

officer of the Company on 12 March 2017.

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt was re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive
Director on 5 November 2016. He was re-designated from a non-executive Director to an

executive Director on 12 March 2017.

Mr. Suo Yao Tang was appointed as a non-executive Director on 5 November 2016 and was

removed as a non-executive Director on 8 March 2017.

Mr. Zheng Fuya was appointed as alternate Director to Dr. Wang Ching on 23 March 2017.

Dr. Wang Ching was appointed as alternate Director to Mr. Zheng Fuya on 23 March 2017.

Dr. Feng Ke was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 5 November 2016

and was removed as an independent non-executive Director on 8 March 2017.
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As a part of our training program for the Board, all Directors were provided with reports
from time to time the latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime during the year under review. A
number of reading materials were also provided to all Directors to develop and refresh
the Directors’ knowledge and skills. In the future, our Company will continue to organize
various training and seminars for the Directors on the professional knowledge and latest

development of regulatory requirements related to director's duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity
Our Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify our Directors
and senior officers for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. For the year ended

31 December 2016, no claim has been made against our Directors and senior officers.

Board Committees

The Board has set up four Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the compliance committee
(collectively the “Board Committees”), for overseeing particular aspects of our Company's

affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in

appropriate circumstances, at our Company's expense.
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Audit Committee

The Board established the Audit Committee on 12 September 2009 in compliance with
the Listing Rules with the written terms of reference. As at the date of this annual report,
it was chaired by Mr. Zheng Fuya and comprises five other members, namely Dr. Wang
Ching, Mr. Jhi-Ho Mah, Mr. Rawen Zhi Hong Huang, Mr. David Chan and Mr. Deng

Xipeng, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of the external auditors, review the financial statements,
oversee and provide material advice in respect to our financial reporting system and

oversee the intermal control procedures of our Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee together with the management
has reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by our Group and discussed
the Group's risk management, internal control and financial reporting matters, including
review of the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2016, with recommendation to the Board for
approval. The Audit Committee has also recommended to the Board that, subject to our
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, KPMG be re-appointed

as the external auditor of our Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Board established the remuneration committee on 12 September 2009 in compliance
with the Listing Rules with the written terms of reference. As at the date of this annual
report, Dr. Wang Ching was the chairman of the remuneration committee and Mr.
Zhongguo Sun, Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt, Mr. Zheng Fuya, Mr. Jhi-Ho Mah, Mr. Rawen
Zhi Hong Huang, Mr. David Chan and Mr. Deng Xipeng were the other seven members

of the remuneration committee.

The primary functions of the remuneration committee are to evaluate the performance
and make recommendations on the remuneration package of our Directors and senior
management, our retirement scheme and our performance assessment system and bonus

and commission policies.

The remuneration of Directors are based on their skills, knowledge, involvement in
our Company's affairs and the performance, with reference to the profitability of our

Company, remuneration benchmarks in the industry, and prevailing market conditions.
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No Director or senior executive will be involved in any discussion in connection with
his or her own remuneration. The remuneration committee may also consult with
the chairman about their proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive
Directors and has access to professional advice if necessary. The major objective of the
remuneration policy is to ensure that our Company is able to attract, retain, and motivate

a high caliber team which is essential to the success of our Company.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee reviewed, amongst others,
the performance and remuneration policy of the executive Directors; and the grant of
share options to Mr. Zhongguo Sun and Mr. Trever Raymond Strutt had been discussed

and recommended to the Board.

Details of the remuneration by band of the 4 members of the senior management of our

Company for the year ended 3| December 2016 are set out below:

HEHEE

Remuneration by Band

ESIARTHARTE2EAHEMENE
5t - MR B G A MERFHAAEHEML
RTESHENER  INVERHAZRE
R FMEKEZBRARERAAREAR
5 BERABRERTIEEN - HARAN
KNEBEE -

EOEEN  FMEEeC B (T8
TEEZREARFMEBE - B3 Zhongguo
Sun 554 & Trever Raymond Strutt 554 1 i B %
BELARYMESSHBRE -

RRABSREEBAMKEREE2016F 12 A
3 BEFENFMEREFBHINT

Number of Individual

AR

RMBO to RMB 1,000,000

RMB 1,000,000 to RMB2,000,000
RMB3,000,000 to RMB4,000,000
RMB6,000,000 to RMB7,000,000

AREOTTE AR 1,0000007T |
AR 1,000,000 T E AR 2,000,000 7T [
A K 3,000,000 T E A K # 4,000,000 7T |
AR 6,000,000 T E AR 7,000,000 7T [

Nomination Committee

The Board established the nomination committee on 12 September 2009 in compliance
with the Listing Rules with the written terms of reference. As at the date of this annual
report, it was chaired by Mr. Zhongguo Sun and comprises seven other members, namely
Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt, Mr. Zheng Fuya, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Jhi-Ho Mah, Mr. Rawen
Zhi Hong Huang, Mr. David Chan and Mr. Deng Xipeng.

The primary functions of the nomination committee are to make recommendations to

our Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on our Board.

The duties of the nomination committee also include reviewing the structure, number
of members and composition of the Board; submitting proposals to the Board on the
appointment of chief executive officer; reviewing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and submitting proposals to the Board. The authority and duties

of the nomination committee are clearly set out in its terms of reference.
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During the vear under review, the nomination committee had made recommendations
to the Board conceming the re-election of Directors by shareholders pursuant to the
Avrticles of Association and with due regard to their performance and ability to continue
to contribute to the Board. The nomination committee had also reviewed the structure,
number, composition and diversity of the Board, the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment

and redesignation of the Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

Our Company adopted the board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy”) in August
2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against

appropriate criteria, with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be made based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates could

bring to the Board.

The nomination committee monitors, from time to time, the implementation of the policy,

and reviews, as appropriate, the policy to ensure the effectiveness of the policy.

The nomination committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its

effectiveness and considered that our Group fully implemented the Board Diversity Policy.

Compliance Committee

The Board established the compliance committee on |2 September 2009 with the
written terms of reference. As at the date of this annual report, it was chaired by Mr.
Rawen Zhi Hong Huang comprises six other members, namely Mr. Zhongguo Sun, Mr.
Trevor Raymond Strutt, Mr. Zheng Fuya, Mr. Jhi-Ho Mah, Mr. David Chan and Mr. Deng
Xipeng. The primary functions of the compliance committee are to ensure compliance on

regulatory matters and corporate governance.
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The work performed by the compliance committee during the year under review included
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems and making recommendation to the Board for improvement of internal control,
credit control and risk management. In addition, the compliance committee reviewed
our Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, our Company's policies
and practices on the compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Directors with the Model Code and our Company's compliance with the Code and

the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in the consolidated financial statements of the annual and
interim reports. If the Directors were aware of material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt upon our Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, such uncertainties should be clearly and prominently set out and discussed

in detail in this Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The risk management and internal control of our Group is designed to help our Group
protect its assets and information. The presence of risk management and intemnal control
empowers our Group to implement best business practices in challenging business
environment. Our Group's risk management and internal control covers a number of in-
house procedures and policies. The Group will also engage independent third party to

review our internal control policies from time to time.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and
maintaining sound and effective risk management and interal control systems (including
reviewing their effectiveness) to safeguard Shareholders’ investment and the Group's

assets.

The internal control system of the Group is designed for identifying and managing risks
that are significant to the fulfilment of the Group's business objectives. The Group's
management continues to allocate resources for an internal control and risk management
systems. The Board is aware of that risk management and internal control systems
are designed to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve

business objectives.
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Through the Audit Committee and the Compliance Committee, the Board continues to
review the effectiveness of risk management and interal control systems which include
financial, operational, compliance, risk identification and assessment and risk response
implementation controls. This process consists of (i) assessing such systems by the Group's
internal audit function; (ii) operational management's assurance of their maintenance
of effective risk management systems and internal controls; and (iii) identifying risk
management and control issues by the external auditor during statutory audit. The
Audit Committee and the Compliance Committee review the adequacy of resources,
qualifications, experiences and training requirements of staff responsible for accounting,
financial reporting, treasury, financial analysis and internal audit functions. Review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system has been conducted by
management who provides the confirmation to the Board, through the Audit Committee
and the Compliance Committee. In 2016, the Board through the Audit Committee and
the Compliance Committee, reviewed the risk management and intemal control system

of the Company for one time.

The Group also has an internal audit function to review risk management and internal
control regularly by (i) evaluating the control environment and risk identification and
assessment processes; (i) assessing the adequacy of risk response measures and internal
controls; and (jii) testing the implementation of such measures and the functioning of key

controls through audit sampling.

The Group is fully aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the SFO, which
has established the internal policy to regulate the handling and dissemination of
inside information. The Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” published by the Securities and Future Commission. The internal policy
is updated whenever required and adopted accordingly to guide its stakeholder
communications and the determination of inside information in order to ensure consistent

and timely disclosure.

The Group has established an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
significant risks faced, including strategic planning, corporate governance, financial reporting,
core business processes, and compliance and risk management. Review of the significant
risks faced has been conducted to ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk

management and internal control system for the year ended 31 December 201 6.

For the year under review, the Board considers that the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are adequate and effective and the Company has complied

with the relevant code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code on intemal control.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee and the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances. The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its
ability to maintain adequate cash flow from operations to meet debt obligation as they fall

due and financial support from bankers to meet future capital expenditures.

The total borrowings included a syndicated loan of USD 90,000,000 and HKD 77,500,000
(see Note 24(b)) equivalent to RMB 680,794,000. The Group has failed to fulfil a financial
covenant requirement in relation to the amount of the net tangible assets of the Group
(“Event of Default”) under the syndicated loan and the Group has not remedied this
requirement at the reporting date. Therefore, the syndicated loan lenders have (via
the syndicated loan agent) the right at any time by notice to the Group to require the
syndicated loan to be immediately repaid prior to its original repayment dates as defined in
the original syndicated loan agreement. As at 31 December 2016, the entire outstanding
amount of the syndicated loan was reclassified as current liabilities. The directors are
in communication with the syndicated loan lenders about the syndicated loan and the
Event of Default. If the directors are unable to come to an acceptable arrangement with
the syndicated loan lenders with regards to the Event of Default and the Company is
unable to secure alternative funding to replace the syndicated loan, then an acceleration
of repayment of the syndicated loan may trigger a cross default of other financial
indebtedness and result in the Group being under an immediate repayment obligation for
such financial indebtedness. As of the date hereof, the Company has not received notice

from the syndicated loan agent to accelerate the repayment of the syndicated loan.
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The Directors have reviewed the current performance and cashflow projections as part
of their assessment of the Group's going concern, and after carefully considering the
matters described above, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group is
able to continue as a going concern for at least next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and to meet its obligations, as and when they fall due, having regard to

the following:

(i)  the Group generated net cash from operating activities of approximately RMB
1,884 million during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB 1,374 million)
and expects to continue to improve its working capital management and generate

positive operating cash flows for the next twelve months;

(i) at 31 December 2016, the Group has available unutilised bank facilities of RMB 595

million;

(iify  the Group has the ability to renew or refinance the banking facilities upon maturity;

(iv)  the directors have been actively communicating with the lenders of the syndicated

loan as mentioned above;

(v)  the Group determines to postpone certain planned capital expenditure for the

next twelve months; and

(Vi) according to the Company's offer announcement from PAGAC II-2 Limited (“PAG"
or “Offeror”) dated 7 March 2017 (“PAG Offers”), as further explained in Note 35,
PAG provided voluntary conditional cash offers to acquire all issued shares of the
Company at HKD 6 per share, for a total maximum consideration of approximately
HKD 11,288 million.

It has been stated in the PAG Offers that “It is the Offeror’s intention to acquire a
majority interest in the Company pursuant to the Offers. The Offeror intends to maintain
the Company's existing principal activities. After completion of the Offers, the Offeror will
assist the Company to review its existing funding programs in place, to optimise its capital
structure to ensure adequate liquidity in the context of the Company's business activities,
and in general to assist in improving the Company's operations to create shareholder

value.”
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Corporate Governance Report continued
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As refer to the announcement dated 6 April 2017, the PAG Offers have become
unconditional in all respects, taking into account of approximately 23.61% of issued share
capital held by PAG and valid acceptance under the PAG Offers which resulted PAG
and its Concert Parties holding an aggregate of approximately 53.87% of the issued share
capital and voting rights of the Company. PAG is the largest shareholder of the Company.

Consequently, the directors have concluded that the Company and the Group have the
ability to continue as a going concem. Accordingly, the financial statements have been

prepared on a basis that the Group will be able to continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
A statement by the external auditors of our Company, KPMG, is included in the
Independent Auditor Report on pages 90 to 104 of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
Our Group's independent auditor is KPMG. KPMG is responsible for auditing and forming

an independent opinion on our Group's annual consolidated financial statements.

During the year under review, the remunerations paid or payable to our Company’s

auditor, KPMG, are as follows:
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Year ended 3| December

BZNA3NALEE

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR%ETR

Audit service (including annual audit and interim review) EGRB (RREEEZ LT HEMRYE) 5,524 5430
Non-audit services FEBZIRTS 213 18
5,737 5611

Non-audit service includes tax service and other assurance services for financing.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the

subsidiaries of our Company in respect of audit services amounted to RMB2.2 million.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the year ended 3| December 2016, Ms. Wong Sze Wing and Ms. Mok Ming Wai
were our Company's joint company secretaries and each of them has taken no less than
IS5 hours of relevant professional training. The primary corporate contact person of Ms.
Mok Ming Wai, a director of KCS Hong Kong Limited, was Ms. Wong Sze Wing, the other

joint company secretary of our Company.

On 9 March 2017, Ms. Wong Sze Wing resigned as a joint company secretary of the
Company. Following the resignation of Ms. Wong, Ms. Zhang Jing, the investor relationship

manager of the Company is the primary corporate contact person of Ms. Mok Ming Wai.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the

election of individual Directors, for shareholders' consideration and voting.

Resolutions put forward at our shareholders” meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of our Company and of

the Hong Kong Stock Exchange after each shareholders” meeting,

()  Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of Articles of Association, an extraordinary general meeting
(the "EGM") may be convened by the Board on requisition of one or more
shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of our Company. Such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such EGM,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) concemed as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) concerned by the

Company.

The requisitionist(s) must state the objects clearly in the requisition, sign the
requisition and deposit the same to the Board or the company secretary or the

primary contact person of our Company.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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Corporate Governance Report continued
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(i)  Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at the
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2013 Revision) or the
Articles of Association. However, shareholders who wish to put forward proposals
at general meetings may achieve so by means of convening an EGM following the

procedures set out in paragraph (i) above.

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director

are available on our Company's website (www.yingdegas.com).

(iii)  Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written
enquires to our Company.

Note: Our Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquires.

Primary Contact Person
Shareholders may send their requisitions, proposed resolutions or enquiries as mentioned

in (i), (ii) and (iii) above to the primary contact person of our Company as set out below:

Name: Jennie Zhang

Address:  Room 3212-13, 32/F., Tower Two, Times Square, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

Fax: 852-3100 0068

Email: zhangjingjennie@yingdegas.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the original duly signed
written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address, and provide their full name, contact details and identification in order to give

effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the year under review, our Company made no changes to the Articles of
Association. An up-to-date version of our Articles of Association is available on our

Company's website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's website.

Further information about investor relations are set out on pages 2| to 22.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 B AR S

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yingde Gases Group Company
Limited (“the Company") and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 105 to
245, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2016 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and have been properly prepared

in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs™)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code") together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Going concern

FEREE

Refer to Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

LA LB EHRENE2(b) °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENETNAEEZSE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current liabilities of RMB
1,993 million (which included cash and cash equivalents of RMB 737
million), total borrowings of RMB 10,384 million (which included a
long term syndicated loan with a carrying amount of RMB 681 million
which was reclassified as current liabilities as a result of the “Event
of Default” as further explained in Note 2(b) to the consolidated
financial statements) and contracted for capital commitments of RMB
802 million.

An acceleration of repayment of the syndicated loan may trigger a
cross default of other financial indebtedness and result in the Group
being under an immediate repayment obligation for such financial
indebtedness. As of the date of this audit report, the Company has
not received notice from the syndicated loan agent to accelerate the
repayment of the syndicated loan, or to cause the repayment of the
syndicated loan to be accelerated and become immediately due and

payable.
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Our audit procedures to assess the going concern assumption in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements included the

following:

walking through the business planning process and assessing
the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of
management's key internal controls over the assessment of going

concern, including the preparation of cash flow forecasts;

evaluating the key assumptions in the cash flow forecast (including
gas supply volumes, unit prices, unit costs and production
volumes, committed capital expenditure and foreign exchange
rates) with reference to historical production information, current

performance and interal investment and production plans;

AR RRAHU BRI ENFELE
AR

RERAGEGCRFER

HEZFERBATHETUR  FEEERENSEL TG

(BEREREIRE) 2 BRAMEH R RiTRES
B

. %F"’iﬁémﬁ E‘JEFF%ETE““( BEERE  BUEE - B
ARES BEAREAMHAIRINEER)  UBELESE
B ERgE %ZELA&W*E&@SZFE.#%J ;
fR 2 A




Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea
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Going concern (continued)

HELE (H)

Refer to Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

LA BB HZNZ20)

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENETNAEEZSE

The directors of the Group evaluated the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern based upon an assessment of the Group's cash
position, a cash flow forecast, its recourse to various financing facilities
and the potential acquisition of the Company's issued shares by
PAG (as further explained in Note 35 to the consolidated financial

statements).

In assessing the Group's ability to continue to operate as a going
concern the directors prepared a cash flow forecast which required
the exercise of significant management judgement, particularly in
forecasting the Group's future revenue, operating expenses and
capital expenditure and in assessing the Group's ability to renew

existing banking facilities.
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comparing the available bank facilities and arrangements with
underlying documentation, which included bank facility agreements,
and assessing the impact of any covenants and other restrictive

terms attached thereto;

assessing the Group's ability to renew or refinance existing banking
facilities upon maturity by performing a retrospective review of

past renewal or roll-over of banking facilities in prior years;

assessing the sensitivities of the key assumptions adopted by
management in the going concern assessment and considering
whether management had incorporated any bias in the selection

of such assumptions;
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Going concern (continued)

HELE (H)

Refer to Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

LA LB EHRENE2(b) °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENETNAEEZSE

We identified the assessment of going concem as a key audit matter
because the assessment of going concem is dependent upon certain
management assumptions and judgements, in particular in relation to
future revenue from the supply of gas and the ability of the Group
to obtain external financing, which may be inherently uncertain and

could be subject to management bias.
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considering the accuracy and reliability of cash flow forecasts made
by management in prior years by comparing them with the current

year's results;

evaluating the implications of the potential acquisition of the
Company's issued shares by PAG on the Group's business and
liquidity position through enquiries with the Group's directors; and

evaluating the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of going concem with reference to the requirements of

the prevailing accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea
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Assessing potential impairment of plant and machinery and construction in progress

AHEEE  RERERIRZBERE

Refer to Note || and |2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 34-137.

BELHBIEIFNE I 12 RE 134-137 B2 B8FHHE -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENETNAEEZSE

The Group has significant plant and machinery, which principally

comprises air separation equipment.

Annually, management assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment of the Group's plant and machinery, including plant and
machinery under construction. Such indicators may include:

. mechanical obsolescence or suspension of projects; and

. plant and machinery under construction where there is

uncertainty over the level of revenue these assets will generate

upon completion.

BERERAEABE LR ZEIBREENRME -

EEBRFEMEEREZBE AR EREFERETR @ £
BHERZBERRE - ZERETRES

« BSHE(LIEBEER R

© ERBERRBETTEIEREE
M o

,Ulba

EEEWAKF 2T

Our procedures to assess potential impairment of plant and machinery

and construction in progress included the following;

. evaluating management's identification of CGUs and the
allocation of assets to each CGU and assessing the management's
identification of impairment indicators with reference to the

requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

. assessing the Group's intention to carry out construction activities
at the relevant sites by inspecting the future budgets and discussing
the latest status with senior management and the executive

directors;
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Assessing potential impairment of plant and machinery and construction in progress (continued)

AHEEE - RERERIRZBERE(H)

Refer to Note || and |2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 34-137.

BEAHBIEIFNE I R 12 RE 134-137 B2 8FHHE o

The Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENETNAEEZSE

Where indicators of impairment are identified, the recoverable
amounts of plant and machinery and construction in progress are
determined by management as the greater of the value in use of the
separately identifiable cash generating units (“CGUs") to which the
plant and machinery and construction in progress are allocated and

the fair value less cost of disposal of these assets.

Management assessed value in use by preparing discounted cash
flow forecasts for the relevant CGUs. The preparation of discounted
cash flow forecasts involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, in particular in estimating future gas supply volumes, future
unit prices, future unit costs and in determining the discount rates

applied.
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considering whether the Group has the ability to finance its
planned future construction by comparing budgets with available

financing facilities;

engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating
the methodology adopted by management in the preparation
of the discounted cash flow forecasts with reference to the

requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

comparing data in the discounted cash flow forecasts with relevant
financial data, including future revenue, future cost of sales and
other operating expenses, in the financial budgets which were

approved by management;
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Assessing potential impairment of plant and machinery and construction in progress (continued)

AHEEE - RERERIRZBERE(H)

Refer to Note || and |2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 34-137.

BEAHBIEIFNE I 12 RE 134-137 B2 BFHE -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENETNAEEZSE

We identified assessing potential impairment of plant and machinery
and construction in progress as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and because
assessing whether there is any impairment involves significant
management judgement in determining the inputs to the impairment
assessment which may be inherently uncertain and could be subject

to management bias.
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REHATHENERERDZVE -

engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us in assessing
whether the discount rates applied in the discounted cash flow
forecasts were within the range adopted by other companies in

the same industry;

comparing the long term growth rates adopted in the discounted
cash flow forecasts with those of comparable companies and

external market data;

performing sensitivity analyses of the key assumptions, including
the discount rates applied and future gas supply volumes, future
unit prices and future unit costs, considering the resulting impact
on the impairment assessment and considering whether there
were any indicators of management bias in the selection of these

key assumptions;

assessing the fair value less cost of disposal of the relevant assets,
on a sample basis, with reference to recent market prices for

similar assets with similar capacity.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B 7 B3R

=)

Assessing the recoverability of trade receivables

W B R T [ U A R A

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 130-133.

RE A B FEIRANZ21 LRE 130-133 AR S 5K °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENETNAEEZSE

As at 31 December 2016 the Group had significant trade receivables

which were past due but not considered to be impaired.

The Group's customers are principally involved in the steel industry in
Mainland China which is facing challenges in terms of profitability and
liquidity. There is, therefore, a risk that trade receivables may not be

fully recoverable.

Management calculates the provision for doubtful debts based on an
estimate of the credit losses to be incurred, which is estimated by
taking into account the credit history of the Group's customers and
current market and customer-specific conditions all of which involve a

significant degree of management judgement.
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Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of trade receivables

included the following:

obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of management's key
internal controls relating to credit control, debt collection and

making provisions for doubtful debts;

obtaining an understanding of the basis of management's
judgements about the recoverability of individual trade receivable
balances, on a sample basis, and evaluating the provisions for
doubtful debts made by management for these individual balances
with reference to the debtors' financial condition, the industry in
which the debtors are operating, the ageing of overdue balances,
agreed repayment arrangements and historical and post year end

payment records;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea
B2 BETERE a0

Assessing the recoverability of trade receivables (continued)

L B % ) [ L R (R

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 130-133.

RE LB FEIHANZ21 L RE 130-133 BRI S 5K °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENETNAEEZSE

The Group's provision for doubtful debts includes a specific element
based on individual debtors and a collective element based on

historical experience adjusted for certain current factors.

We identified assessing the recoverability of trade receivables as a
key audit matter because of the significant degree of management
judgement involved in determining the level of provision for doubtful
debts, particularly because certain customers may be in financial

difficulty and unable to pay their debts.

BB RRRERREERERN T AFERRER - URRE
B ERMARENDERZERER T AFERIE -

RMERUERT BT R A BREN B8 - BALRE
RIELERTE S RAE BN - AARLRS TR
SEBTEALERET -

assessing the classification of trade receivables in the trade
receivable ageing report by comparing a sample of individual items

with sales invoices and other relevant underlying documentation;

assessing the assumptions and estimates made by the management
for the provision for doubtful debts calculated based on a
collective assessment by performing a retrospective review of the
historical accuracy of these estimates and recalculating the Group's
provision with reference to the Group's policy for collective

assessment;

comparing cash receipts, on a sample basis, from customers
subsequent to the reporting date relating to trade receivable
balances as at 31 December 2016 with bank statements and other

underlying documentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Revenue recognition - multiple deliverables

BELZERNBIBAER

Refer to Note 4 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 151.

REENBHENFAIR2IURE 15| ERBFTBE

The Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENETNAEEZSE

The Group has entered into a construction and gas supply service
agreement with a customer. This arrangement contains two separate
components: construction services and gas supply services and it is
necessary to allocate revenue to each of these two components with

reference to their relative fair values.

The recognition of revenue is largely dependent on the terms of the
underlying contract with the customer, including the nature of the
separate deliverables within the contract, achieving milestones within
the contract and the mechanisms in the contract by which risks and

rewards of goods and services are transferred to the customer.
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Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue where there

are multiple deliverables included the following:

HIELE

inspecting the gas supply service agreement to evaluate
management's identification of the arrangement’s components and
determine whether a stand-alone value to the customer exists for
each of the identified components in the overall arrangement with

the customer;

evaluating management's measurement process and the
assumptions adopted in the allocation of revenue to separately
identified components, in particular (i) the determination of the
relative fair value of each component with reference to estimated
costs and profit margins for construction services and gas supply

services and (ii) the discount rate applied;

assessing the most significant inputs used by management
in determining the fair value of construction services, by (i)
comparing the estimated construction costs with management's
budget and supplier contracts and (i) comparing the profit margin
for construction services with profit margins for comparable

companies with similar projects;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea

B ZHBERE @

Revenue recognition - multiple deliverables (continued)

BESERNBIMARER (H)

Refer to Note 4 and 2/ to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 151.

R E AW EHFEN TR 21 URE 15| BHIS5FHE

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENETNAEEZSE

The determination of whether a component within an arrangement
has a stand-alone value to the customer and whether the fair value
of the component can be measured reliably depend on facts and

circumstances and requires the exercise of management judgement.

We identified the recognition of revenue where there are multiple
deliverables as a key audit matter because of the complexity of the
arrangement entered into by the Group with the customer and
because significant management judgement is involved, which included
the identification of the separate components in the arrangement and
the determination of relative fair value of each component and the

discount rate applied.
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assessing management's judgements applied in the estimation
of total construction costs by performing a retrospective review
of the historical accuracy of the estimations of relevant costs of
similar plant construction in the prior year and investigating any

significant differences;

comparing the most significant inputs used by management in
determining the fair value of gas supply services, including the
profit margin, with profit margins for comparable gas plants owned

by the Group and third party gas suppliers with similar gas plants;

obtaining an external confirmation of the stage of completion of
the construction work and inspecting documentation indicating
customer acceptance of the work done to establish whether

contractual milestones had been achieved:;

re-calculating the percentage of completion of construction
services at the end of the reporting period by comparing the
actual costs incurred and agreed by the customer to date with

total estimated costs to completion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continen)

B Z AR E @)

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
all the information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for

overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea
BIZEMBRE @

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility

towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or

the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continen)

B Z AR E @)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea
BIZEMBRE @

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Au

Yat Fo.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

13 April 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
BOFFEREMgRE N mE R

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BEWICFNAIALFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

P ARBTR ARETT

Revenue A 4 8,403,932 791886l
Cost of sales HEMAK (5,850,474)  (5368593)
Gross profit E£7 2,553,458 2,550,268
Other income HtA 5 52,196 32875
Selling expenses HEEM (159,621) (207,204)
Administrative expenses ERER (474,118) (500,770)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment ¥ - B RREBARE

and construction in progress BRIRRERSSE [1/12 (611,912 —
Profit from operations REWH 1,360,003 1,875,169
Finance income B I ON 6(a) 79,519 30,851
Finance costs FHSRCAR 6(a) (1,016,836) (968,324)
Share of results of associates JEIEME RRIRE (49,750) 13,881
Share of results of joint ventures il NTE 3 (18) (1,087)
Profit before taxation BRE AT 7 E 6 372918 950490
Income tax st 7 (521,094) (417,785)
(Loss)/profit and total AE(FR)/FBK

comprehensive income for the year GENEAE (148,176) 532,705
Attributable to: UT&FER:
Equity shareholders of the Company AAREERAA (142,589) 535941
Non-controlling interests RO T (5,587) (3,236)
(Loss)/profit and total XE(BR)/FER

comprehensive income for the year REWREE (148,176) 532,705
(Loss)/earnings per share (RMB cents) BR(ER) BAAR%ESD) 10
Basic AR (8.0) 300
Diluted e} (8.0) 300
The notes on pages | 13 to 245 form part of these financial statements. FIBEREMSENMT AR BRENAE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B IR R
at 3| December 2016
R20165F 12831 B

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RARBIIR)

2016 2015

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

Pt &£ ARETR ARETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment, net mE - BERRE FE [ 10,632,823 10,274,282
Construction in progress TEIR 12 2,085,920 3013037
Lease prepayments MERNE 13 407,286 416,483
Intangible assets R EE 14 40,964 47863
Receivables under finance leases EREEHER 15 9,628 10,638
Interest in associates REE QRIS 17 184,001 518,671
Interest in joint ventures iRV E0F = 18 249,434 263,694
Other non-current assets A EReEE 19 1,273,515 1,081,786
Deferred tax assets EERBEE 7(d) 138,509 165,006
Total non-current assets FRBEELRE 15,022,080 15791460
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 108,443 102,422
Trade and other receivables JE Mo AR % e L P M R0 21 2,049,518 2,682,864
Receivables under finance leases EREERER [5 2,117 2,117
Income tax recoverable QR EEET 7(c) 5,209 7,604
Other financial assets HthepEE 33(e) 68,587 —
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER 22 1,229,769 309,526
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBReEEY 23 736,855 678,450
Total current assets RBEEAR 4,200,498 3,782,983
Current liabilities RBAE
Borrowings fa& 24 3,878,769 1,603,338
Trade and other payables JEAST BRI ELAh JE 5 R IE 25 1,849,207 2,285,508
Obligations under finance leases BEHERE 26 223,674 190,241
Income tax payable P AT G5 7() 242,300 184,940
Total current liabilities nBeEeE 6,193,950 4,264,027
Net current liabilities RBAETRH (1,993,452) (481,044)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBEE 13,028,628 15310416
The notes on pages | 13 to 245 form part of these financial statements. FIBEREMSENMTARRBRENAE

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2016



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

SRR @

at 31 December 2016
20165124318
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AAR®SITR)
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

P ARBTR ARETT

Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Borrowings & 24 6,505,224 8,060,162
Obligations under finance leases BMEREERE 26 115,892 224,855
Other non-current liabilities At IFRBAE 27 56,777 53,376
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEAR 7(d) 101,962 93431
Total non-current liabilities kRBEELERE 6,779,855 8,431,824
Net assets BEFE 6,248,773 6,878,592
Equity E#
Share capital R 29 12 12
Reserves f#E 6,083,420 6,707,652
Total equity attributable to equity AAREGEREABGERER

shareholders of the Company 6,083,432 6,707,664
Non-controlling interests FERRRER 165,341 170928
Total equity g n k] 6,248,773 6,878,592
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on |3 April 2017. BEEN2017F4R 3ABERRENE -

Zhongguo Sun Trevor Raymond Strutt
Director Director
EF EE

The notes on pages | 13 to 245 form part of these financial statements. FIBEREMSENMTARBRENAE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

s N 2 g

B EREBR
for the year ended 31 December 2015
BEWISFNA3IBLEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARERA AR

Non-

Share Share Statutory Other Retained controlling Total

Note capital premium reserve reserve eamings Total interests equity
SHER

iz RE  BROEE  EERE  EhEE  REEA g RRER  EnsE
RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note29)  (Note 30(0)) (Note 30(d))  (Note 30(e)
(329 (WEE300) (HFE30)  (HFE30E)

Balance at | January 2015 BWISEI A RERE

2 2919808 758,040 (352045) 3309817 6635632 107891 6743523
Changes in equity for 2015: WISFRRET

Profit and total comprehensive MERkEFa W

income — — — — 535941 53594l (3236) 532,705
Effect on share schemes Rinaraly 2 28 — — — 17325 — 17325 — 17325
Appropriations L - — 127,382 — (1738 - - -
Dividends approved in respect BRLEENESRES

of the previous year 30(0) — — — — (98T (369867) —  (369867)
Interim dividends approved in respect /5 BN EE R EK)

of the current interim period BERFHRE 30(b) — - — — (0% (111094) —  (11,094)
Capital contribution from FRRBERENTE

anon-controling shareholder — — — — — — 68,000 68,000
Purchase of non-controlling interests 5 & FE AR IR R 2 — — — (n) — (n) (1727) (2,000)
Balance at 31 December 2015 BWISEIA3 RRE 12 2919808 885422 (334993) 3237415 6,707,664 170928 6,878,592
The notes on pages | 13 to 245 form part of these financial statements. FIREEFMENMTARMBERROAE

e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continuea

s N 2 g
EOERZER @
for the year ended 31 December 2016
BEWICFNAIALFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARREREE AR
Non-
Share Share Statutory Other Retained controlling Total
Note capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
FER

fitE RE  ROGEE AERE  EtEE  REER g RREZ  ERAE
RMBO0O  RMB0O0  RMB000  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBI00O
ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARBTRT ARBTRT AR%TR AR%TR ARETR
(Note29) (Note30(c) (Note30(d)) (Note30(e))
(W29 (EE0)  (WE30d)  (HEE30()

Balance at | January 2016 B16E1 A1 REE 12 2919808 885422 (334993  3TAI5 6707664 170928 6,878,592
Changes in equity for 2016: WI6FREEE
Loss and total comprehensive PRk NS

income — — — — (142589 (142.589) (5587)  (148.76)
Effect on share schemes Rinaraly 2 28 — — — 45,827 - 45,827 - 45,827
Appropriations L — — 142,953 - (1429%3) — — —
Dividends approved in respect BRLEENESRES

of the previous year 30(0) — - — —(264680)  (264680) —  (264680)
Interim dividends approved in respect /5 BN EE R EK)

of the current interim period BERFHRE 30(b) — — — —  (262790)  (262,790) —  (262790)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R2016F 12831 BEE 12 2,919,808 1,028,375 (289,166) 2,424,403 6,083,432 165,341 6,248,773
The notes on pages | |3 to 245 form part of these financial statements. FIBEEFMENMTARMBEREROAE
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHEERER
for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE016F 12831 BLLFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBFIT)

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P & ARBTR ARETT
Operating activities ReEs
Profit before taxation Bk 25 A 1) 372918 950,490
Adjustments for: FHEIEE :
Depreciation e 6(c) 882,886 753,669
Amortisation B 6(c) 16,266 12,947
Finance income KA 6(a) (79,519) (30,851)
Finance costs B R AR 6(a) 1,016,836 968324
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE R&ES (W),
plant and equipment BEFE 6(c) (2,658) 10,615
Share of results of associates FElEEERRIRE 49,750 (13,881)
Share of results of joint ventures FBIEEERAIER 18 1,087
Impairment loss on other non-current assets HinsEme & ERERE 6(c) — 10,000
Impairment loss on interest in joint ventures NEERAIERAERE 6(c) 15,034 —
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and ~ ¥1% ~ iE R A K
construction in progress ERIERERRE 6(c) 611,912 —
Increase in inventories FEEM (6,021) (4,664)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other receivables P OB 0 LA B W K0
Wb/ () 217,390 (378756)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables JE 15 R 30 S EL A FE £ 3K08
ORi), /1 (169,464) 176,138
Cash generated from operations RETBRENRERE 2,925,348 2455118
Interest received 2HALE 9,519 27414
Interest paid ERFLE (624,764) (683,787)
Income tax paid B AT 7() (428,400) (424316)
Income tax refund PrGTHLRTR 7(c) 2,089 —
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHRESNREFHR 1,883,792 1,374,429

£IBEEEMSENMEARUBRRNA

The notes on pages | 13 to 245 form part of these financial statements.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement «continueq)
EHBEERER @)

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BEWICFNAIALFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Investing activities REED

Capital expenditure BARRX (927,764) (1,123471)
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged bank deposits BEARITERRLD /(L 10) 158,492 (178500)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment & « BE KX EFTE A 67,985 427938
Proceeds from disposal of interest in an associate REREE R RIERFGHIE 18,752 25,000
Collection of receivables under finance leases WEIEKmERER 2,245 2,245
Payment for investment in an associate REME AR T NFHIEA (3,230) (24,041)
Payment for purchase of non-controlling interests EERTERBERER Y 508 — (2,000)
Dividend received from an associate B E D RIRRE — 2,700
Dividend received from other investment B EARER S 2,999 —
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFANRESFE (680,521) (870,129)
The notes on pages | 13 to 245 form part of these financial statements. FIBEEEMSENMFARTBERENA
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

SHRERER m®
for the year ended 31 December 2016

HBE016F 12831 B LFR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P & ARETRT AREBTZT

Financing activities MEEH
Proceeds from loans ERATSR0R 3,187,616 2,562,054
Repayment of loans BEER (2,416,305)  (3,103921)
Proceeds from finance lease transaction BMEMERHMERIE 87,500 130,500
Payment of obligations under finance leases BEREREABENHE (196,059) (426,052)
Proceeds from corporate bonds BITARESGIE — 953,340
Increase in restricted cash pledged for borrowings EREREAXRERESMIEM (1,078,735) —
Payment for repurchase of senior notes BAREROEXNHE 24(f) (207,481) (142,774)
Capital injection from a non-controlling shareholder IR R EFEE — 68,000
Dividend paid to equity shareholders of the Company XA BIRE AR E 30(b) (527,470) (480,961)
Net cash used in financing activities RETHFMANRLFE (1,150,934) (439.814)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERBAEEBEMENTFR 52,337 64,486
Cash and cash equivalents at | January RIRBIBRERREEEY 678,450 606,359
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEEXRBNTE 6,068 7,605
Cash and cash equivalents at 3| December RNAIBRERRSEEY 23 736,855 678,450

The notes on pages | 13 to 245 form part of these financial statements.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RER AR R

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

| CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 25 September 2007 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Group is
principally engaged in the production and sales of industrial gases in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Company's shares have been listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange since 8 October 2009.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@)  Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs") and
Interpretations promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant

accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group.
Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
In determining the appropriate basis of preparation of financial statements,
the directors are required to consider whether the Group can continue in

operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain
adequate cash flow from operations to meet debt obligation as they fall due

and financial support from bankers to meet future capital expenditures.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of RMB
736,855,000 (2015: RMB 678,450,000); the Group also had net current
liabilities of RMB 1,993,452,000 (2015: RMB 481,044,000) and total
borrowings of RMB 10,383,993,000 (2015: RMB 9,663,500,000).

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The total borrowings included a syndicated loan of USD 90,000,000 and
HKD 77,500,000 (see Note 24(b)) equivalent to RMB 680,794,000. The
Group has failed to fulfil a financial covenant requirement in relation to the
amount of the net tangible assets of the Group (“Event of Default”) under
the syndicated loan and the Group has not remedied this requirement at
the reporting date. Therefore, the syndicated loan lenders have (via the
syndicated loan agent) the right at any time by notice to the Group to
require the syndicated loan to be immediately repaid prior to its original
repayment dates as defined in the original syndicated loan agreement. As at
31 December 2016, the entire outstanding amount of the syndicated loan
was reclassified as current liabilities. The directors are in communication
with the syndicated loan lenders about the syndicated loan and the Event of
Default. If the directors are unable to come to an acceptable arrangement
with the syndicated loan lenders with regards to the Event of Default and the
Company is unable to secure alternative funding to replace the syndicated
loan, then an acceleration of repayment of the syndicated loan may trigger
a cross default of other financial indebtedness and result in the Group being
under an immediate repayment obligation for such financial indebtedness.
As of the date hereof, the Company has not received notice from the

syndicated loan agent to accelerate the repayment of the syndicated loan.

The directors have reviewed the current performance and cashflow
projections as part of their assessment, on the Group's going concem, and
after carefully considering the matters described above, the directors have
a reasonable expectation that the Group is able to continue as a going
concern for at least next twelve months from the end of the reporting

period and to meet its obligations, as and when they fall due.

Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial statements for the

year ended 31 December 2016 on a going concem basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The directors have reviewed the current performance and cashflow

projections as part of their assessment of the Group's going concern, and

after carefully considering the matters described above, the directors have

a reasonable expectation that the Group is able to continue as a going

concern for at least next twelve months from the end of the reporting

period and to meet its obligations, as and when they fall due, having regard

to the following:

0

(i)

(v)

(vi)

the Group generated net cash from operating activities of
approximately RMB 1,884 million during the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: RMB 1,374 million) and expects to continue to improve
its working capital management and generate positive operating cash

flows for the next twelve months;

at 31 December 2016, the Group has available unutilised bank
facilities of RMB 595 million;

the Group has the ability to renew or refinance the banking facilities

upon maturity;

the directors have been actively communicating with the lenders of

the syndicated loan as mentioned above;

the Group determines to postpone certain planned capital

expenditure for the next twelve months; and

according to the Company's offer announcement from PAGAC -2
Limited (“PAG" or “Offeror”) dated 7 March 2017 (“"PAG Offers"),
as further explained in Note 35, PAG provided voluntary conditional
cash offers to acquire all issued shares of the Company at HKD 6

per share, for a total maximum consideration of approximately HKD

1,288 million.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
It has been stated in the PAG Offers that "It is the Offeror’s intention
to acquire a majority interest in the Company pursuant to the Offers.
The Offeror intends to maintain the Company’s existing principal
activities. After completion of the Offers, the Offeror will assist the
Company to review its existing funding programs in place, to optimise
its capital structure to ensure adequate liquidity in the context of the
Company's business activities, and in general to assist in improving the

Company's operations to create shareholder value.”

As refer to the announcement dated 6 April 2017, the PAG Offers
have become unconditional in all respects, taking into account of
approximately 23.61% of issued share capital held by PAG and
valid acceptance under the PAG Offers which resulted PAG and its
Concert Parties holding an aggregate of approximately 53.87% of the
issued share capital and voting rights of the Company. PAG is the

largest shareholder of the Company.

Consequently, the directors have concluded that the Company and the
Group have the ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
financial statements have been prepared on a basis that the Group will be

able to continue as a going concem.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3| December
2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and the Group's interest in

associates and joint ventures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements
is the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out

below:

= financial instruments classified as available-for-sale or as trading

securities (see Note 2(f)); and

= derivative financial instruments (see Note 2(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARE

2

JII7R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

©

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group. None of these
developments have had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or

presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not

yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests
which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests'

proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with Notes 2(p) or (q)

depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no

adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see Note 2(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or joint venture (see Note 2(e)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(k)), unless the

investment is classified as held for sale.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its management, including

participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or the Company and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and

have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the investee's net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see Note 2(k)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate or the
joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group's long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or the

joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment

continues to be accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial

recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(f)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARE

2

JII7R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(®

Other investments in equity securities
The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other than

investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is
their transaction price unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as

follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assets. Any
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
in Note 2(v) (iv).

Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment

losses (see Note 2(k)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted price in an active
market for an identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of financial position at
cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(k)). Dividend income from equity
securities is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set

out in Note 2(v) (iv).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(®

(h)

Other investments in equity securities (continued)

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see Note 2(k)), the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits to

purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss

on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(k)).

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under
construction and equipment pending installation, and is initially recognised
at cost. Cost comprises cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs (see Note 2(x)). The
construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when the asset is substantially ready for its intended use, notwithstanding any
delays in the issue of the relevant commissioning certificates by the relevant

PRC authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are

recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight

line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings |5 - 35 years
Plant and machinery 5-20 years
Motor vehicles and other equipment 5- 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an

asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

R
T
s |
§ e
o it
H
s
S
all

S

2

(h)

TESHHE @)

mE - BERRE (&)

BEXHENF  BFERRERE
FEAMBRIARR HEMERE
FRERREECHANEZRET -
I B #RRE B B DB 0 1R AR B

5
o

TERRENE  BFER&REHREE
M AT ERER - FEANBRERF
BREEMIB)ER  KEREPHEE
A - W% - BERXEEB G
ATAIERERENMT

FE 15 - 354
T B 2R 5-204F
B REAMERE 5-10%
MENE  BELRBEEEEHS
ﬁ$ﬁmﬂﬁ%¢ﬂ'%ﬁamﬁ
$AEA@m%E & @5
7 BE{ES ”%%Jk%% B

E%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@u
B)OBFETER -

125




126

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development activities is capitalised
if the product or process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete development.
The expenditure capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour,
and an appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable (see Note 2(x)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see Note 2(k)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which

it is incurred.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and

impairment losses (see Note 2(k)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date

they are available for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Know-how 10 - 20 years

Software 5- 10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREBFIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FESHBEK @)
()  Leased assets () HEEE
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or MASEET  —HZHE TR

contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a B EENER - ZEET
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return BENEN WA TSR
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based TEARH  ZBTHBERS

on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

ARNR ) REBE—AME
AEEEHEZARTNERAT
& fEHLURE XA EEEZ
BEZHRABEENETIA

()  Classification of assets leased to the Group () *EBHEHEEENSE
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to AEENHERSE - B
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are BEENBRED BB KR
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not MEBE A EBMEERE
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the RBUARERE Hﬁ?—fﬁ_ fk
Group are classified as operating leases, except for land held for BETARNB AL S
own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot be HHEEEREE E’\ﬁﬁfé::ﬁ
measured separately from the fair value of a building situated thereon BREENRE  BRUAKLE
at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a HEFAFIEE RN Ik

finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()  Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

(ii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where it
is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in Note 2(h). Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in Note 2(k).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged

to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()  Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Operating lease charges (continued)

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment property or is held

for development for sale.

Receivables under finance lease

Where the Group leased out assets under finance lease, the initial
direct costs incurred on such assets are recorded as receivables
under finance lease. Finance income implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the receivables for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent the purchase costs of land use rights to
the PRC govemmental authorities or third parties. Lease prepayments
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(k)). Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the respective periods of the land use rights.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets

()  Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of

the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or

legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an

investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FESHBEK @)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) k EERE (8)
() Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables () BRABLZRERHEMERR
(continued) BHHE SR (E)

MEMZZEPRFE » Ef]
BERNRESESRERN
N

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and

recognised as follows:

For investments in associates and joint ventures accounted
for under the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements (see Note 2(e)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with Note 2(k) (ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount in accordance with Note 2(k) (ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity securities carried at cost are not

reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
AARBFIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

()  Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables

(continued)

For trade and other receivables and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets with credit

risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined

had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group s satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  construction in progress;

—  lease prepayments;

—  intangble assets;

—  other non-current assets (excluding receivables); and

— investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that are not yet available
for use, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not

there is any indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FESHBEK @)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) k EERE (8)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) HittEENHEE)
—  Calculation of recoverable amount —  FEAKEERE
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair BEMAKESHER
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value HEARBEREEK
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their KEFAEERET
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current REEE - EFEFE
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks BAEER  HitAX
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash Bemnekn sl Rp
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the BTSSR
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of BEREERTER
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash- B 2T (& A Fi BT BE 3R &
generating unit). AREERE - 1R
BEMEENRER
ARR EWFEBIR
HthEEMESMR
EmE - BB
EXRERENKN
BEARN(ARSESE
B ) RHEE AT E &
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or

value in use (if determinable).

—  Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) ) EESHBE @)
(k)  Impairment of assets (continued) k EERE (8)
(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment (i) PHEBRERRBE

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock BRERBBARIMARD

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare AEFLMHAA  AEEF

an interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial ERER 2 ERE 345

reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the (PR BRERE G

end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment HEEENEANT RIS

testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the Wy N EHRERER

financial year (see Notes 2(k) (i) and (ii)). FRZMENG  BRRE
|12 (2 R 200) &
(ii)) °

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of 2 & R ERRE R N LA B AR 51 R

unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in a MIEETRAZEHFRNRE

subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, BB TeEBERE - 8

would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed only 5P £ 7 B BA R AR B 0 RL(E S

at the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates. B MBFHHEE F&E
ERAT LR BRNER
BARL  TAeRA @R
BEEED -

() Inventories n =E

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all

costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing

the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(m)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write- down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal

occurs.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically negotiated with a customer
for the construction of an asset or a group of assets, where the customer is
able to specify the major structural elements of the design. The accounting
policy for contract revenue is set out in Note 2(v) (ii). When the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as an expense by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract at the end of the reporting period. When it is probable that total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately. VWWhen the outcome of a construction
contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period are
recorded at the net amount of costs incurred plus recognised profit less
recognised losses and progress billings, and are presented in the statement
of financial position as the “Gross amount due from customers for contract
work” (as an asset) or the “Gross amount due to customers for contract
work” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet paid by the
customer are included under “Trade debtors and bills receivable”. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are presented as “Advances

received” under “Trade and other payables”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARESITR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) ) EESHBE @)
(n)  Trade and other receivables (n) BURERMRKAEBERRIE
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and JEUBR TN R Hofh R IBIR A 1 (B
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less BVIRER  H@AAMFI B L

(©)

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(k)), except where

the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any

fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In

such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts.

Convertible notes

(i)

Convertible notes that contain an equity component
Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at

the option of the holder, where the number of shares that would be

e 2 60 B R B AR R IR R 1B ZE
E3EIELTREEY S 36
BARRRGHEE N2 EEERE
BRHNERKUROTEY T~ E
REIBRSN « EURERT « BKHKIE
BRARRIRREERZS) -

BET
() BEEERONTERES
BTHRES HHEE AT
BB B WRARA

issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that would MBRAREHENERY

be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as compound BHe 22 » Bln &k

financial instruments which contain both a liability component and an BEEEREEEERD %[]%

equity component, mRMHEE eI A
SRS -

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible notes
is measured as the present value of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market rate of interest applicable at
the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the amount
initially recognised as the liability component is recognised as the
equity component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity

components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
AARBFIT)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Convertible notes (continued)

(i)

Convertible notes that contain an equity component (continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost.
The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective interest method. The
equity component is recognised in the capital reserve until either the

note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together with the
carrying amount of the liability component at the time of conversion,
is transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the capital reserve is

released directly to retained profits.

Other convertible notes
Convertible notes which do not contain an equity component are

accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component of the convertible
notes is measured at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments (see Note 2(g)). Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as the liability component. Transaction costs that relate
to the issue of the convertible note are allocated to the liability and
derivative components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability component
is recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion relating to the

derivative component is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)  Convertible notes (continued)

(i)

Other convertible notes (continued)

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured in accordance
with Note 2(g). The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss
on the liability component is calculated using the effective interest

method.

If the note is converted, the carrying amounts of the derivative
and liability components are transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed, any difference between the amount paid and the carrying

amounts of both components is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(P)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest

and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except for
financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with Note 2(u) (i),
trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated

at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Obligations for contributions to PRC local government defined
contribution retirement plans pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance, which is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees, are recognised as an

expense in profit or loss when incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)  Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of shares granted to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the
binomial option pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the shares were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the shares, the total estimated fair value of
the shares is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the

probability that the shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of shares that is expected to
vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company's shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the share is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or the share

expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(®)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)  Share-based payments (continued)
Where the share-based payments are arranged through trust and
the Company transfers cash to the trust to enable the trustee to
buy shares of the Company on the market, the shares purchased are
treated as treasury shares of the Company and the purchase of shares
in the market by the trust has no effect on the financial statements of

the Company.

(i)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination

benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARE

2

JII7R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

©

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are

recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current
tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities

and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)  Income tax (continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the

current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(u)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

()  Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (ie. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with

the terms of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of
the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group's policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred

income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with Note 2(u) (i) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARMFIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FESHBEK @)
(v)  Revenue recognition (v) WARER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,

revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

WARNE RS ERRENAAE
[ERETEH - MRLBENRRAEE

ERAREE - MBARKA(IR
R X e Hm] St 20 - WA

EeRETINEENBRER

()  Sale of goods iy HEER
Revenue is recognised when gas products are delivered at the WAERBERRERTP
customers' premises or collected by the customer which is taken RAEPIEEE  EPE
to be the point in time when the customer has accepted the gas BWZREERREMmARE
products and the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue $ﬁ 8 Y BB A [0 3R B DA BE
excludes value added tax and other sales taxes and is after deduction Ao WAREEER K EAM
of any trade discounts. EEB  WEMBREMEE

i -

(i)  Revenue from construction contract (iy BESHABA
When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated MR R hEt 8RR B
reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract is recognised using the T ET BHRHBRAETK
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to surveys DHERANE - T2RE
of work performed or completion of a physical proportion of the ﬁﬁl%‘iﬁ’\],ﬂﬁf A
contract work for the contract. TREMBH MK IE R

g .

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated HEXR ST AN
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs WAEBRAH M&@E@EE_E
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. BHIRATER -

iy Service income (i)  FREWA

Service income from the rendering of services is recognised when the

related services are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
AARBFIT)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)  Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

(vii)

Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the

shareholder's right to receive payment is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest

method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of

reduced depreciation expense.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are

earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARE

2

JII7R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Renminbi
at the applicable rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China
(“PBOC") prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into RMB at the applicable
PBOC rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and

losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using applicable PBOC rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the

applicable PBOC rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the

Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or the Group's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary

is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Related parties (continued)

()

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies: (continued):

)

(vi)

(vii)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in ().

A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who

may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
financial statements, are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the

Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually

material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sales of industrial
gases in the PRC. Although the industrial gases are sold to on-site and
merchant customers, the Group's most senior executive management
regularly review their combined financial information to assess the
performance and make resource allocation decisions. Accordingly, no

segment information is presented.

Substantially all of the Group's external customers and non-current assets

are located in the PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARE

JII7R)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Group's financial position and financial performance are sensitive to accounting
methods, assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation of these
financial statements. The Group bases the assumptions and estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that the Group believes to be
reasonable and which form the basis for making judgements about matters that
are not readily apparent from other sources. On an on-going basis, management
evaluates its estimates. Actual results may differ from those estimates as facts,

circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other uncertainties
affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported results to
changes in condition and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
these financial statements. The principal accounting policies are set out in Note
2. The Group believes the following critical accounting policies involve the most
significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of these financial

statements.

(@)  Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

()  Construction contracts
As explained in policy Note 2(m) and 2(v) (ii), revenue recognition on
an uncompleted project is dependent on estimating the total outcome
of the construction contract, as well as the work done to date. Based
on the Group's recent experience and the nature of the construction
activity undertaken by the Group, the Group makes estimates of the
point at which it considers the work is sufficiently advanced such that
the costs to complete and revenue can be reliably estimated. As a
result, until this point is reached the amounts due from customers for
contract work will not include profit which the Group may eventually
realise from the work done to date. In addition, actual outcomes in
terms of total cost or revenue may be higher or lower than estimated
at each of the reporting period, which would affect the revenue and
profit recognised in future years as an adjustment to the amounts

recorded to date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(@)  Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

(continued)

(ii)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the
assets regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives are based on the Group's historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are

significant changes from previous estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(@)  Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

(continued)

(iii)

Impairment of assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable, this asset may be considered “impaired”,
and an impairment loss may be recognised in profit or loss. The
carrying amounts of assets are reviewed periodically in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell
and the value in use. In determining the value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to the level of sales
revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of sales
revenue and amount of operating costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the carrying value of the assets and
could result in additional impairment change or reversal of impairment

in future years.

i
E
0
g
>
-
=
S
alj

S

3 EETHE R (@
@ AEEEHBRREATHERSS

B (&)
(i) EERME
WERBEREEENREE

BRI E AR - ZEE
SWRATEDRE] - MR
EEBENEEER - BE
HEEEESLTHEN
R ¢ BREE &
ZERREEEE - EHEMH
FEREHBERZEEEN
B EEEE R AR
B eHREEEENEN
2 EREREN  REE
BEREAMREEE - 7K
B BEAR B ERMHEEX
AYEREEREFORS
E -BEGRAEER  ZE
EEEMBHRSRESN
BEHRE MUEFTEHHE
ERAKTEREENASHE
fEHERHE - REEER
EAMESENE BN
eMAMERKBITRAMNE
B BEREAERNNR
RS EHERA
REEKNALENEA - %
EfhEmg @T%Qﬁé%
MEAEEEAYE
HeE ﬁ*Xirmﬁ%ﬁ
BEARERE

159




160

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

@)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

(continued)

(iv)  Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
The Group has entered into long-term gas supply contracts with on-
site customers for periods up to 30 years. The production facilities
are built on or in close proximity to the on- site customers for the
supply of industrial gases to such customers (“on-site facilities”). The
Group receives fixed annual amounts over the terms of the long-term
gas supply contracts plus variable charges based on the quantity of
industrial gases supplied. The Group also sells gas products produced

from the on-site facilities to merchant customers.

In determining whether the arrangement contains a lease, the Group
has considered the terms of the long-term gas supply contracts.
Pursuant to the terms of the long-term gas supply contracts, the on-
site customers do not have the right to operate or control physical
access to the on-site facilities. In addition, gas products produced
from the on-site facilities are also sold to merchant customers.
The amounts sold to the merchant customers are more than an
insignificant amount of the total gas products produced from the on-
site facilities. Accordingly, the Group concluded that the arrangement

of long-term gas supply contracts does not contain any lease.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 28, 33(e), and 32(c) contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to fair value of share options in share schemes, fair
value of financial instruments and the contingent liabilities relate to possible

losses that may occur in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

4 REVENUE 4 KA
The principal activities of the Group are production and sales of industrial gases in AEBNTIEEREERBNETESR
the PRC. Revenue represents the aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold or BAEREE WARKRBEEYRIIR
services provided, net of value added tax. HIRSRRERE - N5 EER -
The amount of each significant category of revenue is as follows: FTERBWANSRBYROT ¢
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETZT
Sales of industrial gases to on-site customers HETIERBRISHREP 7,021,211 6,886,264
Sales of industrial gases to merchant customers HETERENTERP 954,520 824,593
Revenue from other related services Hi A RB WA 428,201 208,004
8,403,932 7918861
The Group's customer base is diversified and includes only one customer with REFNETPEBZ T HAXFH
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenues. In 2016 BAEERNEANEBERA I E P
revenues from sales to this customer amounted to RMB 863,607,000 (2015: E—% RI6F REMZLZEEN
RMB 888,957,000). All the customers of the Group are from the PRC. HEIWA A ARKS63,607,0007T(2015
F: ANR¥888957,0007T) - AEEMA
BRGNS -
Details of concentration of credit risk arising from the customers are set out in EERPHNEEETRABEEHNIES]
Note 33(b). (b) °
5 OTHER INCOME 5 Bag A
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR
Profit on repurchase of senior notes (Note 24(f)) (B 58 8 SE R AR s (P 3T 24(1) 37,078 19,568
Government grant B8 10,159 18,559
Others Hith 4,959 (5.252)

52,196 32,875

=
S
alj

161

B
E
i
N
>
W

S



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RARBIIR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6 BRBAIFE

BEAIRIEE Mg (GEA) -

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE AREBTL
(@)  Finance costs/(income) @) EEBARE/(BA)
Interest income FEWA (9,519) (27415)
Finance income on receivables under finance leases FERREMERNRERA (1,235) (1,346)
Total interest income M B A L 5t (10,754) (28761)
Gain on remeasurement of BT eI AN KRS

derivative financial instruments (68,765) (2,090
Finance income FBRA (79.519) (30,851)
Interest expenses on bank loans and other borrowings RITERREMEENSHAX 632,694 712,133
Finance charges on obligations under finance leases HEHERRBNREER 19,399 35,244
Total interest expenses M B X st 652,093 747,377
Less: borrowing costs capitalised R BAMEEBR (40,815) (103,046)
Foreign currency exchange loss ERREPS 405,558 323993
Finance costs B RS 1,016,836 968,324
937,317 937473

The borrowing costs have been capitalised ERRARA TR EE KL -

at the following rates:

Capitalised interest rate (per annum) BERFIE(GEF) 4.4% - 8.2% 2.8%-8.1%
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

6

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6  FRBAIFIE (&)
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TRT
(b)  Staff costs (b) BIMK
Salaries, wages, bonuses and benefits g I8 RARERN 244793 286,929
Contributions to defined contribution HRTEHFURARETEINEHR
retirement schemes 24519 29,744
Expenses of share schemes (Note 8 and 28) B REEEIGERYGEVE) 9,792 8,199
279,104 324,872

Staff costs included the directors” emoluments (see Note 8).

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group's PRC
subsidiaries participate in defined contribution retirement schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the respective local government authorities whereby the Group is
required to make contributions to the Schemes at rates in the range of 12% to 20%

of the eligible employees’ salaries during the year.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme") under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HKD30,000

(HKD25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits

beyond the annual contributions described above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

6  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6  FRTAIFIE(E)
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P ARBTR AREBTZT
() Other items () HhEAE
Utilities ARER
— Electricity -B& 3,838,825 3,580,277
— Steam —&A 696,887 649,099
Depreciation nE I 882,886 753,669
Amortisation B
— Land lease prepayments —HEBNKIE 9,197 8,064
— Intangible assets -EEE 14 7,069 4883
Auditors’ remuneration AT R
— Audit services — BB 7,724 6,987
— Non-audit services — BB 213 184
Operating lease charges: minimum REMEER - REMERE
lease payment (land and buildings) (THEER) 19,013 17,720
Net (gain) / loss on disposal of property, HENE BEK
plant and equipment BiEn(Wm) /BRTEE (2,658) 10,615
Impairment losses recognised on AR TSIEE E’U?Jﬁk@lgﬁg
— Trade and other receivables — PR AR S e LA MR 81,684 143,577
— Non-current assets —FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE [ 46,893 -
Construction in progress ErIRE 12 565,019 -
Interest in joint ventures REERRIMER 15,034 -
Other non-current assets HithIEmE & E - 10,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARH

5I7)

7 INCOME TAX

@)

(b)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

FRE®

() FFARBHERERTPHBERRE

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR AREBTET

Provision for income tax for the year FRMAEHRE 486,066 419,042
Deferred tax BERETRIE 35,028 (1,257)
521,094 417,785

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax

(b) FERIHBRREARRFENS

rates: FREHE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TRT
Profit before taxation B 150 A 1 372918 950,490
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BAFENERTE
calculated at the rates applicable to the RABB R AR E R
jurisdictions concerned (Note (i) BEETE (M3 G) 267,041 41516
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AAENREOREYE 192,878 18,682
Tax losses and temporary differences not recognised KERRHEEERTRHEEZE 25,032 13,284
Reversal of deferred tax assets recognised in BRUARFERRZBEHIEEE
previous years 36,001 8,660
Effect of tax concessions (Note (i)) BBEENTZE (M) (27,556) (49,667)
Tax on distributable profits of subsidiaries st BB 2 R Al 2R A
in the PRC (Note (ii)) 8 (P (i) - 8,509
Tax effect in respect of share of results of BB E AR REERT]
associates and joint ventures EENRBTE 12,442 (3,199)
Others At 15,256 -
Actual income tax expense EREHAS 521,094 417,785
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

7

INCOME TAX (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax

rates: (continued)

Notes:

0

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax in the

Cayman Islands and BVI.

Hong Kong profits tax rate for 2016 is 16.5% (2015: 16.5%). No provision has
been made for Hong Kong profits tax as the Group did not earn any income

which is subjected to Hong Kong profits tax.

The provision for current PRC income tax is based on a statutory rate of
25% (2015: 25%) of the assessable profit as determined in accordance with
the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC, except for certain
subsidiaries of the Group, which operate in the western developing region of
the PRC are granted the preferential tax rate of 15%, pursuant to the relevant

documents issued by the state and local tax bureau of the PRC during 2016.

Withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by a treaty or agreement, is imposed
when dividends are distributed by a PRC-resident enterprise to its immediate
holding company outside mainland China for earnings generated beginning on
| January 2008. Undistributed eamings generated prior to | January 2008 are

exempted from such withholding tax.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

7 INCOME TAX (continued)

©

Income tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position

7

Frig i (&)

(0 AHMBRRRABRGHERE

represents:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
At | January ®IAIR 177,336 182,610
Provision for income tax for the year FRAMEHRE 486,066 419,042
PRC income tax paid B ERER (428,400) (424316)
PRC income tax refund REIPAE LR 2,089 -
At 31 December RI12A31H 237,091 177,336
Representing: ¥
Income tax recoverable Y EEEE (5,209) (7,604)
Income tax payable FERT AT 15T 242,300 184,940
237,091 177,336
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RAAR®3ITR)

7 INCOME TAX (continued)

7 FBH(#E

(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (d CEAELEHBEEERAESRE
(i) Movement of each component of deferred tax assets and liabilities () EEHBEEEN EERAR
BowED
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the REHE BT R ARERH
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements ERERBEE/(BE)N
during the year are as follows: WIS RPN ERNTEE
T
Property, ~ Allowance Tax loss Profits Accrued
plantand  for doubtful carry  expectedto  expenses not
equipment debts forwards distribute yet paid Total
ER =En BE HAXA
BERRE  REER  HEER  ORAE  RRER At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETRT ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR
(Note)
(BfE)
Deferred tax arising from: EERERE -
At | January 2015 R05FIA1A 20819 12,366 45331 (61,137) 52939 70318
Credited/(charged) to il
proft or loss ns/(GtA) 19,003 4401 (2261) (8,508) (11378) 1,257
At 31 December 2015 R20I5512A31 B 39822 16,767 43070 (69,645) 41,561 71575
At | January 2016 R0I6FIAIA 39,822 16,767 43,070 (69,645) 41,51 71,575
(Charged)/credited to St
profit or loss (BTA)/ 1k (29,307) (4634) (24,705) 54,156 (30538) (35,028)
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 12318 10515 12,133 18365 (15,489) 11,023 36,547
Note: BfsE -

Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed profits represent temporary differences

relating to the distributable profits accumulated since | January 2008 of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC that are expected to be distributed in the

foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARESIR)
7  INCOME TAX (continued) FR8%i (&
(d)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued) (d) Eﬁﬁ%}ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁ(%)
(i)  Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position (i) BHHBRRREE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETZT
Net deferred tax asset recognised in the RE GBI E P RN
consolidated statement of financial position ~ IEEF TR A &= F58 138,509 165,006
Net deferred tax liability recognised in the REFRI AR & HERR
consolidated statement of financial position EERBAETE (101,962) (93,431)
36,547 71,575
(e) Deferred tax assets not recognised on tax losses (e) FEREEHEEENTKER
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2(t), the Group REK 20 FIE M SRR - K
has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses ERVEERAEEADAREER
of RMB 176,991,000 (2015: RMB 153,768,000) as it is not probable that BARK176991,0007C(2015%F -
future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available ARHE 53,768,000 7T ) By IE FE 7R 18
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Tax losses of RMB 16,001,000, BE RN EEBE S ERE
RMB 42,072,000, RMB 30,272,000, RMB 37,077,000 and RMB 51,569,000, if BEREERM T AERK
unused, will expire in 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021, respectively. ZEENRREZR G - B8
BRARK 160010007 - AR
42,072,0007C ~ A K % 30,272,000
7T AR¥37,077000 L R AR
51,569,000 7T (fis R 8) 5 ) # 75 B IR
20174 ~ 20184 ~ 20194 ~ 2020
FER2021 FEHH -
(f)  Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (H FERELEHEAE

At 31 December 2016, temporary differences relating to the distributable
profits accumulated since | January 2008 of the Group's subsidiaries in the
PRC, that are not expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future,
amounted to RMB 6,124,587,000 (2015: RMB 6,146,491,000). Deferred

tax liabilities have not been recognised in respect of the tax that would be

R2016F 128318 AEEEH
EUFT 8 A R AT 1B R A R SR TR EA R
FHIRKIE2008%F | A | B Z5t
WA DR EEENEREERR
AR s, |245870007E(20|5¢ :

payable on distribution of these retained eamings as the Company controls ARG 1464910007 ) © # 5 IE
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is 2 (R R R FE S R R TE AR Fﬁﬁ’]}k
probable that these profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. HEARLHIEAERHNAN AL
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
AARBFIT)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong

EEHM

BAEE (A BEH)ZE 383(1) KE( A F
(ESEFREERB)ERE_FIHER
MEEFHMAB25/0T

Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

170

2016
Salaries, Retirement
Directors allowancesand  Discretionary scheme Share option
fees  benefits in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total scheme Total
A
RER BHER R
g HipER BfERA B 2 It it @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
Executive directors HiTEF
Zhongguo Sun Zhongguo Sun
(before 6 November 2016) (016F11A6R
Z8) - 1,639 4711 - 6416 - 6416
Trevor Raymond Strutt Trevor Raymond
(before 6 November 2016) Strutt
(016511 A6R
i) - 1657 2064 13 3734 - 3734
Zhao Xiengi HEE
(removed in March 2017) (07537
BER) - 79 - 6 80 - 80
He Yuanping T
(after 6 November 2016, and (016F11A6R
removed in March 2017) LR 0TE3A
BER) 13 - - - 13 - 13
Zhang Yunfeng (2ppointed in REE
November 2016, and (R2016511 A
removed in March 2017) BZfE R 0I7F
JRKES) - 340 - - 340 - 340

Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

8  DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS (continued) 8 EBEFM@
216
Salaries, Retirement
Directors' ~ allowancesand  Discretionary scheme Share option
fees  benefits in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total scheme Total
ge-
RER EHEH RhRE
g A BeERA  HEER it itH it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Non-executive directors HHEE
Zhongguo Sun Zhongguo Sun
(after 6 November 2016) (016F11A6R
) - - - - - - -
Trevor Raymond Strutt Trevor Raymond Strutt
(after 6 November 2016) (016F11A6R
) - - - - - - -
Suo Yaotang (appointed in gz
November 2016, and (R2016511 A
removed in March 2017) BEfE R0ITE
3ARES) 1,000 - - - 1,000 - 1,000
Incependent BUFHTEE
non-executive directors
Zheng Fuya g=3 175 - - - 275 - 275
Wang Ching ix 75 - - - 275 - 275
Feng Ke (appointed in Bt
November 2016,and (2016511 B
removed in March 2017) BZfE R0I7F
3ARES) % - - - % - %
He Yuanping T
(before 6 November 2016) (016F11A6R
) 168 - - - 168 - 168
Totd &t 1,757 4428 6841 8l 13,107 - 13,107
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

8

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 8 EBEFM@E
2015
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share
and benefits  Discretionary scheme option
Directors'fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total scheme Total
(Note)
EE
2ER RINER e
we  HtREN  BEEL  SEER e it 5t
(Ht3E)
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Executive directors HITEE
Zhongguo Sun Zhongguo Sun - 1,661 4691 - 6,352 [193 7545
Zhao Xiangti HIEE - 793 - 64 857 298 1,155
Trevor Raymond Strutt Trevor Raymond Strutt - [212 2,031 14 3257 596 3,853
Incependent BUFRTEE
non-executive directors
Zheng Fuya I 24| - - - 24| - 24|
Wang Ching IR 24| - - - 24| - 24|
He Yuanping fa BB 193 - - - 193 - 193
Total B 675 3666 6722 78 11,141 2087 13228
Note: st -

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors under the

Company's share option scheme. The value of these share options is measured according to

the Group's accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in Note 2(s)

(i),

The details of these benefits, including the principal terms and number of options granted,

are disclosed under the paragraph “Share Option Scheme” in the directors’ report and Note

28(a).
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, two (2015: two) are directors

whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in

respect of the other three (2015: three) individuals are as follows:

REFEMAL
TEFRHFMALTREME(0I15F - @
LIRES  HFEMAMEsHRE - H
B-RQ0I5F : ZR) AT FMERE
I

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ETRT AR®ETR

Salaries and other emoluments e REMET 3,314 3,356
Discretionary bonuses MIBTEAL 2,104 -
Share Allotment Scheme W1 LS5 T8I 30E 1,883 1,798
Retirement scheme contributions RIRERFT RIS R 162 |72
7,463 5326

The emoluments of the three (2015: three) individuals with the highest emoluments

are within the following bands:

FZ=H015F : =R )REHFMALH
FHNFTFIRE

Number of individuals

N |
2016 2015
HKD 1,500,001 to HKD 2,000,000 1,500,001 /7T & 2,000,000 77T
(RMB 1,283,514 to RMB 1,711,351) (ANRE 1283514 TZ AR 1711351 7T) 2 2
HKD 2,500,001 to HKD 3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T Z 3,000,000 & 7T
(RMB 2,139,189 to RMB 2,567,026) (AR#2,139,189 TE AR 2,567,026 7T) -
HKD5,000,001 to HKD5,500,000 5,000,001 /87T 2 5,500,000 7 7T
(RMB4,278,378 to RMB4,706,215) (ANR¥4278378 TE AR 47062157T) | -
3 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

10 (LOSS)/EARINGS PER SHARE 0 Sk(ER)BF
(a)  Basic (loss)/earnings per share @) EBREX(ER)/ B
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the loss BRERNER)/ BAREAR
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of RMB RIEEREREEAEEEEA
142,589,000 (2015: profit of RMB 535,941,000) and the weighted average R #142,589,00070(2015%F © &
number of shares of 1,793,173,500 issued and fully paid ordinary shares FAE®535941,0007) © ARE
(2015: 1,793,173,500 ordinary shares) during the year. WEEITREE I T T AR

1,793,173,500 % (20154F : & 3@ %
793,173,500 %) ©

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

10 (LOSS)/EARINGS PER SHARE (continued) 0 BRER) /28 @
(b)  Diluted (loss)/earnings per share b)) SRBE(EB) B
The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share is based on the loss H&L% (B8) /BAZRAR
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of RMB mER T—rﬁ}\fé{ggﬁgj\ﬁﬁg
142,589,000 (2015: profit of RMB 535941,000) and the weighted average \42,589,00075(20|5¢ DR AAR
number of ordinary shares of 1,793,173,500 shares (2015: 1,793,180,733 #535941,0007T) * LA R INiEF
ordinary shares), calculated as follows: @M% 1,793,173,500 B (2015 4
@R 17931807330 ) &t &
T
(i) (Loss)/Profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the () ZARAREERERHEARE
Company (diluted) H(BE) /B (EE)
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

(Loss)/Profit attributable to LaRERR A ARG (ER) /ME
ordinary equity shareholders (142,589) 535941
After tax effect of expenses recognised R EEIRRAER (TiR)

on the Share Allotment Scheme

(Loss)/Profit attributable to LERER A AR (EER),/
ordinary equity shareholders (diluted) ME(EE) (142,589) 535,941

N SR -
(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) (i) ERBMETIHA ()

2016 2015
Weighted average number of RI12A3 BEBRmETHER
ordinary shares at 3| December 1,793,173,500 1,793,173,500
Effect of Share Allotment Scheme (Note 28) BRH B 35T 2% 2 (171 28) - -
Effect of share option scheme (Note 28) R Bl 2 (15 28) - 7233
Weighted average number of RI12A31 BEBRINETHSE (858)
ordinary shares (diluted) at 31 December 1,793,173,500 1,793,180,733

RERBEEERA D 175
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RARBIIR)

[l PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT [ Y% BERZE
Motor
vehicles
Plant and and other
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment Total
BER RER
EE e  HiRE ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARTR

176

Cost:

At | January 2015
Additions
Transfer from construction in progress

Disposals

B
R20ISEIAIH
120
ERIREA
RE

807,738 11,301,346

1490 47810
64,894 887,196
— (1,259)

209648 12318732
14,172 63472
1204 953294
(7.051) (8310)

At 31 December 2015

R2015F12A31H

874,122 12,235,093

217973 13,327,188

At | January 2016
Additions
Transfer from construction in progress

Disposals

R2016F 1 A1 H
#m
EETRREA
RE

874,122 12,235,093
17,109 33,787
189,177 1,099,774
(4243)  (68,002)

217,973 13,327,188

13,310 64,206
490 1,289,441
(11226)  (83471)

At 31 December 2016

R2016F12A31 8

1,076,165 13,300,652

220,547 14,597,364

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) [l Y% BERSKE®E

Motor
vehicles

Plant and and other

Buildings ~ machinery  equipment Total
BER RER
EE e HtRE ast

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR AR®TRT AR®TR

Accumulated depreciation and Rl TEFHEERE -
impairment losses:

At | January 2015 R20I15F 1 A1 H (137739)  (2048855)  (I17,550)  (2,304,144)
Charge for the year AERITE (38613)  (685926) (29,130)  (753,669)
Written back on disposals REERER - 214 4693 4907
At 31 December 2015 20156 12 A31 A (176352)  (2734567)  (141,987)  (3,052906)
At | January 2016 201651 A1 H (176,352)  (2,734,567)  (141,987) (3,052,906)
Charge for the year REFHRITE (45,926)  (812,354) (24,606)  (882,886)
Impairment loss AEEE (22,513) (24,380) - (46,893)
Written back on disposals R ERED 764 9,516 7,864 18,144
At 31 December 2016 20165 12431 (244,027)  (3561,785)  (158,729)  (3,964,541)
Net book value: REFE

At 31 December 2016 R2016F 128318 832,138 9,738,867 61,818 10,632,823
At 31 December 2015 720156 12 A31 A 697,770 9,500,526 75986 10,274,282
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(@)

The Group's property, plant and equipment are mainly located in the PRC.

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group's borrowings and bills payable
were secured by the Group's plant and machinery with an aggregate net
book value of RMB 2,348,569,000 (2015: RMB 2,351,237,000).

Certain of the Group's leased plant and machinery are considered as being
held under finance leases. At the end of reporting period, net book value of
such plant and machinery held under finance leases was RMB 1,167,968,000
(2015: RMB 1,155,372,000).

The Group has entered into long-term gas supply agreements with certain
customers for periods up to 30 years. Certain of the Group's buildings
are located on land leased from these customers. Accordingly, property
ownership certificates are not obtained in respect of such buildings, with
an aggregate net book value amounted to RMB 487,906,000 as at 31
December 2016 (2015: RMB 315,668,000).

At 31 December 2016, the Group was in the process of applying for the
ownership certificates for certain buildings with an aggregate net book
value of RMB 139,432,000 (2015: RMB 68,149,000). The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly

occupy and use of the above mentioned buildings.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2016
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ARENR - BERKBEELR
P

R2016F 128318 REFER
A B AR 2,348569,0007T(2015
F: AR¥2351,237,0007C ) # R
FER#EE A REERNE TE
HRERZEEER

AEEFENETERE SRR
RUREEEAAFE -HER
EHR UREEEFABEMN
BERRENEAFEARARS
1,167968,000 7L (20154 = A R #&
1,155,372,000 7T ) °

AEEERETREPHEIRPRAE
HERE  ZREBRNFE A
EEETREMNRAELEFH
AR T E o B R20165F 12
A3 B REFERTRARE
487906,0007L(2015%F = A R #
315,668,000 7T ) ) L it 5 [ im R BX
BUMEMARES o

R2016F 128318 AEBEE
NEEEMARBENETRENE
EFEH R AR 139,432,000
L2015 = A K 68,149,000
L) AAREERR FEEAR
BAERANEBRERN LAl
FEE -



Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

®

Impairment losses of RMB 46,893,000, in respect of certain buildings, plant
and machinery which were obsolete, damaged or that could not generate
future economic benefits, were provided against for impairment for the year
ended 31 December 2016. No impairment loss was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Certain production facilities of the Group were occupied and controlled
by its on-site customer without the Group's consent. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment being
occupied was RMB 36,515,000 (2015: RMB 548,947,000). The Group is
under the process of communicating with the on-site customer and related
government authorities to resolve the dispute and believes that there will
not be any adverse material impact to the Group's consolidated financial

statements.

Bl
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s |
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S
all

#

NE - BERRE @)

(

BZE2016F1NA3BILEFE - 5
NEl - BEREEEERRLE
MERARYE - BERXECEH
RAEEBARE 468930007 ©
AEEREZE2015F 1283181
FERIRAESE -

AEEAF R EEREERLR
CEERENBEATHRARGHESR
EPGABILES - R20165F 12A
3B WEBENYE - BERR
R BREF(EE AR % 36,515,000
7L(2015% : A K #548,947,000
L) AREFRERBHRETP
RAB R E TR B BRZ
A WHEZADTEHEERS
HUBRERELEEATFFE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

12

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 2 #FEIR
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P&t ARBTR ARETT
At | January BIAIR 3,013,037 3,055457
Additions 2 927,343 910,874
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BAME - BER&E (1,289,441) (953,294)
Impairment losses REEE () (565,019) —
At 31 December B12A31H 2,085,920 3,013,037
Note: [
(i) Management of the Company determine whether there are indicators for [0) RI6E N A BARAGEEE®

construction in progress at 31 December 2016. Where indicators of impairment

are identified, the recoverable amounts of construction in progress are determined

by management as the greater of the value in use and the fair value less cost of

disposal of these assets. Where plant and machinery with impairment indicators

and management considered that the carrying value may not be fully recoverable, a

discounted cash flow forecast was prepared by management to determine the value

in use.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

12

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (continued)
Note: (continued)

()

(i

(continued)

In relation to the Kelamayi project involving the construction of a Coal to Hydrogen
plant, having assessed its prospects and the Company's financial resources, the
Company has decided to indefinitely suspend the project and will not make any
further investment into it. The equipment purchased under the project will be
transferred to other parts of the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries. As a
result, it indicates that construction in progress of the project in Kelamayi is impaired.
The Company re-assessed the recoverable amount of this project with reference
to the fair value less cost of disposal of these assets. For the assets which cannot be
moved or disposed, mainly plant under construction and the capitalised interest cost,
the Company decided to make full impairment provision as it is expected that the
recoverable amount is minimal. While, the equipment and machinery in Kelamayi
project site are nearly brand new, mainly includes a set of air separator and a set
of hydrogen manufacturing converter, can be moved from the construction site in
Kelamayi to another project. The Company assessed the recoverable amount of
these equipment and machinery based on these equipment and machinery's fair value
less costs of disposal, by reference to recent market prices of air separator set and
hydrogen manufacturing converter set of similar capacity and condition. As a resuft of
the above, a total impairment loss of RMB 481,686,000 for this project mainly related
to the plant under construction in Kelamayi was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Besides, impairment losses of RMB 83,333,000 were recognised on other construction
projects, mainly plants under construction, during the year ended 31 December 2016
due to projects suspension, primarily based on their assessment that the recoverable

amount is minimal.

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group's borrowings were secured by the
Group's construction in progress with an aggregate net book value of RMB 1,266,000
(2015: RMB 93,833,000).

R
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s
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HEEIR@E)
PitEE - (48)

()

(i)

(#8)
BRARNGK 2 EHEERIEE - A
NREHMEBEE S RAABZBE
KR BRATERBEEZIER
WABETE—FHRE - ZBELD
RERESEBEAEEE LR
B A ZERTERRRAIBRE
BEEIRFERETR - KRR
BRABEREERASTTETZ
FHE 2B S5 - ST EAB S
BRENEE IZAEEBEMEE
FEFERY - ADRBRTERERE
RREFE - A RRIBEEER
SRR EAR 2 TE0E—
EEpRENM—ERME 25X
AR EAG KRR SEEEAEE
S—IEE AREREBEZEZEZA
REEREERATE T ZERME2
Al ESE  YREEHRBHE
MZEDRENSREERB 2R
FmGE Bt REE016F 12
A3IBHILEE ARARZBEETE
RERMERRREBEETARE
481,686,000 7T

Btz oh - REE2016F 12A31H
HFE BREMESEEIRER
TR E E 18 A R 83333,0007T
ZESEERATRESEER

R2016F 128318 BEFEA
AR 1266000720155+ AR
#938330007T) MIEER TIRE A S
BERME TETIERER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RARBIIR)

LEASE PREPAYMENTS 13 HEENSHE
Lease prepayments comprise interests in leasehold land held for own use under HERNFEAESEHEBETHES
operating leases located in the mainland China and Hong Kong as follows: HAOERBEAERE SRS TR
25|
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Land use rights held under mid-term and PHRRAEEE THAN T IERE

long-term leases 407,286 416,483
The land use rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over the operating lease THE AR MS0EREHENANAE
periods of 34-50 years. BRE -
At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group's borrowings were secured by the RWI6EFEI2R3B EEMEEAA
Group's land use rights with the carrying amount of RMB 66,215,000 (2015: RMB E #662150007T(2015F: A B %
67,711,000). 67,711,00070) B i FARE A EE

EROETERERF -

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

[4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14 BFEE

Know-how Software Total
ERRM B #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFRL AR®TR AR¥TR
Cost: B
At | January 2015 201541 A 1 A 76,007 3,988 79,995
Additions il — 910 910
At 31 December 2015 R20I5F 128318 76007 4898 80,905
At | January 2016 R20165F1A1AH 76,007 4,898 80,905
Additions il — 170 170
At 31 December 2016 2016512 431 A 76,007 5,068 81,075
Accumulated amortisation Rt s FnEER -
and impairment losses:
At | January 2015 R20I5F 1A 1A (26,901) (1,258) (28,159)
Charge for the year REHHE (4,401) (482) (4,883)
At 31 December 2015 R20I15F 124318 (31,302) (1,740) (33,042
At | January 2016 R201651A1AH (31,302) (1,740) (33,042)
Charge for the year REEH (6,545) (524) (7,069)
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 124318 (37,847) (2,264) (40,111)
Net book value: KREFE
At 31 December 2016 R2016512A318 38,160 2,804 40,964
At 31 December 2015 20155124318 44,705 3,158 47,863
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Administrative expenses” in the REFIENEEBESRAHFBEEEM
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. AW RPHEEER] -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RARBIIR)

|5 RECEIVABLES UNDER FINANCE LEASES 15 EUREHER
The gross investment and present value of receivables relating to future minimum BEATHENRERERZSIAKRS
lease payments under non-cancellable finance lease agreement or arrangement MERENTY BAXSEEHENT
accounted for as finance lease are as follows: HENBEESENERKEREZD
mr
2016 2015
Present Present
value of the value of the
minimum minimum
lease Gross lease Gross
payments  investment payments  Investment
REHE HEHE

HHEE wEE (R5E B
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMB00O
ARBTR AR®BTR ARETT ARETI

Within | year —FQR 2,117 2,245 2117 2,245
After | year but within 2 years —FREMEA 1,899 2,245 1,899 2,245
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERFER 3,430 4,726 4056 5,730
After 5 years ks 4,299 9,433 4,683 10,674
9,628 16,404 10,638 18,649
Total CEl 11,745 18,649 12,755 20,894
Less: total future interest income B ARRF BB (6,904) (8,139)
Present value of lease receivables MERKFIERE 11,745 12,755

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016
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AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

[6 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally

affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. All the subsidiaries are unlisted

companies and the class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

l6 HHELRMNES
AN ERHAGELERE &
ESAEAREZVENNBAR K
FRERHA AENBLRRLRIELD
DR ARBRAY AT ER -

M

Place of Ownership
incorporation/ interest held by
establishment Issued and paid FRERRERLA
and business up capital Company Subsidiary
Name of company TMEL BRI ARF WEBZAE  Principal activity
NAEH RUREEHE MBREZR "R 5E IEXE
Yingde Gases Investment Limited BVI USD14,700 100% —  Investment holding
("Yingde BVI")
BRERBRABRAR(AR RBRLES 14700%7T REER
(RERLES)])
Yingde Gases (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HKD 154,234,275 — 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited
BRRE(ER)BRRA BB 154,234,275 B 7L RARR
Yingde Investment (Shanghai) Co,, Ltd* PRC USD 148,000,000 — 100%  Investment holding
AREA(LB)BRAF i 148,000,000 € 7T BAER
Anyang Yingde Gases Co.,, Ltd. * PRC USD62,500,000 — 100%  Production and sales of
industrial gases
BRABAR P E 62,500,000 % T FERBEIRAR
Baotou Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. * PRC RMB520,000,000 — 100%  Production and sales of
industrial gases
BRARREARA i AR 520,000,000 70 FERBEIRRAR
Hancheng Yingda Gases Co., Ltd* PRC USD26,400,000 — 100%  Production and sales of
industrial gases
BHAEREARAT i 26,400,000 T TERBEIRRAR
Zibo Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd.* PRC USD17,710,000 = 100%  Production and sales of
industrial gases
HBERRBEARAR" e 17,710,000% 7T TENRHETERR
BESR R 2 A

§ﬁ?&
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-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

l6  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 6 HHEABHESE)
Place of Ownership
incorporation/ interest held by
establishment Issued and paid FERERLA
Name of company and business up capital Company Subsidiary  Principal activity
AR, BRT FRF MWERF
NAEH RYEEL A MBRER BA BE IEXH
Hebei Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. ** PRC RMB282,000,000 — 100%  Production and sales of
industrial gases
ALARREERAE i AR 282,000,000 70 HERBEIRAR
Zhangjiagang Yingda Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC UsD20,000,000 — 100%  Production and sales of
industrial gases
RRABERBARAT i 20,000,000 7T FERBEIRAR
Hunan Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC RMB306,338,878 — 100%  Production and sales of
("Hunan Yingde")* industrial gases
AEARRESRAR((ARAR]): TE AR¥ 306338878 7T TERBEIRRAR
Neijiang Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. PRC USD33,000,000 — 100%  Production and sales of
industrial gases
NIBERERR PE 33,000,000 T TERBEIRRR
Rizhao Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. ** PRC RMB419,400,000 — 100%  Production and sales of
industrial gases
ARARRERRAR i ARH 419,400,000 70 TERHETERR
Yingkou Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD37,000,000 — 100%  Production and sales of
industrial gases
ZOARREARAA i 37,000,000 % 7T TERHETERE
Tianjin Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. #* PRC RMB60,000,000 — 100%  Production and sales of
industrial gases
REBRREGRAE i AR #60,000,0007C HERBEIRAR

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016
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l6  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) l6 HHEARMNER(E)
Place of Ownership
incorporation/ interest held by
establishment Issued and paid FERERLA
Name of company and business up capital Company Subsidiary  Principal activity
AR, BRT FRF MWERF
NEAEH RUEELHE MBRER "R BE IEXH
Zhangjiagang Yingding Gases Co,, Ltd. * PRC USD60,000,000 — 100%  Production and sales of
industrial gases
KRABRRBARAR i 60,000,000 T HERBEIRAR
Zhuhai Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. ** PRC RMB260,000,000 — 100%  Production and sales of
industrial gases
KERERARBRAR i AR 260,000,000 70 FERBEIRAR
Anging Yingde Shuguang Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB200,000,000 — 51%  Production and sales
("Anging Yingde") of industrial gases
REBREAREARAR i A% 20000000070 TERBEIRRAR
(TRERE])
Zhejiang Zhihai Chemical Engineering PRC USD20,000,000 — 100%  Manufacturing and
Equipment Construction Co,, Ltd. * sales of air separation
equipment
IR IRBIRERAR " i 20,000,000 %7C ZERRENEENHE
* These entities were registered as wholly-foreign-invested enterprises under the law of * i ERE A KRBRE ARLFELE
the PRC. M E SN E A B3 o
ok These entities were registered as sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises under *% it ERAKRBRRE ARLMEERZE
the law of the PRC. SRE RIS B -
R 2 F
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
AARBFIT)

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16

The following table lists out the information relating to Anging Yingde, the only
subsidiary of the Group which has a material non-controlling interests (NCl). The

summarised financial information presented below represents the amounts before

HHE DR AED (8

TRIVR Y AEEE-FHEERFER
BRREZNHNBLRZERENRRE
B AHKREABI S ZANREEE

any inter-company elimination.

BT -

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE AREBTL
Current assets mEE E 113,833 258,161
Non-current assets ERDEE 361,104 114,800
Current liabilities mEEE (148,353) (115,449)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (133,396) (62,125)
Net assets BEFE 193,188 195,387
Carrying amount of NC| FERRRERRE 94,662 95,740
Revenue WA 74,979 -
Loss for the year REFE (2,199) (2,051)
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEGERGERE (2,199) (2,051)
Loss allocated to NCI DEEIFFERBRMER (1,078) (1,005)
Dividend paid to NCI XA SRR AR R AR B - -
Cash inflows/(outflows) from operating activities mEEYRETA/(RE) 11,286 3.167)
Cash outflows from investing activities REEBHRSNL (9,377) (271,956)
Cash inflows from financing activities REEHHLR 9,332 275,824

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

17

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

REE QR ER
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB000

ARBTR ARETT

Share of net assets [EIEERE

184,001 518,671

The following list contains the particulars of associates of the Group as at 31
December 2016, all of which are unlisted incorporated entities whose quoted

market price is not available:

UTHERBEREEBR2006F 12 A3
BHBERE  KREEBEARYAE
tHEE ARTGFETSRE #F5

25T
Place of Particulars of
Name of incorporation issued and paid Group’s  Principal
associate and operation up capital effective interest  activity
BENT B3 ERTNMZ EN
=L REKBE AR BRER TEXK
RMB’000
AR®TR
Anyang Zhongying Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. PRC 490,000 38.98%  Production and sales of

(“Anyang Zhongying”)
ZHERREERRARA(IZGHR])

Gansu Hongsheng New Energy Co,, Ltd. PRC 25,000
("Gansu Hongsheng") (Note (i))

HREAMERERAA o
(THERAD (K 6)

China National Air Separation PRC 50,000
Engineering Co,, Ltd.

FERZES TIRERAT R

Hangzhou Teying Energy Technology PRC 10,000

Development Co,, Ltd.

(“Hangzhou Teying")
MNBREREMERER DA o

(Mm% 2])

chemical products

TERHECTIER

45%  Under construction of

chemical plant

ERIETR

30%  Manufacturing and sales of

air separation equipment
ENREORENHEE

34%  Equipment trading and

technical services

REBE MR IRS
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RAAR®3ITR)

7 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17
Notes:

(i) According to the board resolution of Gansu Hongsheng for capital reduction,
the issued and paid up capital of Gansu Hongsheng has been reduced from RMB
666,670,000 to RMB 25,000,000.

(i) All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity method in the

consolidated financial statements.

Summarised financial information of Anyang Zhongying and Gansu Hongsheng,

the Group's material associates, adjusted for any differences in accounting policies,

FA %’“TE’HE@ (i)
BisE -

() BEEREREERRENEZTGR
o HEEAWNBBROINMRER
B AR666,670,00070H D & AR
25,000,0007T °

(i) HEERARIRERERA I

SE YN

AEEERMENRRGTENERE
ACHMBENBZCH G BRERE

and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, is HAR BEHMBHRRERECHE
disclosed below: WEMT :
Anyang Zhongying
ZEHR
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TRL
Gross amounts of the associate’s - INGTECE
Current assets MEEE 70,663 81,232
Non-current assets FRBEE 919,129 991,291
Current liabilities mEBAE (443,708) (325,292)
Non-current liabilities FnBBE (270,000) (347,500)
Equity s 276,084 399,731
Revenue WA 958,630 1356915
(Loss)/Profit for the year KE(BE),/FE (129,093) 14,685
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFEWREHE (129,093) 14,685
Dividend received from the associate REEE R AR A — —
Reconciled to the Group's interests in the associate HEAKERBE DN RNERHE R
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate BENREETFRED 276,084 399,731
Group’s effective interest AEBRRER 38.98% 38.98%
Group's share of net assets of the associate AEBEMELREEFR 107,618 155815
Elimination of unrealised loss/(profit) REREBB/(BF) 2KHE 80 (522)
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements & B AR R P EREA S5 107,698 155,293

190 Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

17

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17 HREEQTHES(H)

Gansu Hongsheng

HRER
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Gross amounts of the associate’s - INGECE
Current assets MBEE 23,331 663370
Non-current assets FMBEE 6,890 7,529
Current liabilities mEEE (6) )
Equity #Eaw 30,215 670,890
Revenue WA — —
Profit/(Loss) for the year REME,/(E8) 995 (1467)
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEGERGERE 995 (1,467)
Dividend received from the associate REEE ARSI E — —
Reconciled to the Group’s interests in the associate HASERBEAINESHE
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate BENRREFRER 30,215 670,890
Group's effective interest AEBARER 45% 45%
Group's share of net assets of the associate AEELBEAREETHE 13,597 301,901
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements & B AR R P RA S5 13,597 301,901
Aggregate infomation of associates that are not individually material: BRTEABMEARATES
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE AREBTL
Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial BRI T EREE R ARG HIBRART
associates in the consolidated financial statements RHeRAR 62,706 61477
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of those associates AN 5 Bl B & /A B RE 42 8
(loss)/profit for the year AE(EE)/ME (2,001) 5549
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFZE WA (2,001) AL
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RAAR®3ITR)

I8 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 18 RNEEARMNESR
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTRT ARETR
Share of net assets FIEFEE 249,434 263,694

Details of the Group's interest in the joint ventures, which is accounted for using

the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

REBRGERANED RERETA
AHMBERE - HEENWT

Place of Particulars of
Name of incorporation issued and paid Group’s
joint ventures and operation up capital effective interest  Principal activity
ERALR BB
RENFER ES 3k BREXRFE BYEE TEXK
Shandong Bositeng Chunye Co, Ltd. PRC USD47,025,000 40%  Under construction of chemical
plant
IWRBHEEZERAR i 47025000 7T ERIETR
Cangzhou Xuyang Chemical Co, Ltd. PRC USD 107,985,000 10%  Production and sales of chemical
(“Cangzhou Xuyang") products
BMBBICTEBR AR (DANEE]) i 107,985,000 % 7T HERHELIER
Jiujiang Sinopec Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC RMB 142,857,000 35%  Production and sales of industrial
(“Jiujiang Yingde") gases
NIREREREERAR(INIRE]) $E AR 142,857,000 70 HERHETRERE

All of the joint ventures are unlisted incorporated entities whose quoted market

price is not available.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2016
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B E R R EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

18  INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 18 RAEEQTHESE)
The summarised financial information, in aggregate of individually immaterial joint AR TEAREE AR EEEAEME

ventures is as follows:

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARBTRL

Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial joint BRI N EXE &R TR EHIBEMRRAERS

ventures in the consolidated financial statements REeEAR 249,434 263,694
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of AEEREEARNEARE

those joint ventures' loss for the year AEBE (18) (1,087)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFEWRERE (18) (1,087)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
AARBFIT)

19

20

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19 HttFkRBEE
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P ARBTR AREBTZT
Prepayment for property, plant and equipment ME - BB RREN b A
and land use right M TR K
— an associate —BE QA 46,507 52,007
— third parties -%=5 516,586 690,810
Value-added tax recoverable AJ Y R (E T 167,445 153,701
Other investment in equity securities Hith R AREFEHFRE 174,727 174,727
Gross amounts due from customers for EWNEFEEGNTIRESH
construction contract work 21(c) 345,574 —
Others Hit 22,676 10,54
1,273,515 1,081,786
INVENTORIES 20 RFE
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise: EHMERARTINEERR !
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTZT
Raw materials and consumables MR RIEESER 78,755 69,683
Finished goods R 29,688 32739
108,443 102,422
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the amount of inventories recognised HEWICENAIBIEEE  GERERS

as an expense and included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income is RMB 5,737,013,000 (2015: RMB 5,392,816,000).

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinueq)

AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

21  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 EWERAR Ei W E
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Trade debtors FEHAR K

— joint ventures —REAH 13,384 55952

— an associate —BERA] 309,759 261,821

— a non-controlling shareholder — IR 11,709 —

— third parties =1 1,434,762 1,601,892
Bills receivable eSS 374,920 685,139
Less: allowance for doubtful debts A RIRER (444,530) (376,809)
Trade debtors and bills receivable BUESRNERRE 1,700,004 2227995
Gross amounts due from customers for EREFPRESNTIRAE

construction contract work 40,916 —
Deposits and other receivables e R REUIE

— an associate —BERA] 25,000 25,000
At ] N .S W=/ Lo
Current portion of trade and other receivables B U B e i B W R 0 B ER 2 3 2,049,518 2,682,864

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered within one FEHFAEEREZ N EMERRBIR—ER
year. Y o

Credit terms may be granted to customers, depending on the credit assessment EREeREHERNZEMENEENGE &K

carried out by the management on an individual basis. THBENEES

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group's trade debtors with total carrying R0I6ENA3NA AEBRABEAAR

amount of RMB 50,503,000 (2015: RMB 67,132,000) were pledged to secure the #50,503,0007C(20156F = A K % 67,132,000

Group's borrowings amounting to RMB 203,557,000 (2015: RMB 469,087,000). L)W R E A SR AR #203,557,000
TL(2015%F : AR# 469,087,000 ) MfE K IEE
1o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21 FEURERN R H fth FE W FE ()
(a)  Ageing analysis @) HRESHN
Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and bills receivable JEWEE TR R E M EUWIB B I AT
(net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the ageing analysis as of the year JFEE AT B 0 % FE U = 9 (HMBR R IR 28
end date: ) RNEERRRI 250
T

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®TRT

Neither past due nor impaired RABHOAFERE 795,051 1313,194

Less than | month past due BT EA—EA 242,406 134947

| to 3 months past due BH—Z==EA 120,117 215,131

3 to 6 months past due BEA=ZREA 102,686 259,033

6 to 12 months past due BERET @A 336,150 226,809

12 to 24 months past due AT _E_+THEA 103,594 78,881

Amounts past due jakiiEal 904,953 914,801

1,700,004 2,227,995

The credit terms for trade debtors are generally 30 to 45 days. The bills EWEREESH —MRE30E45H - EWEE

receivable are normally due within 180 days from the date of issuing. Further —BEBEZELISOARNEE - REFEEZER
details on the Group's credit policy are set out in Note 33(b). RHABHNMEE330)

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016
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B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

21

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills receivable are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is

written off against trade debtors and bills receivable directly (see Note 2(k)

()

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year including

both specific and collective loss components, is as follows:

21

JEE L B e B L 4t B UK OB (48)

(b)

FEW R R B R AR B

B U B 0 T P LS SR B L (B S 98 A
BERDS  RIERZEESHKD
BESBOIEERE  FiER
T HEBESEERERERERR
FEME B M (2RI 20()

FARKERNE D (BREER L
SEERED)Z25MT

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETR

At | January RIAIHE 376,809 233232
Impairment loss recognised HRRERRE 141,340 151,687
Write-back of impairment loss BORERE (59,656) (8,110)
Uncollectible amounts written off W REEE (13,963) —
At 31 December R12A31H 444,530 376,809

At 31 December 2016, the Group's trade debtors of RMB 697,155,000
(2015: RMB 1,102,877,000) were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related to customers that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances
for doubtful debts of RMB 141,340,000 (2015: RMB 143,577,000) were

recognised during the year.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range

of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

2|

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

21

L e e B L 4t B WK OB (480)

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable (continued) (b) ERRAREURBNREEE)
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of B8 H1E NME R E ) YRR
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. EUEEELUEAEER R TR
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment BECENBLEFEH - REB
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a ArE SEEREZHNEESZ
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully VEEANENERDERADH
recoverable. W - R RS R TR E
4 -
Gross amounts due from customers for construction contract work () EWEFEESNIEHAR
The aggregate amount of costs incurred plus recognised profits less RI6FI12A3NE E4BESL
recognised losses to date, included in the gross amount due from customers A NB#AFE - BECERES
for contract work at 31 December 2016 is RMB 386,490,000 (2015: Nil). BRHEE(PEEREFPALHT
The gross amounts due from customers from contract work are expected RRIAASE) A AR 386,490,000
to be recovered upon contract term. TL(2015% : &) - BFUEF AL
TRFBEBETNA RERE
e o
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt & ARBTR ARBTZT
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEERAMANE R
profits less anticipated losses FERERER 386,490 -
Less: Progress billings R - -
Net contract work CRONEES - 386,490 -
Representing: 7
Gross amounts due from customers BREF&HIRNIELR
for contract work
— Non-current —3ERNEIER 19 345,574 -
— Current — BV D 21 40916 -
386,490 -

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2016
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B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

22

23

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 22 BEARTER
The analysis of the carrying amount of pledged bank deposits is as follows: ERRTEINEDEEITHT
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt ARETT AREFR
Guarantee deposits for borrowings ERERRER 24(d) 1,078,735 -
Guarantee deposits for issuance of BORITALEZNERER
bank acceptance bills 150,105 308,500
Others Hit 929 1,026
1,229,769 309,526
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3 BLRBLZEY
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARETR
Cash at bank and on hand ROGHEFERE 736,855 678,450

At 31 December 2016, cash included cash at bank and on hand of RMB
583,677,000 (2015: RMB 485,185,000) held in Mainland China. The conversion
of RMB denominated balance into foreign currencies and the remittance of bank
balance and cash out of the Mainland China is subject to the relevant rules and

regulations of foreign exchange restriction imposed by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RAAR®3ITR)

24 BORROWINGS

(@)  The analysis of the carrying amount of borrowings is as follows:

24 Fta'A
(@) BRNEEHEEIFOT:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFRT ARETE
Short-term borrowings FRHE R 1,511,456 709,676
Current portion of long-term borrowings REBERNEEE D 2,367,313 893,662
3,878,769 1,603,338
Non-current portion of long-term borrowings HAE SR IE RN EEE & 6,505,224 8,060,162
10,383,993 9,663,500

The interest rates per annum of borrowings were: EROEFNR A
2016 2015
Short-term loans RHER I.11%-5.52% 1.93%-6.9%
Long-term loans RBEHR LIBOR+ LIBOR+
2.75%-5%, 2.75%-5%,
HIBOR+3.2% HIBOR+3.2%
or 4.75%-6% or 4.75%-6.88%
WREBETEE  HRIABROTAX
FER X FEFE
+2.75%-5% +2.75%-5%
BRBTEE  BEROAE
FER X FEFE
+32% 3 +32%3k
4.75%-6% 4.75%-6.88%
Medium-term notes FHIRE 5.5% 55%
Senior notes BARE 7.25%/8.125% 7.25%/8.125%
Corporate bonds NGt 5.48% 5.48%

Interest rates comprise fixed rates and floating rates based on the London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") and the Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR").

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016
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AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

24 BORROWINGS (continued) 24 @)
(b) At 3| December 2016, the borrowings were repayable as follows: (b) TH2l16FI12A318 EREZH
R

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT

On demand (Note) BEREE(ME) 771,668 85,066

Within | year —FR 3,107,101 1,518,272

After | year but within 2 years —FREMEA 3,123,645 1,312,731

After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRFEA 3,381,579 6,747,431

10,383,993 9,663,500

Note: MisE -

Certain borrowings of the Group are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to AREEBETEFIEETLETEHEAE
certain of the Group's financial ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements RIBATE L R 7 24 MEZER AR
with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn SRHE Y EELHTRBER o (iA

down borrowing balances would become payable on demand. As at 31 December EBERZY  BERERENRE
2015, none of the covenants relating to borrowings had been breached. BoR0ISENA3NAR A EEE

REFHBROOER

=
S
alj

201

it
E
Hr
S R
>
i &

S



202

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

24

BORROWINGS (continued)

(b)

At 31 December 2016, the borrowings were repayable as follows:

(continued)
Note: (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, there is a syndicated loan of USD 90,000,000 and
HKD 77,500,000 equivalent to RMB 680,794,000. The Group has failed to fulfil a
financial covenant requirement in relation to the amount of the net tangible assets
of the Group (“Event of Default”) under the syndicated loan and the Group has
not remedied this requirement at the reporting date. Therefore, the syndicated
loan lenders have(via the syndicated loan agent) the right at any time by notice
to the Group to require the syndicated loan to be immediately repaid prior to
its original repayment dates as defined in the original syndicated loan agreement.
As at 31 December 2016, the entire outstanding amount of the syndicated loan
was reclassified as current liabilities. The directors are in communication with the
syndicated loan lenders about the syndicated loan and the Event of Default. If the
directors are unable to come to an acceptable agreement with the syndicated loan
lenders with regards to the Event of Default and the Company is unable to secure
alternative funding to replace the syndicated loan, then an acceleration of repayment
of the syndicated loan may trigger a cross default of other financial indebtedness and
result in the Group being under an immediate repayment obligation for such financial
indebtedness. As of the date hereof, the Company has not received notice from the

syndicated loan agent to accelerate the repayment of the syndicated loan.

The amount of repayable on demand as at 31 December is the amount entitled to

be repaid on demand in accordance with terms of certain loan contracts.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

24 BORROWINGS (continued) 24 (g
(c)  At3I December 2016, the borrowings were secured as follows: (©) ]}QZOIéﬂE 128318 EBREHRE
RAT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Bank loans RITIEK
~ secured —BHEF 755,350 897,962
— unsecured —EEA 3,540,125 2560516
Other loans (Note (e)) HitER (T ()
~ secured —BHEF — 100,000
— unsecured — AR 24,500 91,500
Medium-term notes FHER
— unsecured — B 878,588 877,519
Senior notes (Note (f)) BRER(ME ()
— unsecured — B 4,225,953 4,181,112
Convertible notes and warrants (Note (g)) AIER G MRMRER (M (9)
— unsecured — AR — 178
Corporate bonds (Note (h)) AEMEHR (FHEE (h)
— unsecured — B 959,477 954713

10,383,993 9,663,500
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

24

BORROWINGS (continued) 24 fBER(E)
(d) At 3| December 2016, the carrying value of assets secured for (d)  M2016F 124318 - BEFEEN
borrowings were as follows: BERBEEM/BMNT :
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TRT
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 2,348,569 2,351,237
Construction in progress EEIRE 1,266 93,833
Lease prepayments MERMRIE 66,215 67,711
Trade and other receivables P WO R 0 LAt B e R0 50,503 67,132
Pledged bank deposits BEMRITER 1,078,735 —
3,545,288 2579913
(e)  Other loans: () HAER

In 2015, Anging Yingde, a subsidiary of the Group, borrowed entrust loan of
RMB 100,000,000 from its non-controlling shareholder at an interest rate of
6.04% per annum. The entrust loan was due in 2016 and has been repaid by

the Group.

In 2013, Zhangjiagang Yingding Gases Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiagang Yingding"), a
subsidiary of the Group, borrowed loans of RMB 200,000,000 from a third
party trust company at an interest of 5.75% per annum, and the remaining
loan balance of RMB 24,500,000 will be due in 2017.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016
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B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

24

BORROWINGS (continued)

(®

Senior notes:
Yingde BVI issued senior notes with amount of USD 425,000,000 in 2013
(the “Senior Notes I") and USD 250,000,000 in 2014 (the “Senior Notes II",

together as the “Senior Notes"), respectively.

The Senior Notes | bear interest at 8.125% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears, and will be due in 2018. USD 150,000,000 would be used
for capital expenditure and general corporate purposes and the remaining

balance to refinance certain existing indebtedness.

The Senior Notes Il bear interest at 7.25% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears, and will be due in 2020. USD 100,000,000 would be
used for capital expenditure, USD 100,000,000 to refinance certain existing
indebtedness and the remaining balance for working capital and general

corporate purposes.

In 2015, the Group repurchased the Senior Notes | of USD 4,000,000
(approximately RMB 25,310,000) and the Senior Notes Il of USD
22,000,000 (approximately RMB 137,032,000) at an aggregate consideration
of USD 22,889,000 (approximately RMB 142,774,000), and the gain of RMB

19,568,000 on repurchase was recognised in other income.

In 2016, the Group repurchased the Senior Notes | of USD 29,830,000
(approximately RMB 197,162,000) and the Senior Notes Il of USD 7,171,000
(approximately RMB 47,397,000) at an aggregate consideration of USD
31,919,000 (approximately RMB 207,481,000), and the gain of RMB

37,078,000 on repurchase was recognised in other income.

i
E
0
g
>
-
=
S
alj

S

24

fE 7 ()

()

]

REE
BABRAHS)DHR20I3
20144 % 47 7 425,000,000 %
(B Z#1])F 250,000,000
(BEEBIDNELER(E
BIBERR]) -

S B

= d

BEERIFEASIN% B¥F
TR—K BR0I8FRH B
F1 150,000,000 3% 7t FA 72 & A 1
SMAREARRE  FREEAR
AETRABEGBRE -

BEZRBIFRAT% B¥F
TR BR200F5H B
100,000,000 3 7T A A & A 1 F
¥ 0 100000000E T AR E TR
FEBERE  MnEeANeE
BSMAREKXRR -

AEE R 2015 F LA 522,889,000
E(HE AR®1427740007T )
() 4 8 B B8 7 4,000,000% JT(4
AAR®253100007) BEEEE
15222,000000% (4 & A R &
137,0320007C ) B E R &I - 187
Yk AR 19,568,000 TR E AU
AR o

AEER 2016 F A5 31,919,000
E(#4 AR ¥207481,0007T)
(9 %1 (B 21 8 7 29,830,000 3 JT.(47
AAR®197,162000) B R E
BIET7171000F T(HEARE
47397,0007C ) BEZR I - HEWK
= AR 37,078,000 T A H e A
R o

PAS)




206

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

24

BORROWINGS (continued)

(®

Senior notes: (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Senior Notes | and Senior Notes Il were
respectively guaranteed by the Company and 5 subsidiaries, and the
Company and 9 subsidiaries of the Company registered in Hong Kong and
the BVI. The guarantee will be released upon the full and final payments of

the Senior Notes respectively.

The Senior Notes are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
limitations on indebtedness and certain transactions of the Group, as are
commonly found in issue of corporate bonds. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. As at 31 December 2016, none of the

covenants relating to the Senior Notes had been breached.

Convertible notes and warrants:

On 24 November 2013, the Company and China Development Bank
International Investment Ltd. (“CDB International”) entered into an
investment agreement whereby the Company agreed to issue and CDB
International agreed to subscribe for (i) the principal amount of USD
25,000,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB 153,312,500) 8% coupon
convertible notes, which could convert to approximately 22,024,148 shares,
due 2015; and (ii) at nil consideration, 18,953,853 warrants exercisable
to purchase ordinary shares of USD 0.000001 each in the capital of the
Company, due 2016. The above convertible notes and warrants were issued
on 2 December 201 3.

As at 3| December 2016, the convertible notes and warrants were mature

and no share was converted.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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AR R M A 0

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARESITR)
24 BORROWINGS (continued) 24 fBR(E)
(h)  Corporate bonds: (hy 2DREH
On 13 October 2015, Hunan Yingde issued corporate bonds with amount WEBER0I5FI0A I3BRF
of RMB 980,000,000 in the PRC being traded on the Shanghai Stock BIENET TR EEEER SR
Exchange. 5 2 R EfE% A K % 980,000,000
7TE o
The corporate bonds bear interest at 5.48% per annum, payable annually ZRREFERSA%  NEBEF
in arrears and will be due in 2020 with issuer’s option to adjust the nominal RYAT - BR2020E 28 - 30 MY
interest rate and the bondholders’ right to request the issuer to redeem FoAAREERTAAZRZRA
the corporate bonds at the end of the third interest accruing year. The RBEENIGEEOSRIER - fT
proceeds would be used to supplement working capital, repay existing bank BREEANGERLEEES  EBE
borrowings and invest in the construction of projects. RERTETRIEEEEER
25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 BAERRREMGENK
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR
Within | month —EAR 60,836 142,806
Over | month but within 3 months BEH—E={EA 377,723 277,022
Over 3 months but within 6 months BH=%"EH 39,968 189,758
Over 6 months but within 12 months BENET A 92,847 LI
Total trade and bills payable FANESE S AL S 571,374 610,697
Payables for property, plant and equipment mE - BERREBRENTE
— third parties —-$=F 773,926 965,377
— an associate . -YNG 75 —
— a non-controlling shareholder — IR 30,071 10,359
Amount due to an associate (Note (i) FEATHSE & A R KR (P B (i) — 270,000
Amount due to a joint venture (Note (ii)) &g maE( W?( i) 103,223 93,528
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder SRR AR AE AR — 4,394
Accrued expenses and other payables BRREA &EI’HMEHMI 370,538 331,153
1,849,207 2,285,508

i

T
s |
g
>
HE
ot
s
S
al

207




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 25 ENRIRHEMESRIEE
Notes: BisE -
() Al the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year or iy  FTERMRFREMEMSZEESER
repayable on demand. —FNIREREE -
(i) The amounts due to an associate and a joint venture are unsecured, interest free and iy EN—EEEARR—HABRARK
have no fixed term of payment. ERAEER 2 BREETENS -
26  OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 26 MEHEEE
At 31 December 2016, the Group had obligations under finance leases repayable R016F 128318 KREEBHFER
as follows: BHEREZYWT
2016 2015
Present value of Present value of

the minimum ~ Total minimum ~ the minimum ~~ Total minimum
lease payments  lease payments  lease payments  lease payments
RERE RERE ERE HEHE
NRRE  ARERE NFRE  [A7Ees
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARMTR ARETT  ARETR

Within | year —ER 13,674 233,580 190241 196059
After | year but within 2 years —FREMER 65,353 89,78 179513 195959
After 2 years but within 5 years REREBRFR 39,376 59,355 33282 40377
After 5 years nEk 1,163 23,248 12060 25983

115,892 172,384 204855 262319
Total @t 339,566 405,964 41509 458,378
Less: total future interest expenses B ARNEEBRAE (66,398) (43282)
Present value of lease obligations RERRAE 339,566 41509

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARE

27

28

JII7R)

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

27 HitRHEE

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TRT
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder HIEERRREAK 15,680 11,288
Deferred revenue B W 41,097 42,088
56,777 53,376
SHARE SCHEMES 28 RA3EHE
(@)  Share option scheme () BREE

On 16 October 2014, the Company granted in aggregate 1,225,000 share
options to certain directors, subject to their acceptance, for the subscription
of 1,225,000 ordinary shares under the Company's share option scheme
adopted on 12 September 2009. The validity period of the share options is
from 16 October 2014 to 15 October 2019 and the exercise price is HKD
6.62.

On 20 November 2015, the Company additionally granted in aggregate
2,607,500 share options to certain directors, subject to their acceptance, for
the subscription of 2,607,500 ordinary shares under the Company's share
option scheme adopted on 12 September 2009. The validity period of the
share options is from 20 November 2015 to 19 November 2020 and the
exercise price is HKD 3.35.

No minimum period for which the option must be held before it can be
exercised. No share options were exercised during the year ended 3|
December 201 6.

The fair value of the share option granted to the directors is measured at
grant date using the binomial option pricing model, taking into account the

terms and conditions upon which the shares were granted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RAAR®3ITR)

28 SHARE SCHEMES(continued)

(b)  Share allotment scheme

Pursuant to the Company's board resolution dated 8 July 2013 (“Adoption
Date"), the Company adopted a share allotment scheme (“Share Allotment
Scheme”) to recognise the contributions by certain employees and to give
incentives for them to work with commitment towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the shareholders, and to
attract high caliber personnel for further development of the Group. On the
same date, the Company entered into a trust deed with KCS Trust Limited

(“Trustee") for the Share Allotment Scheme.

In October 2013, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Share Allotment Scheme, the Company lent loans of HKD 158,878,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB 125,974,000) and allotted 22,600,000
shares to the Trustee at an issue price of HKD 7.03 per share (represents
a discount of approximately 5% to the average closing price of the share
for the last 30 trading days prior to the determination of issue price). The
Trustee subscribed the shares allotted on behalf of the trust and settled
the subscription amount out of the loans from the Company accordingly.
The shares allotted represent approximately 1.24% of the total issued
share capital of the Company immediately upon the completion of the
allotment. The Trustee will hold the shares allotted in trust for those

selected employees of mid-and-senior-level management of the Company

(“Participating Employees”) until such shares allotted are vested.

During 2014, two Participating Employees resigned from the Group, and
their entitled allotted shares (200,000 shares in aggregate) were sold to the

open market at market price.

At | January 2015, a total of 22,400,000 allotted shares were held by the
Trustee for the purpose of satisfying the shares allotted to the existing

Participating Employees pursuant to the Share Allotment Scheme.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016
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B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

28

SHARE SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

Share allotment scheme (continued)

In order to allot shares at a lower price to the existing Participating
Employees to appreciate their long services to the Company as well as
to offer an opportunity for some of the Company's new employees to
participate in the Share Allotment Scheme, pursuant to the Company's
board resolution dated I3 April 2015, the board approved to issue and
allot up to 36,000,000 new shares to replace the above allotment made in
2013. The Company lent loans of HKD 201,240,000 (approximately RMB
159,402,000) and allotted 36,000,000 new shares to the Trustee at an issue
price of HKD 5.59 per share (represents a discount of approximately 1.9%
to the average closing price of the share for the last 30 trading days prior to
the determination of the number of shares to be allotted) on 28 April 2015.
The Trustee subscribed the shares allotted on behalf of the trust and settled

the subscription amount out of the loans from the Company accordingly.

Subsequently, pursuant to the Company's board resolution dated 7
December 2015, the board approved to issue and allot up to 39,000,000
new shares to replace the allotment made in April 2015. The Company lent
loans of HKD 129,480,000 (approximately RMB 106,857,000) and allotted
39,000,000 new shares to the Trustee at an issue price of HKD 3.32 per
share (represents a discount of approximately 0.8% to the average closing
price of the share for the last 30 trading days prior to the determination
of the number of shares to be allotted) on 28 December 2015. The
Trustee subscribed the shares allotted on behalf of the trust and settled the

subscription amount out of the loans from the Company accordingly.
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8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

28

SHARE SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

Share allotment scheme (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, three participating employees
resigned from the Group and one participating employee be re-designated
as a non-executive director of the Company, all the 2,400,000 shares allotted

to them were forfeited.

At 31 December 2016, a total of 36,600,000 allotted shares were held by
the Trustee for the purpose of satisfying the shares allotted to the existing

Participating Employees pursuant to the Share Allotment Scheme.

The shares allotted held by the Trustee shall be fully vested by the
Participating Employees on 16 September 2023 provided that the
Participating Employees remain at all times after the date of grant till vesting
date an employee and subject to the full repayment of the outstanding loan

amounts relating to the relevant shares allotted.

The Share Allotment Scheme shall terminate on the thirteenth anniversary

date of the Adoption Date.

The Company accounts for the fair value of the shares allotted as an
expense over the period from the allotment date to 16 September 2023
with a corresponding increase in equity. The shares allotted are treated as
treasury shares and no loan receivable from the Trustee is recognised until

vesting of the Share Allotment Scheme.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

28  SHARE SCHEMES (continued) 28 RBEHEI(#)
(b)  Share allotment scheme (continued) (b) MROEEEE(E)
()  The number of shares allotted are as follows: () MmMEROGHENOT:
2016 2015

Outstanding at the beginning of the year FBRE 39,000,000 22,400,000
Issued during the year REREIT - 75,000,000
Forfeited,” Replaced during the year RERELE/BR (2,400,000)  (58,400,000)
Outstanding at the end of the year FREHE 36,600,000 39,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the year FERAITHE - -

(i)  Fair value of shares allotted (i) MEROGWAAEE

The fair value of services received in return for shares allotted is
measured by reference to the fair value of shares allotted. The
estimate of the fair value of the shares allotted is measured based
on a binomial option pricing model. The contractual life of the Share
Allotment Scheme is used as an input into this model. Expectations
of early exercise are incorporated into the binomial option pricing

model.

The volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated based on
the weighted average remaining life of the Share Allotment Scheme),
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could

materially affect the fair value estimate.

Shares allotted were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There were no market

conditions associated with the Share Allotment Scheme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

29 SHARE CAPITAL 29 RAE
2016 2015
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
it &8 Rin%iE x|
RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR ARBTT
Authorised: ETE -
Ordinary shares of USD0.000001 each GHREE 0000001 ETA L BR 50,000,000,000 50,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid BEITMHR 1,793,173,500 12 1793173500 12
Shares issued and replaced under Share R & EER%E
Allotment Scheme (Note 28(0)) HERR (3 28(0)) 60,800,000 - 58400,000 -
Shares issued under Share Allotment R RLEE Bl BRI
Scheme (Note 28(b)) (MizE28(b)) 36,600,000 - 39,000,000 -
1,890,573,500 12 1890573500 12

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

30 RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

30 RBERRE

(a)  Movements in components of equity () HRARBIZEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each AEBEHRIREARITHHELY
component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated MERNANKRE 2 ES G
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's BERT o  ANTIEEZEKTD
individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of the HNEGMERNEHZER2I W
year are set out below: T
Share Share Other  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
kx  RORE HtRE - ZHER &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TR ARET:R
At | January 2015 RW0ISEIAIR 12 2919,808 9319 (1299,675) 1,629,464
Total loss for the year AEBEERD - - - (105255)  (105,255)
Dividends approved in respect of the BBLEEm
previous year BEERMKE - - - (369.867)  (369867)
Interim dividends approved in respect BEBRAEETHN
of the current interim period BEERKE - - - (111,094) (111,094)
Effect on share schemes 7 - - 17,325 - 17,325
At 31 December 2015 R20I15F12A318 12 2919808 26644 (1,885891) 1060573
At | January 2016 R20I6E1A18 122,919,808 26,644 (1,885,891) 1,060,573
Total loss for the year AEFRASR - - —  (153,925) (153,925)
Dividends approved in respect of the BBLEEM
previous year BEERKE - - —  (264,680) (264,680)
Interim dividends approved in respect BBRAEERHN
of the current interim period BERKE - - —  (262,790) (262,790)
Effect on share schemes 2 - - 45,827 - 45,827
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12A31 8 122,919,808 72471 (2,567,286) 425,005

Details of movements of the Company's share capital are set out in Note

29.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
AARBFIT)

30 RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 30 FERKRE@E)
(b)  Dividends (b) KE
()  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable () AEERFTERABBRENHR
to the year: B
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®ETT

Interim dividend declared and paid of EREREBRAREI9T
RMB 0.139 per ordinary share B HR AR 8
(2015: RMB 0.06) (20155 : AR#0.067T) 262,790 111,094

No final dividend proposed after the end RBRERAREREZR D KRBRE
of the reporting period (2015: RMB 0.14 (20155 : BREBRARE0.147T)

per ordinary share) - 264,680
262,790 375774
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable (i) MAFR/AEREZFFA
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year: NEIREFEEHRFRE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®ETRT

Final dividend in respect of the previous RAFRILERBEZAH) EFE RS

financial year, approved and paid during RE  BREBRARKI4T
the year, of RMB 0.14 per ordinary share (2015% : AR®0.207T)
(2015: RMB 0.20) 264,680 369,867

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016
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30

JII7R)

RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

©

(d)

(e)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company may be applied for payment of distributions or
dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following the date on
which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is

able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary courses of business.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company's subsidiaries in
the PRC, appropriations to the statutory reserve were made at a certain
percentage of profit after taxation determined in accordance with the
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC. The statutory reserve can
be utilised in setting off accumulated losses or increasing capital of the

subsidiaries and is non-distributable other than in liquidation.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly included the difference between the carrying value of
non-controlling interest previously acquired and the consideration paid, the
amount recognised within equity in respect of conversion of loan in prior

years, and the fair value effect recognised for share schemes.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

30

RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(®

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an adjusted net
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes interest- bearing loans and borrowings, and obligations
under finance leases) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and
cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity less

unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2016, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from 2015, was
to maintain the adjusted net debt-to-capital at reasonable level. In order to
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, raised new debt financing or sell

assets to reduce debt.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

30 RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 30 RERBRE(E
()  Capital management (continued) (f) ﬁz'sﬁ;ﬁ(ﬁﬁ)
The Group's adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2016 and 7\5420|6¢ K 2015128318 &
2015 was as follows: BREAEFEEERLENT
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

P&t ARBTR ARETT

Current liabilities: MEEIE -
Borrowings & 24 3,878,769 1,603,338
Amount due to an associate FEI B R RIFIE 25 - 270,000
Amount due to a joint venture A& DRIFE 25 103,223 93,528
Advance from a non-controlling e IR AR R 18 AFKIE

shareholder 25 - 4,394
Obligations under finance leases MEHEEE 26 223,674 190,241

4,205,666 2,161,501

Non-current liabilities: FERBEE
Borrowings &0 24 6,505,224 8,060,162
Advance from a non-controlling RO EIE PN

shareholder 27 15,680 11,288
Obligations under finance leases BMEHEAR 26 115,892 224,855
Total debt EBAR 10,842,462 10,457,806
Add: proposed dividends m:EERE 30(b) - 264,680
Less: cash and cash equivalents B ReRREEEY 23 (736,855) (678/450)
Adjusted net debt RRARER TR 10,105,607 10,044,036
Total equity et 6,248,773 6,878,592
Less: proposed dividends B EERE - (264,680)
Adjusted capital CREER 6,248,773 6613912
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio RERFEEEALE 162% 152%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally AR RHEM TR B AT
imposed capital requirements. GNERE AN EPR ) ©
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8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

31

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

@)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including

amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in Note 8 and certain

of the highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

3 EXBMARE
) HBREZASHM
AEEREREEARTH  2RE
M8 HENIN T ARAESRA
TRAREMTIRBENNTET
REFMALHOTE 0T

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®TET

Short-term employee benefits REEERA 14,251 11,946
Post-employment benefits BEBIREN 28 93
Expenses of share schemes RinztEIE A 628 1,331
14,907 13,370

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 6(b)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 EXBMARZ (E)
(b)  Transactions with associates, joint ventures and non-controlling (b) EHEXKEMNHLAT  SEQTIR
shareholders of the Group FERBRRHRZ
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had the following REE016F12A3IBILFE
transactions with associates, joint ventures and non-controlling shareholders: REBEBMTEHEZE AR 2R

BRI EAR S

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTZT
Advance to associates (net) BenrEARECRR) 5,500 25,000
Repayment of advance from an associate BB E A RFBERRE
as a reduction of investment 270,000 -
Sales to an associate HEEARRHEE (126,694) (316321)
Sales to joint ventures HEENRMEE (46,836) (74,798)
Sales to non-controlling shareholders IR R E (74,608) -
Purchases from a non-controlling shareholder IR AR R IR 54,398 2011
Purchase from an associate NI 253 -
Purchase from a joint venture HEERAIRE 427 -
Interest expenses related to advance IR BRARR & ATREF B
from a non-controlling shareholder 1,207 1,252
Loan received from a non-controlling shareholder HEFEERR AR B IE AFUB (630) (100,000)
Repayment of loan from a non-controlling shareholder {838 JEIE AR IR TR (& 2 100,000 -
None of the above related party transactions constituted non-exempt BB S A ER FTEE S
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter HAB T G BES HHIEE
[4A of the Listing Rules. B 5 o
BERESBEEBEERAA 291
2016 F 3R
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8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
AARBFIT)

31

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, amounts due from/(to) associates, joint ventures and

non-controlling shareholders:

31

EXBEHRAIRS (&)
R2016E 128318 B (ER)H
BNE BB DRI R IHERAE R A

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt ARBTR ARETZT
Trade and other receivables JE WO R 0 S LA FE W 3R
Trade receivables from joint ventures INCREUNCIP IG5 21 13,384 55952
Trade receivables from an associate NN 3T 21 309,759 261,821
Trade receivables from a non-controlling RIFERIR R 2 AR X
shareholder 21 11,709 -
Amount due from an associate FEU B = 1 BB 21 25,000 25,000
Other non-current assets HinsEme & &
Prepayment for property, plant and BENBELRNE  BFE
equipment to an associate R ERIR 19 46,507 52,007
Borrowings &
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder i ES A AT 24(0) - (100,000)
Trade and other payables A< BR 3K I Bt A 3K
Amount due to an associate FEfTHR SR R 30E 25 - (270,000)
Amount due to a joint venture &% RRIHE 25 (103,223) (93,528)
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder e S E X E YN 25 - (4,394)
Payable for property, plant and equipment EEERRRDE - BE
to a non-controlling shareholder RETE 25 (30,071) (10,359)
Payable for property, plant and ENBELRNE  BFE
equipment to an associate R EHIE 25 (75) -
Other non-current liabilities HisEneam
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder eI RR AR 3R 8 ATIE 27 (15,680) (11,288)
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B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

32 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(@)  Capital commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016 not provided in the

financial statements were as follows:

32

RERIEEE

(@)

ERRE

R20l6F 128318 REFTX
REMBRE P IRBEREARE
EZ5ImT -

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥BTR ARETRT

Contracted for 2ETH 801,647 1,272,965
Authorised but not contracted for BREEREH 7,495,538 6,846,008

8,297,185 8,118,973

(b)  Operating lease commitments
At 31 December 2016, the Group's total future minimum lease payments

under non- cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

CEHERE

R20l6F 128318 RETAH
BEERNAEERMHOARRKE
HENFBEZINMT

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTRL

Within | year —FR 18,116 16,358
After | year but within 5 years —FRELFA 22,978 23217
After 5 years k& 29,390 37,551

70,484 77,126

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

32 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(c)  Contingent liability in respect of legal claims

The Group is the defendant in certain lawsuit as well as the plaintiff in
other proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. In particular,
the Group received arbitration complaint by customers for gas supply
arrangements and claims from construction contractors for delay payment
in the aggregate amount of RMB 185,305,000 (2015: RMB 378,675,000).
The claims were still in progress and no final rulings were made as at 3|
December 2016. Based on the legal opinions of the Group's PRC lawyer,
the directors consider the claims are groundless or without merit and no
provision is necessary. While the outcomes of such contingencies, lawsuit or
other proceedings cannot be estimated at present, the directors believe that

any resulting liabilities will not have a material adverse effect on the financial

position or operating results of the Group.

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to liquidity, credit, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal

course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and

practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33 BIREREERLBIANAAE
INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)

(@)  Liquidity risk @ RBHESER

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current

assets by RMB 1,993.452,000 (2015: RMB 481,044,000).

In 2016 and thereafter, the liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations to meet its
debt obligations as they fall due, and its ability to obtain adequate external

financing to meet its committed future capital expenditures.

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed review of the
cash flow forecast of the Group for the twelve months ending 31 December
2017. Based on such forecast, the directors have determined that adequate
liquidity exists to finance the working capital and capital expenditure
requirements of the Group during that period. In preparing the cash flow
forecast, the directors have considered historical cash requirements of the
Group as well as other key factors, including the availability of the above-
mentioned loan finance which may impact the operations of the Group
during the next twelve-month period. The directors are of the opinion that
the assumptions and sensitivities which are included in the cash flow forecast
are reasonable. However, as with all assumptions in regard to future events,
these are subject to inherent limitations and uncertainties and some or all of

these assumptions may not be realised.
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NBEEBRLERDEEAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RAAR®3ITR)

33  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33 HMERREERESHMIAENAAE
INSTRUMENTS (continued) {B (&)
(@)  Liquidity risk (continued) @ RBHELERE)
The Group has to maintain a suitable level of liquidity to finance the daily AEBBEHREEENTRHESKE
operation, capital expenditure and repayment of borrowings. The Group's DEAERE  BARY REERE
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements o REBMBERTHE SRR
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains MEHN RS ELENK  BRES
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from ERZNNET - THRRAEES
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and ERANRSREEARETESR
longer term. WERSTERAHENE  DAE
NEERLRRBRDEETR -
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end of REARHNEMNHEERBEERE
the reporting period of the Group's financial liabilities, which are based on (BREBEANNEAENTEY
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed 0 B FEAR - IRREER
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the MFERAE) NERAEEERNH
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay: REAH TRHALTRREHK
AEENTRAENHRTAHIH
B :
2016
Total More than More than
contractual | year 2 years
Carrying  undiscounted but less but less More than
amount cashflow ~ Ondemand Within | year  than2years  than 5 years 5 years
AEHEH
FERRE IERE 2ENE
RABE  REAE REX £/ EVES B5%R SENE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT AREBTRT AREBTR AREBTRT AREBTRT ARET:
Bormowings B 10383993 11575262 771,668 3642418 3476912 3684264 -
Trade and other BT RELM
payables JEfT50E 1849207 1,849,207 - 1849207 - - -
Obligations under HEMEEE
finance leases 339,566 405,964 - 233,580 89,781 59,355 23248
12,572,766 13,830,433 771,668 5,725,205 3,566,693 3,743,619 23,248

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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B E R R EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33 BIEEREERLBIENARE

INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(@)  Liquidity risk (continued) @ RBESERE)
2015
Total Morethan ~ More than
contractual | year 2 years
Carrying  undiscounted but less butless  More than
amount cashflow  Ondemand Within | year  than 2 years  than 5 years 5 years
AFRAED
MRS IEHRE 2FHE

KEEE RERE BEX FR BFR BsER SENE
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARETR AREBTT ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARETR ARETT

Borrowings EEA 9663322 11214066 85066 2065474 1814037 7249489 -
Trade and R R H A

other payables JERT TR 2285508 2285508 - 2285508 - - -
Obligations under HEMERE

finance leases 41509 458,378 - 196,059 195959 40377 25983

12363926 13957952 85,066 4547041 2,009,996 7,289,866 25983
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Credit risk and concentration risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to

these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer's past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade receivables are generally due within 30 to 45
days from the date of billing. Moreover, extended credit terms are granted
to certain on-site customers depending on the credit assessment carried out

by the management on an individual basis.

Significant amounts of revenue are derived from a limited number of on-site
customers. The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the industry
and country in which customers operate also has an influence on credit
risk but to a lesser extent. At 31 December 2016, 15% (2015: 26%) of the
total trade debtors and bills receivable were due from the Group's five
largest customers. The Group maintains stable business relationships with
these large customers and generally has no significant credit risk with these
customers. Trade receivables are denominated in RMB and are derived from
revenues earned from operations arising in the PRC. The Group performs
ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and generally

does not require collateral on trade receivables.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(MARBIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Credit risk and concentration risk (continued)
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount

of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit

risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in Note 21.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the

Group to credit risk.

Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to

cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

At 31 December 2016, borrowings from banks of RMB 1,767,111,000
(2015: RMB 2,740,302,000) by the Group were issued with variable interest
rate, which were as 17.0% (2015: 27.2%) of the Group's total borrowings
(including finance lease liabilities and borrowings). Details of the interest rate

profile of the borrowings are disclosed in Note 24.

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group's profit after tax and retained

eamings by approximately RMB 14,981,000 (2015: RMB 23,276,000).
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8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit after tax (and retained earnings) that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis as
2015.

(d)  Currency risk
Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take place through PBOC or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign currencies. The exchange
rate adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange
quoted by the PBOC that would be subject to a managed float against an

unspecified basket of currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance of earnings outside
the PRC, are subject to the availability of foreign currency (which depends
on the foreign currency denominated earnings of the Group) or must be

arranged through the PBOC with government approval.

All the revenue-generating operations of the Group are transacted in
Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on financial
assets and financial liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than
Renminbi. Depreciation or appreciation of the Renminbi against foreign

currencies can affect the Group's results.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33 BIEEREERLBIENARE

INSTRUMENTS (continued) {8 (%)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) d) EX%RERE)
()  Exposure to currency risk iy MERBRAE

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of the TRANAEERREHR
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets BRENEEINaEEE I
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional EMTECEESBEME
currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes, EHEERBRAE - 27
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated using BOMES @ BRRAEZSE
the spot rate at the end of the reporting date. PAAREESR » I AR & 5

RENBSERIMAE -

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Renminbi)

HBRE(AARRIIR)
2016 2015
United States Hong Kong  United States Hong Kong
Dollars Euros Dollars Dollars Euros Dollars
xn B o e BT AT
000 000 000 000 000 000

r r r T T T

Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEN 102,891 49 4852 159,803 3 24989
Borrowings =0 (5445,415) - (1,083393)  (53255%) - (749,398)
Trade and other payables JER RN R ELA

TR (96,057) - (1,721) (16,349) (13772) (10275)

Net exposure arising from BERBRMEL
recognised assets and liabilities L F 23 (5438,581) 49 (1036593)  (5182142) (13741) (734,684)
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8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis
A 5% strengthening of Renminbi against the respective foreign
currencies at the respective reporting period end dates would
increase profit after tax and retained eamings by the amount shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular

interest rates, remain constant.

Eﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ%fiﬁﬁﬁmlﬂﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁ

hﬁ%‘ﬁlm(ﬁ)

RS
REREMR  AREHE
B ES%E R RBER
ARREBRNEMNEER
FIINT o Z oM RRE AT
28 LHERME  RE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR

Effect on profit after tax and retained earnings BR i 14 F1IE & (R 8B & ¥ 5/ 2

234,582 294,112

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group's presentation currency. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2015.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33 BIREREERLBIAENAAE

INSTRUMENTS (continued) & (&)
(e)  Fair values () DAEE
()  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (i RAREBEENEREE
Nemas
Fair value hierarchy DA EEER
The following table presents the fair value of the Group's financial TRIZBER G BHREER
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a EIFIAREBEAEIFRE
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as EHNRABE=EER I
defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a RIREBRFER KSR
fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to TEANARBE -BEAL
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation EBEGERERGAENT
technique as follows: BEUNEZEN  AnEE
FTERERSENT
- Level | valuations: Fair value measured using only Level | — Tl PhEER
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for BAFIBLRGAE
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date. HEAREHAED
ERMISTREREE
FREBENTEHANR
Bo
—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs — B2 PREEB
ie. observable inputs which fail to meet Level |, and not using BELIERHAER
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs E-HAREEI
for which market data are not available. BicHma BRI
BAE YAFER
BEENTABERIMN
BAE(T BRI
BABRTEETS
YENBAE)
- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant — B3I D4 BES
unobservable inputs. BEENIAUBRI

HBABERE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e)  Fair values (continued)

()  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group has appointed a third party performing valuations for
capped forward exchange contracts which are categorised into Level
2, and warrants which are categorised into Level 3. Valuation reports
with analysis of changes in fair value measurement are prepared
by the Group or a third party at each interim and annual reporting
date, and are reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.
Discussion of the valuation process and results with the chief financial
officer and the audit committee is held twice a year, to coincide with

the reporting dates.
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B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(MARBIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33 BIEEREERLSBIENAAE

INSTRUMENTS (continued) {B (&)
(e)  Fair values (continued) (e) AREME(E)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued) iy BROABEFENSREE
nemas(®)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RABEERE)
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
3| December 3| December 2016 categorised into
R20I6F R2016F 12831 BH
12A31BH MrEERABER
2016 Level | Level 2 Level 3
MEfE FIER F1ER FIBR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR  ARMTRT  AR®TR  ARETR

Recurring fair value measurements  J5E R A A EET &
Asset: BE:
Dernvative financial instrument: TESBIE:

~ Capped forward - FREBINESH

exchange contracts 68,587 - 68,587 -

Liabilty: 8fF:
Derivative financial instrument: ITHEEBIA

~ Warrants — AR EE - - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)  Fair values (continued)

()  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

BHEREERERMIANAAE
(=16 )

AR EBEER(E)

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2015 categorised into
R20I5E R20I5E 12831 B8
12831 BH DEEFERBESR
2015 Level | Level 2 Level 3
MBE %1 BR F1ER £3IER
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTR  AREBTT  ARETR  ARETR
Recurring fair value measurements BN A ABEF 2
Asset: BE:
Derivative financial instrument: TEERIA
~ Capped forward - FREBIMNESD
exchange contracts - - - -
Liability af:
Derivative financia TEERIA:
instrument:
~ Wanrants — AR AEE 178 - - 178

236
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B 75 R AR BT 5E )

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33 BIREREERLBIAENAAE

INSTRUMENTS (continued) {B (&)
(e)  Fair values (continued) () AAEBEEGE
()  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued) () BRLAAEBEFENEMEE
NEmaE(®
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AAEEER(E)

During the vyears ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, there were
no transfers between Level | and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they

occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value

measurements

The fair value of capped forward exchange contracts in Level 2
is determined by discounting the contractual forward price and
deducting the current spot rate. The discount rate used is derived
from the relevant government yield curve as at the end of the

reporting period plus an adequate constant credit spread.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
AARBFIT)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 33 BIRERETERLBIENAAE

INSTRUMENTS (continued) {B (&)
(e)  Fair values (continued) (e) AAREME(E)
()  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued) () BAOABEENESREE
Hemas(E
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BB BEFEEE
The fair value of warrants are determined using binomial option AREFEN AL BEFE =
pricing model and the significant unobservable input used in the fair BEARETERAGE &l
value measurement is expected volatility. The fair value measurement ERFANEENIAER
is positively correlated to the expected volatility. As at 31 December B AERESREE -
2016, the warrants were mature. AR BENGERERKE
EACEMR - 120165 12
A3IE RREZFCEIH -
The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3 fair FREIESEBMTAER
value measurements are as follows: BERKEZEHNT

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETI

Conversion option embedded in convertible  AJ & i &5 H &)

notes and warrants: BRI R -
At | January RIAIE 178 2,268
Changes in fair value recognised in profit RAFFABRN AR EBEED

or loss during the year (178) (2,090)
At 31 December RI12A31H - 178

o

Total gain for the year included in profit or ~ FRZFIHBEREAF
loss for liabilities carried at the end AR BERNNEEE
of the year (178) (2,090

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)  Fair values (continued)

(ii)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair
value

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade
and other receivables, current portion of receivables/obligations
under finance lease, current portion of long-term borrowings, short-
term borrowings, and trade and other payables, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the relatively short term nature of these

financial instruments.

In respect of long-term borrowings, receivables/obligations under
finance lease and long- term receivables, the carrying amounts are not
materially different from their fair values at 31 December 2016 and
2015. The fair values are estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar financial

instruments.

Unlisted investments for which their fair values cannot be reliably

measured are stated at cost less impairment losses.
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8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RARBIIR)
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34 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 34 LATEEMBERRE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment, net Mmx - BERRE FE 46 72
Investment in subsidiaries RITB AR MIRE 4,165,517 4,338,345
Total non-current assets FRBEELH 4,165,563 4338417
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H fth FE W FRIE 4,631 825
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 53,439 14,293
Total current assets RBEELH 58,070 15118
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings EE: 1,363,752 185,354
Amounts due to subsidiaries NG S 2,400,702 2,464,844
Other payables Hi NI 34,174 10,127
Total current liabilities RBAEAR 3,798,628 2,660,325
Net current liabilities RBEETE (3,740,558) (2,645,207)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERTRBDEE 425,005 1,693,210

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2016
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(AAREIIR)

34 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)

34 DEEEMBRRR @

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BisE AREBFTRT ARETT
Non-current liabilities E(RBEE
Borrowings a3 - 632,637
Total non-current liabilities *RBABELAE - 632,637
Net assets BEFE 425,005 1,060,573
Equity B 30(a)
Share capital BRI 12 12
Reserves G 424,993 060,56
Total equity EReE 425,005 1,060,573

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 13 April 2017.

Zhongguo Sun
Director

EF
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Trevor Raymond Strutt
Director
EF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 75 R R B EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(RAAR®3ITR)

35

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT
Voluntary conditional cash offer by UBS AG, Hong Kong Branch on behalf of PAG
(“the Offer™).

On 3 March 2017, the Company received an offer from PAG to be made through
UBS AG, Hong Kong Branch to acquire all the issued shares of the Company at the
PAG Offers Price of HKD6 per Share in cash and to cancel all outstanding options
under the share option scheme of the Company at a cancellation price of HKD6

less the exercise price in respect of the relevant option in cash.

On 7 March 2017, the Company received an announcement from PAG which
set out the details of the Offer. On the basis of the consideration of HKDé6 per
share under Offer, the total consideration of the Offer is valued at approximately

HKD 11,288 million.

As refer to announcement made on 6 April 2017, the PAG Offers have become
unconditional in all respects, taking into account of approximately 23.61% of issued
share capital held by PAG and valid acceptance under the PAG Offers which
resulted PAG and its Concert Parties holding an aggregate of approximately 53.87%
of the issued share capital and voting rights of the Company. PAG is the largest

shareholder of the Company.

According to the terms in the agreement of the Senior Notes (Note 22(f)), the
Company is required to make an offer to purchase of all outstanding Senior Notes
at a purchase price equal to 101% of the principle amount thereof plus accrued
and unpaid interest no later than 30 days following a Change of Control Triggering
Event, which is defined as the occurrence of both a Change of Control and a Rating
Decline, as defined in the Senior Notes Agreement. The principal amount of the
Senior Notes outstanding as at 31 December 2016 is USDé61 1,999,000.

The Company considers that the potential acquisition of the Company's shares
by PAG will not trigger the above “Change of Control Triggering Event” as the
Company believes the completion of the above Offer will not result in a Rating

Decline.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2016
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREIIR)

36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND 3¢ CHE#GEREZ2016F 12831 H

INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE IEFEEARERMNEET - HEAMN
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 RETRTROTE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued a number HEZEWHBHERDE  BEReE8)
of amendments and new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended BESREMZEREZE 201651243
31 December 2016 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements. BIEFERRERANZERBKERERS
These include the following which may be relevant to the Group. KERZEE] - ] ERLRAE - Hib

AT R g AR EE AR -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

AR ok

ERECES

Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative | January 2017
BRgEABER 7S ReRER : [FTHRE/ 0171 AR
Amendments to IAS 12, lncome taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses | January 2017
REFTRABES 125 - SN [HRREHRXNELFrizh EERRZ ] 0I17F1 A1 R
IFRS'9, Financial instruments | January 2018
BRM B REENE IS M LA 2018F 1 A1 H
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers | January 2018
BRMBREERE 155 KGELERNUA 2018F 1 A1H
Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and measurement [ January 2018

of share-based payment transactions

BIRMBRE RS LR 25 RO - [ROZNIX Ga9 7B E51E 018F 1 A1 R
IFRS 16, Leases | January 2019
ERMBREEANE 65 HE 2019F 1 A1H
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RARBIIR)

36

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

Group's results of operations and financial position, except for the following.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model for
calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition

of financial instruments from IAS 39.

IFRS |5 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how
much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition
guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS |1 Construction contracts and IFRIC |3
Customer Loyalty Programs. It also includes guidance on when to capitalise costs
of obtaining or fulfilling a contract not otherwise addressed in other standards, and

includes expanded disclosure requirements.

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2016
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35

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 provides comprehensive guidance for the identification of lease
arrangements and their treatment by lessees and lessors. In particular, IFRS 16
introduces a single lessee accounting model, whereby assets and liabilities are
recognised for all leases, subject to limited exceptions. It replaces IAS |7 Leases and
the related interpretations including IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement

contains a lease.

The Group does not plan to early adopt the above new standards or amendments.
With respect to IFRSs 9, I5 and 16, given the Group has not completed its
assessment of their full impact on the Group financial statements, their possible
impact on the Group's results of operations and financial position has not been

quantified.
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Financial Summary

B REER

SUMMARY DATA OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 3| December

BZ12A3BLEE

HRASHEENERUERE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000

ARETT ARBTRT AREBTT ARETT  AR¥T=R

Revenue WA 4955933 6,865,508 7716,161 7918861 8,403,932

Gross profit EH 1,573,121 2,130,846 2478908 2,550,268 2,553,458

Profit from operations e 1,101,717 1,526,884 1,796,056 1,875,169 1,360,003

Profit before taxation BB A F 907,129 1203613 1,292,841 950,490 372,918
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive A (518) /FIE &

income for the year e Gt 771,285 909,612 912,162 532,705 (148,176)

Attributable to: A -
Equity Shareholders of the Company ~ AR AIEZIFH A 770,117 907,896 903,905 535941 (142,589)
Non-controlling interests FEERRAR R A 2R l,168 1,716 8,257 (3236) (5,587)

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016



Financial Summary continued

B REEw

SUMMARY DATA OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ERS MR IRAERE
FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December

RI12831H

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT AREBFT ARETT ARETTT AR®TR

Total non-current assets ERB A ELT 12,059,846 14281074 15,565,366 15,791,460 15,022,080
Total current assets MENEELE 2,733,255 2,270,694 3,685,708 3,782,983 4,200,498
Total assets BERARE 14,793,101 16,551,768 19,251,074 19,574,443 19,222,578
Total current liabilities mEaERE (5,819,348) (3,743,337) (4,653982) (4,264,027) (6,193,950)
Total assets less current liabilities BELERTBAR 8973753 12,808431 14,597,092 15310416 13,028,628
Total non-current liabilities FEnBEERRE (3426,602) (6,578,663) (7,853,569) (8431,824) (6,779,855)
Net assets EEFE 5547,151 6229768 6,743,523 6,878,592 6,248,773
Total equity mies 5,547,151 6,229,768 6,743,523 6,878,592 6,248,773
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Corporate Information

NEER

EXTERNAL AUDITOR NERZ B

KPMG 2SS
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10 Chater Road HEITE 105R

Central, Hong Kong ATARES8E
HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISOR EBEM

Slaughter and May Al EEME

47th Floor, Jardine House BE AR

One Connaught Place FREES | 5
Central, Hong Kong teMAE 4718

PRC LEGAL ADVISOR B A
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INGIE-¢S T

STOCK CODE
02168

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.yingdegases.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
ir@yingdegas.com

HEADQUARTERS/PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 3212-13
32/F, Tower Two
Times Square, Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
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Definitions

“Board"”

"Business Day"

"CAGR"

“China” or “PRC"

“Director(s)"

"HK$” “HKD" or
“HK dollars”

“Hong Kong" or “HK"

“Hong Kong
Companies

Ordinance”

the board of directors of our Company

a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in Hong
Kong

Compond annual growth rate

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this
annual report and for geographical reference only and except
where the context requires, references in this annual report
to “China” and the “PRC" do not include Taiwan, the Macau
Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong

directors of the Company

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong

Kong) (as amended from time to time)

Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2016
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Definitions (continued)

%%5}33(“%

"Hong Kong Stock

Exchange”

“Hunan Yingde"

“IFRS"
“independent
third party”

“Listing Rules”

“Nm?hr"

“Renminbi” or “RMB"”

"SAl Report”

“SFO”

“Share(s)"

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Hunan Yingde Gases Company Limited* (#if8 2= REFR A
7)), a company established in the PRC on 29 October 2001 and

a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

International Financial Reporting Standards

a person or entity which is not a connected person of our
Company

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (as amended from time to
time)

normal cubic meter/hour

the lawful currency of the PRC

the industry report dated 29 March 2017 entitled China
Industrial Gas Market Analysis published by Strategic Analysis Inc.

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws

of Hong Kong) (as amended from time to time)

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of US$0.000001 each in the

share capital of our Company
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Definitions (continued)

e =

Exe

“Share Option the share option scheme conditionally approved by our shareholders
Scheme” on 12 September 2009 and approved and adopted by the Board

“United States”

on |2 September 2009

the United States of America, its territories, its possessions

or “US" and all areas subject to its jurisdiction

“US$” “USD"” or United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
“US dollars”

“Yingde BVI” Yingde Gases Investment Limited* (REREREFRA

)), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 18
April 2006 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company and

investment holding company in our Group

In this annual report:

“Company”, “our Company”, “our”, “we” and "us" refer to Yingde Gases Group
Company Limited Z{EREEEE AR QA an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 25 September 2007 and, except
where the context otherwise requires, include all of its subsidiaries or where
the context refers to any time prior to its incorporation, the business which its
predecessors or the predecessors of its present subsidiaries were engaged in and

which were subsequently assumed by it;

“Group” means our Company and its subsidiaries from time to time; and

the terms “associate”, “connected person”, “connected transaction”, “controlling
shareholder”, “subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have the meanings

given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the context otherwise requires.

denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese company or entity, or vice versa, and is

provided for identification purposes only
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